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Duqguesne Light Holdings
is comprised of an
electric-utility company
and several affiliate
companies that
complement the

core business.

Duquesne Light Company,
its principal subsidiary, is a
leader in the transmission
and distribution of

electric energy, offering
superior customer

service and reliability

to more than half a

million direct customers
throughout southwestem

Pennsylvania.
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Meeting our Commitments . . . Building our Future
The front cover of our report features a checklist

of accomplishments achieved in 2003 through our
Back-to-Basics business strategy. Details of those
accomplishments on pages 6-16 illustrate how
Duquesne Light is building its future as we

continue to meet the commitments made when

we announced the Back-to-Basics plan.

Financial and Operating Highlights

Letter to Sharehalders

The goal of the Buack-to-Basics strategy was to
transition our com.pany back to a traditional
electric-utility business with a strong balance sheet,
a predictable earnings stream and a focus on
shareholder value. Morgan O'Brien outlines how
the company has done exactly what it told
stakeholders it would do.

Board of Directors
Officers

2003 Financial Statements at a Glance

This accessible overview features a summary of

key financial and operating data. For more in-depth
information on our 2003 results, see the Form 10-K,
which follows.
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DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS HIGCHLIGHTS

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

I 2003 2002 Change
Solid Financial and Operational Results: § |
Net income (loss) ‘ |
Total o $ 76 $ (215) 182%
Income from continuing operations ‘ 93 27 244%
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 83 - (128) 165%
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ‘ — (114) 100%
Basic earnings (loss) per common share i ‘
Total 3 $ 234 | $(3.28) 171%
Earnings from continuing operations 1.24 | 0.40 210%
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations : 110 (1.95) 156%
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — (1.73) 100%
Year-end market price per share 3 $18.34 $15.24 20%
Dugquesne Light customer satisfaction ]\ 6.1% 6.0*
Remove Uncertainty and Volatility: { |
Proceeds from asset sales | ‘
AquaSource § 203 § 16
Pro Am 9 . 32
Other 2 22
Total proceeds from asset sales . % 233 : $ 70
Strengthen Balance Sheet: ‘
Debt retirements ! $ 215 : $ 253
Equity § 575 | $ 453
Common stock outstanding (in millions): i ‘
Average shares ‘ 75.0 ’ 65.6 14%
Actual shares at year-end 75.4 74.3 1%

* Scale of this independent survey is 1 {lowest) to 7 (highest)

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements regarding, among other things, earnings guidance, dividends,
financial performance and our post-2004 POLR plan. Please see our disclosure, “Forward-Looking Statements,”

on pages 28-29 of the Form 10-K, which is included as part of this report, for more details on the associated risks
and uncertainties.
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LETTER TO

SHAREHOLDERS

Meeting our Commitments . . . Building our Future

As our 2003 performance demonstrates
on the pages that follow, we are meeting our
commitments and building our future.

It's been a little over two years since we
committed to the Back-to-Basics vision. Our
goal was to transition back to a traditional
electric utility business with a strong balance
sheet, a predictable earnings stream and a focus
on shareholder value. We wanted to return
this company to a low-risk utility investment
— one where shareholders can look at our
business, easily understand the earnings
pattern, and, in general, be comfortable with
their investment going forward.

While our strategy made sense, the question
being asked at the time was: “could we execute
the plan?” We successfully responded to that
challenge by working very diligently over the
past two years to reposition the company:.
¢ We removed much of the volatility from our

operations by selling non-core businesses,

such as AquaSource, Pro Am and the
remaining publicly-traded, energy-
technology investments.

* We also retired $468 million in debt —
$215 million in 2003 — which reduces
interest expense as well as strengthens the
company’s balance sheet and credit profile.

® Another major accomplishment was the
recent tax settlement with the Internal

Revenue Service. By resolving this significant

issue, we further increased the certainty

and predictability surrounding our business.

The bottom line is that — thanks to the
hard work of our employees — we did exactly
what we told stakeholders we planned to do
when we began implementing the Back-to-
Basics vision.

Focused on our Core Business

We are moviag forward with an even
sharper focus on our core business, Duquesne
Light Company. It is a business with a long
and successtul history, dating back more than
100 years. Duquesne Light's industry-leading
successes in implementing the deregulation
of generation supply in Pennsylvania have
significantly reduced rates for customers.
Service and technology improvements have
helped raise customer satisfaction ratings to
all-time highs. As a result, it was logical that
our Back-to-Basics strategy culminated with
Duquesne Light Holdings officially replacing
DQE as the name of our company on
Sept. 30, 2003.

We now have very straightforward financials,
and a recurring, predictable earnings stream.
The financial performance of our unregulated
businesses is becoming very predictable,
complementing our core, regulated utility,
which always has been very stable. We have
spent a lot of time focused on reducing costs
and operating our electric-utility business as
efficiently as we can. We have taken significant
costs out of that business yet continue to
improve its operation. We're going to take
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that same approach with our remaining
unregulated businesses and look to operate
them even more efficiently over the next year.
We believe we have the opportunity to
expand our earnings over the long term as we
continue to meet our customer commitments.

Long-Term Energy Supply, Earnings Source
In December, Duguesne Light Company

filed with the Pennsylvania Public Utility

Commission (PUC) a plan that will extend

our commitment to supply electric customers

with a reliable, secure energy source through

2010. The current supply plan expires at the

end of 2004. The proposal seeks approval of

the following three elements:

» fixed-price generation service for residential
and small business customers;

* market-based generation pricing for industrial
and large commercial customers; and

® customer access to reliable, secure supply
alternatives by joining the PJM regional
transmission organization.

The bottom line is that — thanks
to the hard work of our employees
— we did exactly what we told
stakeholders we planned to
do when we began implementing
the Back-to-Basics vision.

We propose to acquire the energy to
meet requirements through market-based
contracts as well as through the purchase of
generating assets.

We believe our proposal is a good plan for
both our customers and the company. It will
enable us to continue to supply electricity at
fixed prices to residential and small business

customers who have not chosen another
energy supplier, while providing a significant
component of our earnings over the long term.
We have proposed pricing that we believe is
fair for customers and is indicative of market
prices during the 2005-2010 period. Our
earnings potential will be contingent on our
ability to put together a portfolio of supply
contracts and to successfully operate any
generating assets we might acquire.

The regulatory process is progressing as
anticipated. A key driver in gaining regulatory
support for our plan is the quality service our
employees continue to provide customers. We
have done all of the things our customers have
come to expect from us, whether it is prompt
outage restoration, timely answers from our call
center, or keeping the lights on. We believe
all of these efforts will reinforce our credibility
with regulators during the approval process.

Making the Connection

Pages 14 to 16 illustrate how we have
reinforced our ties to the community we call
home — Pittsburgh — and the rest of south-
western Pennsylvania. Our success as a
company is directly connected to the success
of the communities we serve. Not only do
our customers live here, so do most of our
employees, families and friends. As a result,
we all have a stake in keeping our hometown
strong and successful.

Through our “Duquesne Light Connects”
plan, we help children prepare for the workplace
of tomorrow, we help working families make
ends meet, and we help our communities
to thrive. Our employees make major
contributions of their most valuable personal
asset — their time — to volunteer with
diverse organizations throughout Allegheny
and Beaver counties.

03




As evidenced by our 2003
performance, the company is a
solid traditional utility with a
predictable earnings stream and
stable cash flow that help support
projected dividend and capital
expenditure requirements.

A major focus of our community connections
in 2004 will be support for working families.
Duquesne Light was the first member of the
corporate community to provide significant
financial support to efforts by Catholic
Charities of Pittsburgh to create a free health-
care facility for working families in downtown
Pittsburgh. This nondenominational facility
will offer basic, primary and preventive
care for the uninsured who do not qualify for
government assistance.

Building QOur Future

As detailed in the pages that follow,
we have made considerable progress in
implementing our Back-to-Basics business
strategy. We now are moving on to the next
phase of that strategy — building our future
by developing a long-term earnings stream
from our core electric business. As evidenced
by our 2003 performance, the company is a
solid, traditional utility with a predictable
earnings stream and stable cash flow that
help support projected dividend and capital
expenditure requirements.

We are committed to positioning Duquesne
Light strategically to maximize shareholder
value. We believe our company represents a
compelling investment opportunity, and is well-
positioned to provide additional future value.

Our goal over the next three years is to be
a top tier, total shareholder return investment.
We have reducad debt significantly and will
continue to focus on having a strong balance
sheet. We believe that we have an opportunity
to expand our earnings over the long term,
which will allow us to continue to have a
sustainable dividend.

Clearly, our region is facing many challenges.
How these challenges are met will have an
impact on our fiture growth opportunities.
By playing a leadership role in the community,
we are actively engaged in dealing with these
issues. We truly have a vested interest in
making the Pittsburgh region attractive for
both families and businesses. We believe that
providing long-term electric price stability for
those families and businesses through our
energy supply plan is a vital ingredient in
building future regional growth.

In the end, I truly believe that what
differentiates us from other businesses are
the people who work here — the people who
accepted the tough assignments and helped
achieve our goals. Our team has worked
through some very difficult and challenging
issues, and we ar= extremely excited about
the opportunities that we have created for
this business.

We will continue to build on the successes
achieved at the core electric utility and
complementary businesses. Thank you for
your continued support.

Sincerely,

A K U

Morgan K. O'Brien
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 19, 2004
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Robert P. Bozzone,

70. Board Chair. Term
expires 2006 (3,5). A
lead director from August
1996 through June 1999.
Chairman, Allegheny
Technologies, Inc.
(specialty metals pro-
duction). Life member

of ASM International
{engineering technical
society). Directorships
include Allegheny
Technologies, Inc.,
Teledyne Technologies,
the Greater Pittsburgh
Council, Boy Scouts of
America, and The
Pittsburgh Foundation.
Non-executive
Chairman of Waterpik
Technologies, Inc.
Former Chairman,
Pittsburgh branch of the
Federal Reserve Bank of
Cleveland. Trustee of
Rensselaer Polytechnic
Institute and the Carnegie
Museums of Pittsburgh.

BOARD OF

Doreen E. Boyce,

69. Board Vice Chair.
Term expires 2004
(4,5). President of

the Buh! Foundation
{(supports educational
and community pro-
grams). Directorships
include Microbac
Laboratories, Inc.
(analytical testing
laboratory group),
Carnegie Science Center,
Orbeco Analytical
Systems, Inc. (manufac-
turer of hand-held,
water-testing equipment),
and Dollar Bank,
Federal Savings Bank.
Chair of Frankfin &
Marshall College Board

of Trustees.

David M. Kelly,

62. Term expires 2005
(1,2,4). Chairman,
President and Chief
Executive Officer,
Matthews International
Corporation (designer,
manufacturer and
marketer of memorial-
ization products and
caskets for the cemetery
and funeral home
industries and custom-
made products used to
identify people, places,
products and events).
Directorships include
Mestek, Inc. (heating,
ventilation and air-
conditioning products),
the Elliott Company
and the United Way of
Allegheny County.

Morgan K. O'Brien,
44 Term expires 2004
(5). President and
Chief Executive Officer
of Duquesne Light
Holdings. Directorships
include the Allegheny
Conference on
Community
Development, the
United Way of
Allegheny County,
Catholic Charities,
Diocese of Pittsburgh,
and Greater Pittsburgh
Council, Boy Scouts

of America.
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Charles C. Cohen,
63. Term expires 2004
(3, 4, 5). Chairman,
Cohen & Grigsby, P.C.
(attorneys-at-law).
Adjunct Professor at the
University of Pittsburgh
School of Law.
Directorships include
Commonwealth Capital
Group, Giant Eagle, Inc.
(supermarket chain), the
Eat'n Park Hospitality
GCroup, Inc. (full-service
restaurant chain),
Industrial Scientific
Corp. (manufacturer
of instruments for
detecting and
monitoring hazardous
gases), Preservation
Technologies, L.P.
(paper preservation
products and services),
and Robroy Industries,
Inc. (electrical and oil
field products).

Steven S. Rogers,

46. Term expires 2006
(2, 3,6). Clinical
Professor of Finance &
Management, Kellogg
Craduate School of
Management,
Northwestern University.
Directorships include
S.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.
(manufacturer of house-
hold cleaning, personal
care and insecticide
products) and Supervaly,
Inc. (supermarket retailer
and food distributor).
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Sigo Falk,

69. Term expires 2005
(1,2,6). Management
of personal investments.
Chairman of The
Maurice Falk Medical
Fund and the Leon
Falk Family Trust,
Chairman of the
Allegheny Land Trust,
and Vice Chair of the
Chatham College
Board of Trustees.

A Director of the
Historical Society of
Western Pennsylvania
and the Pittsburgh
Symphony.

Joseph C. Guyaux,
53. Term expires 2006
(1, 4,6). President of
The PNC Financial
Services Group, Inc.
Previously held various
senior management
positions at PNC.
Directorships include
Dugquesne University,
Private Export
Funding Corporation,
Consumer Bankers
Association, the
Pittsburgh Civic

Light Opera and the
Pittsburgh Theological
Seminary. Trustee of
the Carnegie Museums
of Pittsburgh.

John D.Turner,

58. Term expires 2005
(2,5,6). Retired. Former
Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of
Copperweld Corporation
(a producer of steel
tubular products and
components, as well

as bimetallic wire and
strip products).
Directorships include
Matthews International
Corporation, Greater
Pittsburgh Council,
Boy Scouts of America,
and the Coalition for
Christian Outreach.
Trustee of Geneva
College. Member of the
Advisory Board of the
Fellowship of Christian
Athletes.

Duquesne Light

Holdings Committees:
1. Audit

2. Compensation

3. Corporate Governance

4. Employment and
Community Relations

. Executive

6. Finance
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Solid financial and operational results

$1.24 basic EPS from

continuing operations
Stable cash flow

Customer satisfaction at all-time high

Long-term electric supply plan

filed with PUC

Prompt restoration of Energy Services' We improve customer
service is a major driver operation and service principally
of customner satistaction. maintenance of by listening to our
synthetic-fuel facilities custorners and
were important meeting or exceeding

contributors to eamings their needs.
in 2003.
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Qur proposed long-
term energy supply
plan would offer
residential customers a
sacure, low-risk supply
of electricity through
2010 at a monthly

cost below what they
paid at the start of
deregulation in 1996.

Favorable 2003 financial and operational results provide tangible evidence of the progress we've
made in repositioning our company through the Back-to-Basics strategy.

$1.24 basic earnings per share from continuing operations; stable cash flow

Duquesne Light Holdings reported earnings from continuing operations in 2003 of $92.8 million,
or $1.24 per share. This is compared to 2002 earnings of $26.1 million, or $0.40 per share. See pages
13-17 of the Form 10-K, which follows, for the results of operations by business segment.

Earnings available for common stock in 2003 were $175.5 million, or $2.34 per share, compared to
a loss of $215.2 million, or $3.28 per share, for 2002. The loss in 2002 included an after-tax charge of
$113.7 million, or $1.73 per share, from the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

In 2003, Duquesne Light Holdings demonstrated that it is a solid traditional utility. Qur goal has
been to increase the stability of both earnings and cash flow to provide the foundation for projected
dividend and capital-expenditure requirements.

Customer satisfaction at all-time high

Independent monthly surveys of Duquesne Light customers show that service reliability is the
No. 1 driver of overall satisfaction. By taking a very fundamental and focused approach to operations,
we've been able to meet, and in many cases exceed, our reliability and service commitments to
customers. And, as we've improved our efficiency in these core processes, we've been very diligent
about managing costs.

We measure customer service principally by listening to our customers. For example, in those sur-
veys, customers said they want Duquesne Light to seamlessly take care of their problems on the first
call; that their satisfaction drops significantly when outages last for more than two hours; and that
they're looking for useful information during an outage — such as, why the power is out and when it
will be restored.

Reviewing our recent performance in these areas gives you an idea of why Duquesne Light's customer
satisfaction ratings are at an all-time high, and above the national utility average.
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Over the past several years, we've reduced by almost half the number of customer telephone
inquiries that were not handled on the first call. When we first started providing outage information,
38 percent of customers indicated that we were doing an effective job. Now, nine out of 10 customers
are satisfied with the information they receive. In addition, we've reduced by 40 percent the number
of customers experiencing outages lasting longer than two hours.

We systematically analyze the transmission and distribution circuits that carry electricity across
our service territory. When necessary, the company replaces existing equipment, wires and poles
with new facilities in order to continue to provide safe, reliable service to customers. From building
new overhead distribution circuits to inspecting underground cables, manholes and transformers,
Duquesne Light takes a multi-pronged approach to maintaining and improving system reliability.
Company surveys show that reliable service, followed by responsiveness and keeping rates low,
remain the key drivers behind customer satisfaction. Through this ongoing program of system
improvements, we truly are listening to our customers — responding to what they want and providing
the level of service they expect. And, satisfied customers tend to be very loyal customers.

Customer Satisfaction

11-7 Scale)
6.5
O o O ' —— Duaquesne Light

O N ' 1 b - . Edison Electric Institute Utility Average
G5 | ey e Lo FO‘ :

-ay O B LO s w e b s s Customer satisfaction levels are at an all-time high,

= 1 ' 3 ¢ = and above the national utility average.
4'5 f, f, '
00 01 02 03

Duquesne Light's service efforts also drew praise from outside the company's coverage territory.
Through the Mid-Atlantic Mutual Assistance group, the company helps neighboring electric utilities
restore power following major storms. The montage on page 9 illustrates the outpouring of thanks
from Virginia residents for the work of Duquesne Light crews in the wake of Hurricane Isabel.

Long-term electric supply plan filed with PUC

Duquesne Light's current supply plan for residential and small commercial customers has helped to
protect them from the price and supply uncertainties that exist in today’s energy markets. The company's
2005-2010 proposal will extend our commitment to keeping customers connected to a reliable,
secure, reasonably priced energy source.

Currently, Duquesne Light contracts the electric supply for those customers who have not chosen
an alternative energy supplier. That agreement runs through the end of 2004. Under our 2005-2010
plan, Duquesne Light would acquire the energy for residential and small commercial customers
through a contract with Duquesne Power, its supply affiliate.

Our proposal offers residential customers a secure, low-risk supply of electricity through 2010 at a
monthly cost below what they paid at the start of deregulation in 1996. Our plan calls for market-
based generation pricing for industrial and large commercial customers.
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Joining the PJM regional transmission organization will enhance Duquesne Light's ability to pro-
vide secure, reliable service by increasing access to energy suppliers. PJM, based in Valley Forge, Pa,,
is recognized as the most successful regional transmission organization in the country.

The proposed 2005-2010 supply plan currently is under review by the Pennsylvania Public Utility
Commission (PUC). We expect to receive a decision from the PUC by July 8, 2004,

Unregulated companies

Income from our unregulated businesses was an important component of 2003 earnings from
continuing operations.

DQE Energy Services is an energy facilities management company that provides energy outsourcing
solutions, including development, operation and maintenance of energy and synthetic-fuel facilities.
In addition to strong results in 2003 from operation of production facilities designed to deliver a
continuous supply of synthetic fuel to electric generation plants at four sites in Pennsylvania, Energy
Services completed the design and oversaw construction of a $43-million central utilities complex for
a major U.S. automobile manufacturer. Energy Services will operate and maintain this facility for a
15-year term.

DQE Financial Corp. owns and operates landfill gas collection and processing systems, which
benefited from higher natural gas prices in 2003, and is an investment and portfolio management
organization focused on structured finance and alternative energy investments. The first quarter
2003 sale of its investment in a natural gas operating partnership resulted in an after-tax gain of
$7 million.

DQE Communications owns, operates and maintains a high-speed, fiber-optic based network,
and leases dark fiber from the network to commercial, industrial and academic customers.

During 2004, we will be applying to our unregulated businesses, best-practice initiatives that
already have been proven at our electric-utility operations. The focus of these efforts will be to
continue to reduce costs and enhance efficiency within all of our operations.
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Remove uncertainty and volatility

AquaSource sale
Sale of energy-technology securities
IRS settlement

3-year union contract
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utilities have been transactions is a key
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and improve our company.
financial flexibility.



Taking volatility and uncertainty out of our business was a major focus of our Back-to-Basics strategy
over the past two years. A number of significant legacy issues were resolved in 2003.

AquaSource sale

We closed on the sale of our AquaSource investor-owned water utilities to Philadelphia Suburban
Corp. (PSC) on July 31. AquaSource was the largest privately owned water and wastewater service
provider in Texas, and one of the 10 largest in the United States. This was the final, and most significant,
of several transactions in 2003, totaling approximately $203 million, that enabled our company to
exit the water business as part of the Back-to-Basics strategy.

Taking volatility and uncertainty out of our business was a
major focus of our Back-to-Basics strategy over the past two

years. A number of significant legacy issues were resolved
in 2003.

Sale of energy-technology securities
Likewise, we sold our remaining publicly-traded, energy-technology investments in 2003. We sold
Pro Am, our propane business, in December 2002.

IRS settlement

A fourth-quarter highlight was a settlement agreement reached with the Internal Revenue Service
regarding all structured lease transactions that were under review. The successful resolution of this
major legacy issue was a key milestone for the company.

The tax liability associated with the settlement has been determined for the years 1994 through
1997, In addition, treatment of the structured lease transactions has been agreed to for all future years
affected by the transactions. As a result of the confidential agreement, achieved through the IRS'
fast track settlement program, Duquesne Light Holdings will make cash payments for the tax years
1994 through 2002 of approximately $84 million, net of the tax benefit associated with the interest
due. The company has paid $48.6 million, and expects to pay the remaining amount during 2004.

Three-year union contract

Another fourth-quarter highlight was the signing of a new three-year labor contract. This is very
significant because approximately 72 percent of Duquesne Light Company's employees are members
of the bargaining unit.

We believe the agreement met the objectives of both parties. It will help the company to control
healthcare expenses through cost-sharing while enhancing pension benefits. All company employees
now will be in one healthcare plan.




Strengthen balance sheet

$215 million of debt retired
Increased equity by $122 million

N
o long-term debt maturities until 2008

Capitalization
Long-Term Debt 977.5
Dugquesne Light Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities
(Note 1) -

Preferred and Preference Stock
(aggregate involuntary liquidation value of $77.0 and $102.3)
Holdings preferred stock (Note 1) —
61.6

Deniorred stock of subsidiaries
15.5




Our Back-to-Basics plan continues to target a stronger balance sheet.

The sale of AquaSource, discussed on page 11, was a key part of that process. As a result, we have
taken AquaSource’s less certain cash flow and earnings out of our business plan. We have used the
sale proceeds to reduce debt and improve our financial flexibility.

$215 million debt retired; increased equity by $122 million

Duquesne Light continues to strengthen its balance sheet through the reduction of debt. During
2003, we reduced debt by $215 million and increased shareholder equity by $122 million. Since the
beginning of 2002, the company has retired $468 million of debt, which reduces interest expense, as
well as strengthens the company's balance sheet and credit profile. As a result of the extensive
refinancing program, we have no long-term debt maturities until 2008.

We had a cash balance of approximately $34 million, as of Dec. 31, 2003, after retiring $100 million
of first-mortgage bonds in December. In addition, the company renewed $290 million of revolving
credit facilities in 2003, with $180 million at Duquesne Light Company and $110 million at
Dugquesne Light Holdings.

Duquesne Light Holdings currently is rated BBB by Standard and Poor's. Duquesne Light
Company's senior secured debt is rated BBB+ by S&P, Baal by Moody's and BBB by Fitch. We continue
to have an ongoing dialog with the rating agencies as we implement our Back-to-Basics strategy.

Since the beginning of 2002, the company has retired
$468 million of debt, which reduces interest expense, as well
as strengthens the company’s balance sheet and credit profile.

Favorable market reaction

The market has recognized the improvements we have made. That increased valuation has been
reflected in our stock price, which improved as we made progress through the year, rising from a low
of $11.90 in April to $18.34 at year-end. Our stock price continued to rise in 2004, reaching $19.42
as this report went to press in mid-March.

2004 earnings guidance
The company projects $80 million to $85 million of earnings from continuing operations in 2004.
As compared to 2003 results, this earnings guidance reflects:
® 3 $9-million non-cash reduction of earnings from structured leases as part of the IRS settlement
agreement; and
¢ the absence of the first-quarter 2003 gain of $7 million from the sale of a natural gas operating
partnership.
We expect to partially offset these items primarily through operating cost efficiencies.




Connect with communities we serve

Employee volunteerism up 28%

Joretta Marshall

?

"Since ! am a people

person and enjoy
helping others,
volunteering gives me
an opportunity to meet
people and provide
assistance as needed.
Mostly it gives me the
satisfaction of giving
something back.”
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Employee Service Analyst, HR

Rege Urban

Supervisor, Construction

“ attended a
recognition luncheon

for sponsors of
Make-A-Wish and
some of the youngsters
who were survivors,

or waiting for wishes,
were there. After
seeing those kids,

| was hooked.”

Denise Geramita
Customer Service Rep.

‘I like to volunteer, but
it can be hard with a
busy schedule.
Duquesne Light
provides you with the
ocpportunities, and

I'm proud to represent
the company.”



In 2002, Duquesne Light signaled its renewed commitment to the region by moving its corporate
headquarters back to downtown Pittsburgh. Then we collaborated with the Pittsburgh History and
Landmarks Foundation to design and underwrite the restoration of the architectural lighting on the
Roberto Clemente Bridge.

While this gift to the community was significant, it represents only one of the hundreds of ways
the company and its employees use their energy and resources to make powerful things happen that
improve the quality of life for all who live and work in this region.

Our Duquesne Light Connects program was launched in 2002 to reinforce already-high levels of
customer satisfaction and loyalty — as well as our commitment to the region — through a variety of
community-oriented initiatives. As illustrated in this section, our employees are dedicated to their
communities, and make major contributions of their most valuable personal asset — their time — to
volunteer with diverse organizations throughout the region.

In 2003, Connects continued to offer employees a variety of volunteer opportunities, ranging from
Pittsburgh traditions, such as Light Up Night (see photo above) and the Duquesne Light Home &
Garden Show, to community service projects, such as Living the Dream and the United Way's Day of
Caring (see photo, above left), to walking/running events, such as the Light the Night Walk and
Race for the Cure.

For those who prefer doing volunteer work on their own, the CONNECTIONS mini-grant program
provides funding for groups that employees support in their home communities. CONNECTIONS
awards up to three $500 grants each month to local nonprofits on behalf of employees. Through 2003,
the program has presented $35,500 in grants to 65 organizations in 47 communities.

Whether it's the mini-grant program or volunteer opportunities, employees have responded well
to the Connects program. Close to 250 employees volunteered their time in 2003, a 28-percent
increase over the previous year.

Pittsburgh City Council President Gene Riccardi declared December 2003 Duquesne Light Month
(see photo, above right), citing employee volunteers and the company's community involvement in
our headquarters city.

Because we cannot support every deserving effort or need in our communities, we have focused our
giving on programs that enhance the quality of life and significantly affect the ability of our region
to grow and successfully meet the challenges of the future. These priorities include education and
youth programming, community outreach and health and human services. For more details, go to the
“Our Community” section of our website: www.duquesnelight.com.




Bill Kraycar Sharon Frank Ron Miller
Sr. Consultant, Asset Management Manager, Environmental Affairs Auremotive Mechanic, Transportation

“You frequently hear I feel blessed that | am “My son recruited my

stories of how able to give something wife and me to

companies are not to the homeless volunteer for the

being good corporate women at the Pennsylvania Special

citizens — that they Bethlehem Haven Olymipics five years

don't care enough shetter. 1 just really enjoy ago. ! help with data

about the community. going there, being entry, preparnng

What does a good with them, and helping registration packets,

corporate citizen look to make their day a and welcoming the

like? | believe it is fittle better.” athletes as they arrive

Iimportant for employees for the Winter Games. "4 . N . .
to be involved and ! took forward to this “ ; Dug - i i
support the various each year. The smilss ) ’ /. '
company-sponsored on the faces of the S i 3
community events. This athletes are a great / ;
is where the community reward.” ‘

gets to meet the real
corporate citizen.

We are Duquesne Light,
and we can make a
difference in the
communities we serve.”

Connecting with the community

From supporting the needy to preserving the environment, community outreach takes
many forms at Duquesne Light, where giving back to our hometown communities is a
regular way of life for employees. The photos on this page (from top right) illustrate that
commitment: sharing wise-energy-use tios at the Three Rivers Arts Festival, co-sponsoring,
with the Western Pannsylvania Conservancy, the Welcome Garden at the west entrance
to the Fort Pitt Tunnel in downtown Pittsburgh; holding open houses at our nine cormimurii-

ty-based service centers; taking part in the Leukemia and Lyrmphoma Society’s "Light the
Night Walk;” honoring the memory of Martin Luther King Jr. through our annual Living the
Dream community-service project; and assisting efforts by Catholic Chartties of Pittsburgh

to create a free, nondenominational healthcare facility for working families.




EXECUTIVE

OFFICERS

Morgan K. O'Brien,
44. President and Chief
Executive Officer.
Previously Chief
Operating Officer,
Held several senior
executive positions in
the corporate develop-
ment and finance areas.
Prior to joining the
company in 1991,
served in various
management positions
at PNC Bank and
major accounting firms.
Directorships included

on page 5.

Joseph G. Belechak,
44, Senior Vice
President and Chief
Operations Officer.
Held various manage-
ment positions since
joining Duquesne Light
in 1982, including Vice
President, Operations
and Customer Services.
Directorships include
the Energy Association
of Pennsylvania, the
Pittsburgh Parks
Conservancy, the
Community College

of Allegheny County
Education Foundation

and the Homeless
Children’s Education
Fund.

Maureen L. Hogel,
43, Senior Vice
President, Chief Legal
and Administrative
Officer. Most recently
served as Senior

Vice President, Human
Resources and
Administration. Before
joining the company in
1996, was a management
labor attorney in private
practice in Philadelphia
and New Orleans.

Stevan R. Schott,
41. Senior Vice
President and Chief
Financial Officer.

Formerly Vice President
and Controller.
Previously served in
various management
and finance positions at
Dugquesne Light, DQE
Financial and a major
accounting firm. Joined
the company in 1998.
Directorships include
the Allegheny Land
Trust.

James E. Wilson,

38. Senior Vice
President and Chief
Strategic Officer.
Formerly Vice
President of Corporate
Development and
Rates. Previously held a
variety of accounting
and finance positions in
the organization and
with a major accounting
firm. Joined the
company in 1989.

William F. Fields,

53. Vice President and
Treasurer. President,
DQE Financial. Also
served as Vice President
and Treasurer, DQE
Financial, and Assistant
Treasurer, Duquesne
Light. Served in a
variety of financial
management positions
for the Salt River Project
(an electric utility)
prior to joining the
company in 1989.



2003 Financial Statements at a Glance

Detailed financial information can be found in Duquesne Light Holdings’ Form 10-K, which follows.

SELECTED FINANCIAL

AND OPERATING DATA

{dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2003 . 2002

2001 2000 1999

Selected Income Statement ltems: ‘
Operating revenues $ 903  $1,006  $1,142  $1,169  $1230
Total operating expenses 752 930 1,138 1,047 930
Operating income 151 96 4 122 300
Income (loss) from continuing operations 93 27 (44) 145 188
Income (loss) from discontinued operations - net 83 (128) (109) (7) 13
Income (loss) before changes in accounting principles 176 (101) (153) 138 201
Changes in accounting principles —_— (114) — 15 —
Earnings (loss) -available for common stock § 176 $ 215 $(154) $ 154 $ 200
Basic earnings per share $ 234 $(328) $075 §$ 244 $ 265
Return on average common equity 341%  (44.8%) (23.8%) 14.5% 14.1%
Capitalization Ratios:
Common shareholders’ equity 35.4% 25.4% 26.4% 33.2% 41.6%
Preferred and preference stock 4.4% 13.7% 12.2% 10.2% 8.4%
Long-term debt 60.2% 60.9% 61.4% 56.6% 50.0%
Total capitalization $1.624 ~$1,778  $1,929  $2.362  $3.238
Selected Common Stock Information:
Average shares outstanding (in millions) 75.0 65.6 559 63.3 75.5
Shares outstanding at year-end (in millions) 75.4 74.3 55.9 55.9 71.8
Market capitalization at year-end $1,383  $1,133 $1,058  $1,830  $2,485
Dividends paid per share $10 $151 $168 $160 $ 152
Book value per share at year-end $ 7.63 $ 6.09 $ 9.09 $14.02 $18.78
Dividend payout ratio 42.7%* —k* —*x 65.6% 57.4%
Dividend yield at year-end 5.5% 9.9% 8.9% 4.9% 4.6%
Price-earnings ratio at year-end 7.8 ke e 13.4 13.1
Selected Balance Sheet Information:
Assets:

Electric $1,833  $1,861 $1,847  $2,283 $4,180

Other 708 940 1,389 1,561 1,436

Total assets $2.541 $2.801  $3236  $3,844  $5616
Sales of Electricity:
Electric energy sales delivered (megawatt-hours, in thousands):

Residential 3,759 3,924 3584 3679 3,526

Commercial 6,415 6,528 6,241 6,413 6,024

Industrial 3,189 3328 3283 3,643 3481

Retail sales of electricity 13,363 13,780 13,108 13,735 13,031
POLR share (megawatt-hour basis) 72% 77% 82% 77% 82%

* 2003 ratio from continuing operations was 8§0.7%.

** Dividend payout ratio and price-earnings ratio were not calculated due to net loss.

*** 2003 ratio from continuing operations was 14.8.



2003 Financial Statements at a Glance

CONSO

LIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Reduction in
Competitive
Transition Charge
billed to Duguesne
Light customers

Retirement of debt }—

Reflects tax credits

of approximately I—
$31 million in 2003
and 2002

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

2003

2002

Revenues from sales of electricity . $ 781 $ 922
Other revenues 122 104

Operating revenues 903 1,026
Purchased power expenses 394 428
Operating and maintenance expenses 222 217
Impairment of long-lived assets —_ 30
Restructuring charge — 5
Depreciation and amortization 87 186
Taxes other than income taxes 49 64

Operating expenses 752 930
Operating income 151 96
Investment and other income 35 37
Investment impairment (1) (34)
Interest and other charges 74 84
Income from continuing operations before taxes 111 15
Income tax expense (benefit) 18 (12)
Income from continuing operations $ 93 $ 27
Average shares outstanding (in millions) 75.0 65.6
Basic EPS from continuing operations $ 124 $ 0.40




1 2003 Financial Statements at a Glance

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(dollars in millions)

2003

2002
Ful collection | S¢S
of Competitive Property, plant & equipment, net $1,437 $1,426
Transition Charge for Long-term investments 568 566
gi?gfifi:?griﬁz Regulatory and transition assets 290 304
Other assets 246 325
Aquaic;zt:t(: r— Assets of discontinued operations — 180
Total assets $2,541 $2,801
Liabilities and Capitalization:
Debt retirements and [ Debt (including current maturities) $1,029 $1,083
MIPS reclassification MIPS — 150
Preferred Stock 71 93
Equity 575 453
IRS settlerment }— Deferred taxes 474 615
Other liabilities 362 367
Liabilities of discontinued operations 30 40
Total liabilities and capitalization $2,541 $2,801
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS
(dollars in millions)
2003 2002
Operating cash flows $ 119 $ 124
IRS settlement ‘—— Changes in working capital (12) 60
Other (7) (67)
Net cash provided from operating activities of:
Receipt of proceeds Continuing operations 100 117
from AquaSource L‘ Discontinued operations 170 142%
sale in 2003 Cash provided from operating activities 270 259
Continued Disposition of investments 21 22
investment in i‘ Capital expenditures (78) (84)
electric plant Other 3 1
Cash used in investing activities (54) (61)
Retirement of debt ’— Net change in debt (205) (253)
Issuance of common stock — 223
Common and preferred stock dividends (64) (74)
Other (7) (7)
Cash used in financing activities (276) (111)
Net change in cash $ (60) § 87

* Includes after-tax impairment and other charges of $123 million in 2002.

20



UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

[ X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

or

{ 1 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Commission File Number
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411 Seventh Avenue
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412-393-6000
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411 Seventh Avenue
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Duquesne Light Company.
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Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. Preferred Stock, Series A (Convertible)
Dugquesne Light Company None

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and
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by reference in Part 1] of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant is an accelerated filer {as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes X No___

The aggregate market value of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. voting common stock held by non-affiliates as of
June 30, 2003 (the last business day of its most recently completed second fiscal quarter) was $1,121,747,551,
based on the New York Stock Exchange closing price of $15.07 per share on that date.

No common stock of Duquesne Light Company was held by non-affiliates as of the last business day of its most recently
completed second fiscal quarter.

As of March 1, 2004, there were 75,650,705 shares of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.’s single class of common
stock outstanding.

As of March 1, 2004, there were 10 shares of Duquesne Light Company's single class of common stock outstanding, all held
by Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.

Documents incorporated by reference: Specified portions of the Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. Proxy Statement relating
to the 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Commission not later than 120 days after the close of such
registrant’s fiscal year, are incorporated by reference into Part I11.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

COMPETITIVE TRANSITION CHARGE (CTC) -
During the electric utility restructuring from the
traditional Pennsylvania regulatory framework to
customer choice, electric utilities have the opportunity to
recover transition costs from customers through this
usage-based charge.

CUSTOMER CHOICE - The Pennsylvania Electricity
Generation Customer Choice and Competition Act gives consumers
the right to contract for electricity at market prices from
PUC-approved electric generation suppliers.

FEDERAL ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION
(FERC) - The FERC is an independent five-member
commission within the United States Department of
Energy. Among its many responsibilities, the FERC sets
rates and charges for the wholesale transportation and
sale of electricity.

PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION
(PUC) - The governmental body that regulates all
utilities (electric, gas, telephone, water, etc.) that do
business in Pennsylvania.

PROVIDER OF LAST RESORT (POLR) - Under
Customer Choice, the local distribution utility is required
to provide electricity for customers who do not choose an
alternative generation supplier, or whose supplier fails to
deliver. (See “Rate Matters.”)

e POLR I refers to the generation supply arrangement
with Orion Power Midwest (a subsidiary of Reliant
Resources, Inc.) during the CTC collection period,
under which Orion provides Duquesne Light the
necessary electricity to satisfy Duquesne Light's
POLR obligation.

e POLR I refers to the extended generation supply
arrangement with Orion following collection of the
CTC through December 31, 2004,

e POLR IlI refers to Duquesne Light's pending plans
for POLR supply after POLR Il expires, submitted to
the PUC in December 2003.

REGIONAL TRANSMISSION ORGANIZATION
(RTO) - Organization formed by transmission-owning
utilities to put transmission facilities within a region under
common control.

REGULATORY ASSETS - Pennsylvania ratemaking
practices grant regulated utilities exclusive geographic
franchises in exchange for the obligation to serve all
customers. Under this system, certain prudently incurred
costs are approved by the PUC for deferral and future
recovery, with a return from customers. These deferred
costs are capitalized as regulatory assets by the

regulated utility.

TRANSITION COSTS — Transition costs are the net
present value of a utility’s known or measurable costs
related to electric generation that are recoverable through

the CTC.

TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION -
Transmission is the flow of electricity from generating
stations over high voltage lines to substations where
voltage is reduced. Distribution is the flow of electricity
over lower voltage facilities to the ultimate customer
(businesses and homes).



P A R T |
Item 1. Business.
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K should be read in
conjunction with Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations, set forth in Part I],
Ttem 7, and with the audited consolidated financial statements, set forth
in Part II, Item 8.

This combined Annual Report on Form 10-K presents
information on both Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.
(Holdings) and Puquesne Light Company (Duguesne
Light). Information on Holdings and its subsidiaries (not
including Duquesne Light and its subsidiaries) shall not
be deemed to be included as part of Duquesne Light's
Annual Report on Form 10-K. Specifically, information
on the Energy Services and Financial business segments,
and the all other category, is not so included.

References in this report to “we,” "us” and “our” are to
Holdings and its subsidiaries, collectively.

Holdings is an energy services holding company
formed in 1989 to serve as the holding company for
Duquesne Light and to engage in unregulated energy and
related businesses.

Continuing Operations

Duguesne Light, our largest subsidiary, was formed
in 1912 by the consolidation and merger of three
constituent companies. Duquesne Light is an electric
utility engaged in the supply (through its provider-of-last-
resort service (POLR)), transmission and distribution of
electric energy. Its subsidiaries are primarily involved in
operating our automated meter reading technology and
providing financing to certain affiliates. On October 24,
2003, Duquesne Power, LP, a newly formed subsidiary of
Duquesne Light, announced its agreement to purchase the
Sunbury generation station from WPS Resources
Corporation for approximately $120 million. The
Sunbury plant would be used to serve Duquesne Light's
residential and small commercial customers as part of
POLR 111, its post-2004 POLR plan currently under
review by the PUC. Closing on the pending acquisition is
conditioned on PUC approval of POLR ll, currently

anticipated in the summer of 2004, as well as other
regulatory approvals.

DQE Energy Services, LLC is an energy facilities
management company that provides energy outsourcing
solutions including development, operation and
maintenance of energy and synthetic fuel facilities.

DQE Communications, Inc. owns, operates and
maintains a high-speed, fiber optic based network, and

leases dark fiber from the network to commercial,
industrial and academic customers.

DQE Financial Corp. owns and operates landfill gas
collection and processing systems, and is an investment
and portfolio management organization focused on
structured finance and alternative energy investments.

DQE Capital Corporation provides financing to
Holdings for use with its affiliates.

Discontinued Operations

During 2003, AquaSource, Inc. (formerly our water
resource management subsidiary) completed the sale of its
assets. (See Note 13.)

Service Areas and Customer Concentrations

Dugquesne Light's electric utility operations provide
service to approximately 588,000 direct customers in
southwestern Pennsylvania (including in the City of
Pittsburgh), a territory of approximately 800 square miles.

Our other business lines have operations and
investments in several states and Canada. DQE Energy
Services relies on a single synthetic fuel facility customer
for a significant portion of its revenues and earnings.

Regulation

Holdings and Duquesne Light are subject to the
accounting and reporting requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). Duquesne Light's
electricity delivery business is also subject to regulation
by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PUC)
and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
with respect to rates for delivery of electric power,
accounting and other matters. .

Business Segments

This information is set forth in ltem 7 under “Results
of Operations” and in Note 19 to our consolidated
financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We use forward-looking statements in this report.
Statements that are not historical facts are forward-
looking statements, and are based on beliefs and
assumptions of our management, and on information
currently available to management. Forward-looking
statements include statements preceded by, followed by
or using such words as "believe,” “expect,” "anticipate,”
“plan," "estimate” or similar expressions. Such statements
speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake
no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of
new information or future events. Actual results may
materially differ from those implied by forward-looking
statements due to known and unknown risks and




uncertainties, some of which are discussed following the
"Qutlook” section in ltem 7.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2003, Holdings and its subsidiaries
had 1,406 employees. Duquesne Light is party to a labor
contract with the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers (IBEVW), which represents 941 of Duquesne
Light's 1,310 employees. In October 2003, Duquesne
Light and the IBEW entered a new, three-year collective
bargaining agreement.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS
Continuing Operations

In 1992, the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) issued Residual Waste
Management Regulations governing the generation and
management of non-hazardous residual waste, such as
coal ash. Following the generation asset divestiture,
Duquesne Light retained certain facilities which remain
subject to these regulations. We have assessed our
residual waste management sites, and the DEP has
approved our compliance strategies. We expect the costs
of compliance to be approximately $6.6 million with
respect to sites we will continue to own. These costs were
recovered in the CTC, and the corresponding liability has
been recorded for current and future obligations.

Dugquesne Light also owns the closed Warwick Mine,
located along the Monongahela River in Greene County,
Pennsylvania. This property had been used in the
electricity supply business segment. Duquesne Light has
been selling unused portions of the property and will
continue to do so. Duquesne Light's current estimated
liability for closing the Warwick Mine, including final site
reclamation, mine water treatment and certain labor
liabilities, is approximately $27 million. A liability for this
amount is recorded on the consolidated balance sheets.

Discontinued Operations

AquaSource's former water and water-related
operations were, and remain, subject to the Federal Safe
Drinking Water Act, which provides for uniform minimum
national water quality standards, as well as governmental
authority to specify treatment processes to be used for
drinking water. AquaSource's former operations were
also, and remain, subject to the Federal Clean Water Act,
which regulates the discharge of pollutants into
waterways. AquaSource is aware of various compliance
issues at its former water and wastewater facilities
attributable to the period of time during which it owned
these facilities. AquaSource has agreed to indemnify the
purchasers of these facilities for certain pre-closing
environmental liabilities and is communicating and

working closely with the purchasers of its former
operations and appropriate regulators to correct those
issues in a timely manner. We do not believe that
AquaSource’s indemnity obligations in respect of any of
these compliance issues will have a material effect on
Holding's financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

Prior to divesting its former operations, AquaSource
entered into various consent agreements regarding certain
environmental compliance matters. In connection with
divesting its former operations, AquaSource assigned
these consent agreements to the relevant purchasers.
Although AquaSource has agreed to indemnify the
purchasers of its former operations for certain pre-closing
environmental liabilities, we do not believe that any of
these indemnity obligations will have a material effect on
Holding's financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

OTHER

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 for a discussion of recent accounting
pronouncements.

Pending Litigation
See Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” for a discussion of
pending litigation.

Available Information

Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to these reports for both Holdings and
Duquesne Light are available free of charge through our
website (www.duquesnelight.com) when they become
available on the SEC website.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANTS

Set forth below are the names, ages as of March 15,
2004, and positions during the past five years of the
executive officers for Holdings and for Duguesne Light.

Morgan K. O'Brien, age 44. At Holdings: President
and Chief Executive Officer since September 2001. Chief
Operating Officer from August 2000 to September 2001.
Executive Vice President - Corporate Development from
January 2000 to August 2000. Vice President - Corporate
Development from July 1999 to January 2000. Treasurer
from November 1998 to July 1999,

At Duquesne Light: Director since June 1999,
President and Chief Executive Officer since August 2003,
Previously Vice President - Finance from November 1998
to May 2000.



Joseph G. Belechak, age 44. At Holdings: Senior Vice
President and Chief Operations Officer since August
2003. Senior Vice President - Operations and Customer
Service from December 2002 to August 2003.

At Duquesne Light: Director since April 2003. Senior
Vice President and Chief Operations Officer since August
2003. Senior Vice President - Operations and Customer
Service from October 2001 to August 2003. Vice
President, Asset Management & Operations from August
2000 to October 2001. General Manager, Asset
Management from 1999 to August 2000.

Maureen L. Hogel, age 43. At Holdings: Senior Vice
President and Chief Legal & Administrative Officer since
August 2003. Senior Vice President and Chief
Administrative Officer from December 2002 to
August 2003.

At Duquesne Light: Director since April 2003. Senior
Vice President and Chief Legal & Administrative Officer
since August 2003. Senior Vice President and Chief
Administrative Officer from December 2002 to August
2003. Senior Vice President - Human Resources and
Administration from October 2001 through November
2002. Vice President - Development, Legal and
Administrative Affairs from January 2001 through
October 2001. Vice President - Legal from September
1999 through December 2000. Assistant General Counsel
from 1996 to September 1999.

Stevan R. Schott, age 41. At Holdings: Senjor Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer since August 2003.
Vice President and Controller from October 2001 to
August 2003. At DQE Financial: Controller from
September 1998 to August 1999.

At Duquesne Light: Director since April 2003. Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since August
2003. Vice President and Controller from October 2001
to August 2003. Vice President - Finance and Customer
Service from August 2000 to October 2001, Vice
President and Controller from August 1999 to
August 2000.

James E. Wilson, age 38. At Holdings: Senior Vice
President and Chief Strategic Officer since August 2003,
Vice President - Corporate Development and Rates from
December 2002 to August 2003. Vice President -
Corporate Development from October 2001 to
December 2002. Vice President and Controller from
March 2000 to October 2001. Controller from July 1999
to March 2000. Assistant Controller from 1996 to
July 1999,

~I

At Duquesne Light: Director since April 2003. Senior
Vice President and Chief Strategic Officer since August
2003. Vice President - Corporate Development and Rates
from December 2002 to July 2003. Vice President -
Corporate Development from October 2001 to
November 2002. Vice President and Chief Accounting
Officer from August 2000 to October 2001. Previously
Controller from November 1998 to August 1999.

William F. Fields, Age 53. At Holdings: Vice
President and Treasurer since December 2002. At DQE
Financial: President and Treasurer since December 2002.
President from June 2001 to December 2002. President
and Treasurer from April 2000 to June 2001. Acting
President and Treasurer from August 1999 to April 2000.
Vice President and Treasurer from December 1997 to
August 1999,

At Duquesne Light: Vice President and Treasurer
since December 2002.

Item 2. Properties.

Our principal properties consist of Duquesne Light's
electric transmission and distribution facilities and
supplemental properties and appurtenances, located
substantially in Allegheny and Beaver counties in
southwestern Pennsylvania. Substantially all of the
electric utility properties are subject to a lien under the
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of
April 1, 1992,

Duguesne Light owns 9 transmission substations and
556 distribution substations (364 of which are located on
customer-owned land and are used to service only that
customer). Duquesne Light has 592 circuit-miles of
transmission lines, comprised of 345,000, 138,000 and
69,000 volt lines. Street lighting and distribution circuits
of 23,000 volts and less include approximately 16,420
circuit-miles of lines and cable. These properties are used
in the electricity delivery business segment.

Our total investment in property, plant and equipment
(PP&E) and the related accumulated depreciation balances
for major classes of property at December 31, 2003 and
2002 are as follows:




Holdings PP&E and Related Accumulated Depreciation
(Millions of Dollars)
as of December 31, 2003
Accumulated Net

Investment  Depreciation  Investment

Duquesne Light

electric plant $2,063.7 $ 681.0 $1,382.7
Other energy

facilities 28.2 8.5 19.7
Fiber optic

network 28.2 5.4 22.8
Landfill gas

equipment 14.1 6.6 7.5
Other 9.7 5.1 4.6
Total $2,143.9 $ 706.6 $1,437.3

(Millions of Dollars)
as of December 31, 2002
Accumulated Net

Investment Depreciation Investment

Duquesne Light

electric plant $2,018.9 $654.0 $1,364.9
Other energy

facilities 27.8 6.6 21.2
Fiber optic

network 27.6 3.7 23.9
Landfill gas

equipment 154 5.1 10.3
Other 10.4 5.2 52
Total $2,100.1 $674.6 $1,4255

Duquesne Light electric plant PP&E includes:
(1) distribution poles and equipment; (2) lower voltage
distribution wires used in delivering electricity to
customers; (3) substations and transformers; (4) high
voltage transmission wires used in delivering electricity to
substations; (5) meters and automated meter reading
assets; and (6) internal telecommunication equipment,
vehicles and office equipment, all used in our electricity
delivery business segment. The other PP&E is comprised
of office furniture and fixtures. The other energy facilities
and landfill gas recovery equipment are used in our
Energy Services and Financial business segments,
respectively. The fiber optic network is reported in our all
other category.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

Sharebolder Class Action. In October and November
2001, a number of putative class action lawsuits were filed
by purported shareholders of Holdings against Holdings
and David Marshall, our former chairman, chief executive
officer and president, in the United States District Court
for the Western District of Pennsylvania. These cases
were consolidated under the caption In re DQE, Inc.

Securities Litigation, Master File No. 01-1851 (W.D. Pa.),
and the plaintiffs filed a second consolidated amended
complaint on April 15, 2002. The complaint alleges
violations of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the "Exchange Act”) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder, and Section 12(a}(2) of the Securities Act of
1933 (the “Securities Act"). The complaint also alleges
controlling person liability under Section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act and Section 15 of the Securities Act. The
complaint alleges that between December 6, 2000 and
April 30, 2001, the defendants issued a number of
materially false and misleading statements concerning
investments made by our subsidiary, DQE Enterprises,
Inc., and the impact that these investments would have on
our current and future financial results.

More particularly, the complaint alleges that Holdings
and Marshall stated their expectation that certain
companies in which DQE Enterprises had invested would
undertake initial public offerings of their shares, with the
result that our earnings would be positively impacted by
the public market valuation of DQE Enterprises’ interests
in these companies, but failed to disclose allegedly
adverse facts that made the possibility of successful public
offerings of the securities of these companies unlikely.
The complaint seeks an award of unspecified
compensatory damages, and an order permitting class
members who purchased Holdings shares through a
dividend reinvestment plan to rescind those purchases,
pre- and post-judgment interest, attorneys' fees and
expenses of litigation and unspecified equitable and
injunctive relief.

On May 20, 2003, the court certified a class to include
purchasers of our common stock during the period from
December 6, 2000 through April 30, 2001, and a sub-class
to include purchasers of our common stock through our
dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan during the
same period. Since December 2002, we have been
engaged in pre-trial discovery. The court recently
extended fact discovery through April 2004, with expert
witness discovery to continue until August 2004.

Although we cannot predict the ultimate outcome of
this case or estimate the range of any potential loss that
may be incurred in the litigation, we believe that the
lawsuit is without merit, strenuously deny all of the
plaintiffs’ allegations of wrongdoing and believe we have
meritorious defenses to the plaintiffs' claims. We are
vigorously defending this lawsuit.

Fresh Kills. GSF Energy, LLC (GSF), a DQE Financial
subsidiary, had a concession agreement expiring in
October 2018 for the gas rights to New York City's Fresh
Kills landfill. GSF also maintained an investment in a gas
processing facility at the landfill and was constructing
additional processing capacity when the World Trade
Center tragedy occurred. The debris from the World



Trade Center was transported to the Fresh Kills landfill
and currently rests on top of the landfill's largest hill.
During 2002, GSF realized reductions in available gas due
to the continued effects of the World Trade Center debris
as well as other actions taken by the New York City
Department of Sanitation resulting in further damage to
its gas collection system. On January 16, 2003, GSF
initiated litigation against the City of New York acting by
and through its Department of Sanitation in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New
York. Concurrently, GSF tendered notice of its intent to
surrender the concession agreement in 180 days as
permitted by the concession agreement. The surrender
date was extended to facilitate settlement discussions.

The complaint sought rescission of the concession
agreement and related relief and sought an injunction to
prevent the City from taking any action to declare an
event of default under the concession agreement,
accelerate payment under a promissory note or draw on
letters of credit supporting GSF's obligations thereunder.
On that same date, GSF filed a notice of claim with the
New York City Comptroller seeking monetary relief as an
alternative to its rescission and other claims set forth in
the complaint.

On January 7, 2004, GSF and the City executed an
amended and restated concession agreement. Closing on
the agreement occurred February 18, 2004, at which time
CSF paid $4.5 million to the City and was released from
all financial obligations under the prior concession
agreement (including the remaining $21.4 million note
payable balance to the City). Under the new agreement
GSF will perform routine and non-routine maintenance of
the landfill gas processing facility and routine
maintenance of the landfill gas collection system through
June 30, 2006. Future revenues from gas sales at the site”
will be shared between the City and GSF if such revenues
exceed the agreed-upon costs of providing the services.
The lawsuit was withdrawn with prejudice on
February 18, 2004.

Other. We are involved in various other legal
proceedings and environmental matters. We believe that
the resolution of such proceedings and matters, in total,
will not have a materially adverse effect on our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Submission of Matters to a
Vote of Security Holders.

Item 4.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Market for Registrants’

Common Equity and Related
Shareholder Matters.

Information relating to the market price for Holdings
common stock is set forth in Note 20 hereto, and
incorporated here by reference.

The Holdings board declared quarterly common stock
dividends totaling $1.00 per share in 2003 and $1.34 in
2002. (See "Dividends” discussion at Item 7.) At March 1,
2004, there were 50,781 holders of record of our common
stock. Holdings common stock is listed and traded on the
New York, Philadelphia and Chicago Stock Exchanges.

Duguesne Light common stock is not publicly traded;
Holdings owns all 10 shares outstanding. The Duquesne
Light board declared quarterly common stock dividends
totaling $65.0 million in 2003 and $75.0 million in 2002.




[tem 6. Selected Financial Data.

Duquesne Light Holdings (Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Items
Total operating revenues (a) $ 9028 $1,0260 $1,142.4 $1,168.8 $1,2302
Operating income (b) 150.9 957 3.8 121.8 299.8

Income (loss) from continuing operations
before taxes and cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle (b) {c) 110.9 15.1 (121.9) 171.4 261.2
Income tax expense (benefit) 17.7 (11.6) (77.4) 26.1 73.0
Income (loss) from continuing operations

(b) (¢) 93.2 26.7 (44.5) 145.3 188.2
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle (d) — (113.7) — 15.5 —_
Earnings (loss) available for common stock 175.5 (215.2) (153.9) 154.4 199.8
Basic EPS from continuing operations () 1.24 0.40 (0.80) 2.30 2.47
Basic EPS (e) 2.34 (3.28) (2.75) 2.44 2.65
Balance Sheet Items
Property, plant and equipment — net $1,4373 $1,4255 $1,4315 $1,4582 $ 1,600.7
Total assets (f) 2,540.8 2,800.8 3,235.7 3,844.2 5,616.2
Capitalization
Common shareholders’ equity $ 5754 § 4526 $ 5085 $ 7838 $1,347.8
Preferred and preference stock 70.7 93.2 85.6 90.9 121.7
Duquesne Light obligated mandatorily

redeemable preferred securities (g) — 150.0 150.0 150.0 150.0
Long-term debt (g) (h) 977.5 1,082.0 1,184.5 1,337.0 1,618.0
Total Capitalization $1,623.6 $1,777.8 $1,9286 $2,361.7 $3,0375
Dividends declared per share $ .00 § 134 $ 168 § 162 § 1.54

(a) Total operating revenues have declined in 2002 and 2003 due to the full collection of Duquesne Light's allocated CTC balance for
substantially all rate classes.

(b) Results have been negatively impacted by asset impairment and restructuring charges recorded in both 2001 and 2002. (See Notes 3
and 4.)

(c)  Results have been negatively impacted by investment impairment charges in both 2001 and 2002 (see Note 3) and positively
impacted by the gain on the sale of the synthetic fuel facilities in 2000.

(d) Adoption of unbilled revenues by Duquesne Light in 2000; change in the method of accounting for goodwill and other intangible
assets in 2002. (See Note 1.)

{e) Earnings per share were impacted by the repurchase of approximately 16 million shares of common stock in 2000 using proceeds
from the generation asset sale; earnings per share in 2002 were impacted by the public offering of approximately 17 million shares
of common stock. (See Note 5.)

(F)  Total assets in 2000 were impacted by Duguesne Light's sale of its generation assets.

(g) Adoption of SFAS No. 150 required reclassification to long-term debt. (See Note 1.)

(h) Proceeds from the generation asset sale were used to reduce long-term debt in 2000. Proceeds from the sale of AquaSource were
used to reduce long-term debt in 2003.



Duquesne Light Company

{Millions ef Dollars)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Income Statement [tems
Total operating revenues (a) $ 806.1 $ 9446 $10536 $1,0759 $1,1588
Operating income (b) 155.1 161.5 120.1 170.6 348.0
Income before cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle 69.6 75.4 53.4 77.1 151.0
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle {c) — — — 15.5 —
Net'income 69.6 75.4 53.4 926 151.0
Earnings available for common stock 66.4 72.1 50.0 89.2 147.0
Balance Sheet [tems
Property, plant and equipment — net $1,382.7 $13649 $1,3449 $1,3443 $1,4585
Total assets (d) 2,209.2 2,488.2 2,570.0 2,728 .4 42814
Capitalization
Common shareholder’s equity $ 530.1 $ 5210 % 5267 % 5395 0§ 7986
Non-redeemable preferred and

preference stock 69.7 69.8 68.2 72.1 79.5
Company obligated mandatorily redeemable

preferred securities (e) — 150.0 150.0 150.0 150.0
Long-term debt (e) (f) 857.7 959.5 1,061.1 1,060.8 1,410.8
Total Capitalization $1,457.5 $ 1,700.3 $1,8060 $1,8224 $24389

{a) Total operating revenues have declined in 2002 and 2003 due to the full collection of the allocated CTC balance for substantially

all rate classes.

b) Results have been negatively impacted by restructuring charges recorded in both 2001 and 2002. (See Note 4.)

¢) Adoption of unbilled revenues in 2000.

(

(

{d) Total assets in 2000 were impacted by the sale of the generation assets.

{e) Adoption of SFAS No. 150 required reclassification to long-term debt. (See Note 1.)
(

f}  Net generation asset sale proceeds were used to reduce long-term debt in 2000. Duquesne Light reduced its investment in the
DQE Capital cash pool to reduce long-term debt in 2003,




[tem 7. Management's Discussion and

‘Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overall Performance

2003 Compared to 2002

Our 2003 earnings available for common stock were
$175.5 million, or $2.34 basic earnings per share,
compared to a loss of $215.2 million, or $3.28 basic loss
per share, for 2002. The average shares outstanding
increased 9.4 million, or 14.3%, primarily due to our
common stock offering in June 2002.

Our earnings from continuing operations available for
common stock were $92.8 million, or $1.24 basic
earnings per share, in 2003, compared to $26.1 million, or
$0.40 basic earnings per share, in 2002, before the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle,
described below.

Duquesne Light's earnings available for common stock
were $66.4 million in 2003, compared to $72.1 million in
2002. The $5.7 million decrease in earnings at Duquesne
Light is primarily due to the following:

o Pittsburgh experienced cooler than normal weather in
the summer months of 2003, which resulted in a lower
demand for cooling. The net income impact to the
electricity delivery segment was $5.6 million of lower
earnings as compared to 2002,

e Although Duquesne Light began operating under its
new POLR arrangement (POLR I, described below) in
2002, only six rate classes became subject to the POLR
Il arrangement during 2002. All rate classes but one
became subject to POLR Il in 2003, which was the
primary reason for the $5.8 million increase in
earnings in 2003 from the electricity supply business
segment.

e Other income was $11.6 million lower in 2003,
primarily due to a $7.3 million reduction in interest
earnings. The net impact to the electricity delivery
segment was a reduction to earnings of $6.8 million as
compared to 2002.

The increase in earnings from continuing operations
at Holdings was also affected by the following:

« DQE Financial sold its limited partnership investment
in a natural gas operating partnership and recognized
an after-tax gain of $7.0 million in the first quarter of
2003. Earnings from DQE Financial also increased
$34.2 million, primarily as a result of $29.8 million of
after-tax investment and asset impairment charges
recorded in 2002, increased pipeline quality gas sales

prices and lower depreciation and amortization
expense in 2003,

o DQE Energy Services earnings increased $3.2 million
due to higher earnings at its energy facilities, as well
as a full year's income from a new synthetic fuel
facility management services contract that
commenced in the fourth quarter of 2002.

o During 2003, DQE Enterprises recorded a $1.0
million after-tax investment impairment charge
related to the write-down of two investments in
publicly traded businesses from our cost to their fair
market values as of June 30, 2003. During 2002, after-
tax investment impairment charges totaling $18.1
million were recorded to write down investments in
publicly traded businesses from our cost to their fair
market values due to an other-than-temporary decline
in their market value, and to write off investments in
privately held entities which had filed for protection
under Chapter 7 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. {See
Note 3.)

e During the first quarter of 2002, DQE
Communications recorded a $3.5 million after-tax
charge related to the write-off of a receivable from a
telecommunications customer who filed for
bankruptcy protection in March 2002. There were no
similar charges during 2003.

Included in Holdings earnings for 2003 was income
from discontinued operations of $82.7 million, or $1.10
basic earnings per share, compared to a loss of $127.6
million, or $1.95 basic loss per share, in 2002. The 2003
income included a $66.6 million tax benefit related to the
use of capital losses generated in connection with the sale
of the AquaSource subsidiaries and an $11.5 million after-
tax gain related to the increase in fair value of
AquaSource’s investor-owned utilities as a result of the
sale of these utilities to Philadelphia Suburban
Corporation (PSC). The 2002 loss from discontinued
operations included the results of both AquaSource and
Pro Am, Inc. (our former propane distribution subsidiary),
as well as a charge of $100.9 million relating to an
impairment of the long-lived assets, and a $21.2 million
loss resulting from the sale of Pro Am. (See Note 13.)

A charge of $113.7 million, or $1.73 basic loss per
share, from the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle related to the impairment of
goodwill resulting from the adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” was recorded as
of January 1, 2002. {See Note 1.)

2002 Compared to 2001

Our loss attributable to common stock was $215.2
million, or $3.28 basic loss per share, in 2002, compared




to a loss attributable to common stock of $153.9 million,
or $2.75 basic loss per share, in 2001.

QOur earnings from continuing operations available for
common stock were $26.1 million, or $0.40 basic
earnings per share in 2002, compared to a loss
attributable to common stock of $45.0 million, or $0.80
basic loss per share in 2001, an increase of $71.1 million.
The average shares outstanding increased by 9.7 million,
or 17.4%, principally due to our June 2002 common
stock offering.

Duquesne Light's earnings available for common stock
were $72.1 million in 2002, compared to $50.0 million in
2001. The $22.1 million increase in earnings at Duguesne
Light was primarily due to the following:

o Pittsburgh experienced hotter than normal weather in
the summer of 2002 due to the third warmest summer
on record in our nation's history. This resulted in
higher demand for cooling. The earnings impact on
the electricity delivery business segment was an
increase of approximately $5.4 million, compared to
2001.

» During 2002, Duquesne Light began operating under
POLR 11, which contributed $13.9 million of earnings
in 2002, compared to zero in 2001.

s 2002 debt retirements of $110 million resulted in
additional earnings of $2.0 million due to the
associated decrease in interest expense. Furthermore,
the interest rates on the variable rate debt were more
favorable in 2002, resulting in additional interest
savings.

e In 2002 and 2001, after-tax restructuring charges of
$2.3 million and $6.7 million were recorded in the
electricity delivery segment. (See Note 4.)

e Earnings from the CTC business segment declined by
$9 4 million from 2001 to 2002, following the full
collection of the CTC balance for most of our
customers in 2002.

The increase in earnings from continuing operations at
Holdings was also affected by the following:

¢ DQE Energy Services contributed $17.1 million to
earnings from continuing operations in 2002,
compared to $6.3 million in 2001. This increase was
due to a full year's income from the synthetic fuel
service contracts entered into during 2001, as well as
additional contracts entered into in 2002.

e Debt retirements during 2002 of $150 million
resulted in additional earnings of $5.1 million in
2002, due to the associated decrease in interest
expense.

o After-tax asset and investment impairment charges
totaled $47.9 million in 2002, compared to $79.8
million in 2001. Additional after-tax restructuring
charges were $0.8 million in 2002, compared to $11.1
million in 2001. (See Note 4.)

s Excluding impairment charges in both years, DQE
Financial contributed $21.8 million to earnings from
continuing operations in 2002, compared to $41.1
million in 2001. This decrease is due to the sale of a
significant portion of our affordable housing portfolio
in the first quarter of 2002, coupled with decreased
landfill gas production and lower gas sales prices
in 2002. :

In"addition to the above items, our continued focus on
cost reductions, including cost savings from our 2001 and
2002 corporate restructurings, contributed positively to
net earnings in 2002.

DQE Financial (the Financial business segment)
recorded $29.8 million and $43.7 million of after-tax asset
and investment impairment charges in 2002 and 2001.
(See Note 3.)

During 2002, DQE Enterprises (part of the “all other”
category) recorded after-tax investment impairment
charges totaling $18.1 million. During 2001, impairment
charges totaling $36.1 million after-tax were recorded.
{See Note 3.)

The loss from discontinued operations in 2002 was
$127.6 million, compared to a loss of $108.9 million from
discontinued operations in 2001. After-tax impairment
charges relating to the AquaSource discontinued
operations totaling $100.9 million were recorded in 2002.
A $21.2 million loss on disposal relating to Pro Am was
recorded in 2002, as a result of the sale of the propane
business on December 13, 2002 (See Note 13.)

After-tax impairment charges of $99.7 million related .
to AquaSource were recorded in 2001.

A charge of $113.7 million was recorded effective as -
of January 1, 2002 related to the cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle for the impairment of
goodwill related to these discontinued operations
resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 142. (See
Note 1.)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY
BUSINESS SEGMENT

We report the following business segments:
(1) Duquesne Light's transmission and distribution
of electricity (electricity delivery business segment),
(2) Duquesne Light's supply of electricity (electricity
supply business segment), (3) Duquesne Light's collection
of transition costs (CTC business segment), (4) DQE
Energy Services' development, operation and
maintenance of energy and, for a single customer,
synthetic fuel facilities (Energy Services business
segment), and (5) DQE Financial's collection and
processing of landfill gas and management of structured
finance and alternative energy investments (Financial
business segment). Effective January 1, 2003, our
subsidiary, DQE Enterprises, Inc., no longer meets the




requirements of SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”
Therefore, we no longer report an Enterprises business
segment. We also report an "all other” category to include
our other subsidiaries below the quantitative threshold for
disclosure, and corporate administrative functions,
financing, and insurance services for our various affiliates.
Operating revenues in our “all other” category are
comprised of (i) revenues from DQE Communications,
(ii) revenue from an energy services investment held by
DQE Enterprises until its sale in 2002, and (iii) revenues
from our bottled water business, the Pittsburgh Airport
energy facility and rental property until their sales

in 2001,

We have restated prior periods, where appropriate, to
present segment information consistent with the manner
that is currently used by management. Note 19 shows the
financial results of each principal business segment in
tabular form. Following is a discussion of these results.

2003 Compared to 2002

Electricity Delivery Business Segment. The electricity
delivery business segment reported $46.1 million of
earnings in 2003, compared to $55.3 million in 2002. The
2002 earnings consisted of $57.6 million before an after-
tax restructuring charge of $2.3 million. Excluding the
restructuring charge, income from the electricity delivery
business segment was $11.5 million, or 20.0%, lower in
2003, primarily due to lower operating revenues and
higher operating expenses in 2003.

Operating revenues for this business segment are
primarily derived from the delivery of electricity,
including related excise taxes. Sales to residential and
commercial customers are primarily influenced by
weather conditions. Warmer summer and colder winter
seasons lead to increased customer use of electricity for
cooling and heating. Commercial sales also are affected
by regional development. Sales to industrial customers are
influenced by national and global economic and
competitive conditions.

Operating revenues decreased by $11.6 million, or
3.3%, compared to 2002. The decrease is primarily due to
a 3.0% decline in megawatt-hours (MWh) delivered in
2003, that resulted in a $7.6 million decline in revenue.

Residential and commercial sales decreased 4.2% and
1.7%, compared to 2002. Reduced air conditioning loads
during the cooler summer more than offset increased
heating use during Pittsburgh’s colder winter in 2003.
Industrial sales, which are less sensitive to weather, also
decreased by 4.2%, due to lower sales to industrial
customers in the durable goods manufacturing sector.
The following table sets forth MWh delivered to electric
utility customers.

MWh Delivered
(In Thousands)

2003 2002 Change

Residential 3,759 3,924 (4.2)%
Commercial 6,415 6,528 (1.7)%
Industrial 3,189 3,328 (4.2)%
MWh Delivered 13,363 13,780 {3.0)%

In addition, revenue declined $5.5 million due to
lower revenue recovery of taxes other than income taxes
through the state tax adjustment surcharge (STAS) as
compared to 2002.

Operating expenses for the electricity delivery
business segment are primarily made up of costs to
operate and maintain the transmission and distribution
system; meter reading, billing and collection costs;
customer service; administrative expenses; and non-
income taxes, such as gross receipts, property and payroll
taxes. Operating expenses increased by $1.2 million, or
0.8%, compared to 2002. In 2003, pension expense
increased $15.4 million, and we recognized a $4.9 million
pre-tax charge related to vacant leased office space. These
significant increases in expense were partially offset by a
$4.3 million reduction in the gross receipts tax expense
recognized, due to the reduction in the revenue recovery
of this item through the STAS. Costs allocated from
Duquesne Light to its affiliates increased $3.2 million
from 2002, which reduced the net expenses at Duquesne
Light. In addition, compared to 2002, savings of at least
$3 million in each of the following areas were achieved:
bad debt, legal and meter reading. Other cost savings
were achieved in 2003 as a result of the fourth quarter of
2002 restructuring.

Other income includes interest income on invested
cash and intercompany loans, as well as gains and losses
recognized on the sale of certain assets. Other income
decreased $11.6 million, or 36.4%, compared to 2002,
due primarily to a $7.3 million reduction in interest
earnings. In addition, other income was higher in 2002
due to a $1.9 million pre-tax gain recognized on the sale
of securities and a building during 2002,

Interest and other charges include interest on long-
term debt, other interest and preferred stock dividends of
Duquesne Light. Interest and other charges decreased
$8.8 million, or 12.2%, due to (i) $110.0 million of debt
retirements in August 2002, which reduced interest
expense by $5.0 million, (ii) $100.0 miilion of debt
retirements in August 2003, which reduced interest
expense $3.1 million, and (iii) favorable interest rates on
variable rate, tax-exempt debt.

Electricity Supply Business Segment. During the first quarter
of 2002, Duquesne Light began operating under POLR I,
which extends the POLR service (and the PUC-approved
rates for the supply of electricity) beyond the final CTC




collection through December 31, 2004. POLR Il also
permits Duquesne Light, following CTC collection for
each rate class, an average margin per MWh supplied.
The actual margin earned depends on the mix of rate
classes and the number of customers participating in
POLRII. Prior to the start of the POLR Il arrangement,
our initial POLR arrangement (POLR I) was designed to
be income neutral.

In 2003, the electricity supply business segment
reported earnings of $19.7 million, compared with
earnings of $13.9 million in 2002. The increase of $5.8
million, or 41.7%, is primarily due to all significant rate
classes being subject to the POLR Il arrangement for all
of 2003. In contrast, during 2002, these classes became
subject to the POLR I] arrangement at different times, as
their CTC was fully collected.

Operating revenues for this business segment are
derived primarily from the supply of electricity for
delivery to retail customers and the supply of electricity
to wholesale customers. Retail energy requirements
fluctuate as the number of customers participating in
POLR changes. Energy requirements for residential and
commercial customers are also influenced by weather
conditions; temperature extremes lead to increased
customer use of electricity for cooling and heating.
Commercial energy requirements are also affected by
regional development. Energy requirements for industrial
customers are primarily influenced by national and global
economic conditions.

Short-term sales to other utilities are made at market
rates. Fluctuations result primarily from excess daily
energy deliveries to Duquesne Light's electricity delivery
system.

Operating revenues decreased $22.0 million, or 4.7%,
compared to 2002. The decrease is due to customers’
shopping for their generation supply, causing a decline in
the percentage of customer load delivered through our
POLR arrangements.

The following tables set forth MW h supplied for
POLR customers.

MWh Supplied
(In Thousands)

2003
POLR1 POLR I Total
Residential 57 2,673 2,730
Commercial 2472 4,110 4,352
Industrial 1,641 931 2,572
MWh Supplied 1,940 7714 9,654
POLR Share (MWh basis) 72%

MWh Supplied
{In Thousands)

2002
POLRI POLR Il Total
Residential 699 2,045 2,744
Commercial 2,355 2,512 4,867
Industrial 2,433 618 3,051
MWh Supplied 5,487 5175 10,662
POLR Share (MWh basis) 77%

Operating expenses for the electricity supply business
segment consist of costs to obtain energy for our POLR
service and gross receipts tax, both of which fluctuate in
direct relation to operating revenues. Operating expenses
decreased $32.1 million, or 7.2%, compared to 2002
primarily due to a decrease in the MWh supplied for the
reasons described above.

CTC Business Segment. In its final restructuring order
issued in the second quarter of 1998, the PUC
determined that Duquesne Light should recover most of
the above-market costs of its generation assets, including
plant and regulatory assets, through the collection of the
competitive transition charge (CTC) from electric utility
customers. On January 18, 2001, the PUC issued an order
approving our final accounting for the proceeds of our
April 2000 generation asset sale, including the net
recovery of sale-related transaction costs.

For the CTC business segment, operating revenues are
derived by billing electricity delivery customers for
generation-related transition costs. Duquesne Light is
allowed to earn an 11% pre-tax return on the net-of-tax
CTC balance. As revenues are billed to customers on a
monthly basis, we amortize the CTC balance and
recognize the associated gross receipts tax expense. The
resulting decrease in the CTC balance causes a decline in
the return earned by Duquesne Light.

The CTC business segment reported earnings of $0.6
million in 2003, compared to earnings of $2.9 million in
2002, a decrease of $2.3 million, or 79.3%. Various
customer rate classes had their CTC fully collected
between March and September 2002. As of December 31,
2002, the CTC balance had been fully collected for
approximately 95% of Duquesne Light's customers.
Collection of the CTC balance continued through
December 31, 2003, at which time the CTC balance had
been fully collected for all but one customer class which
represents less than 1% of Duquesne Light's customers.
Dugquesne Light anticipates this class will continue to
receive generation through POLR 1 at least through the
end of 2004.

The full collection of the CTC balance for most of the
rate classes has caused a corresponding decrease in the
operating revenues, operating expenses, depreciation and



amortization expense and the net income derived from
the CTC business segment.

Energy Services Business Segment. The Energy Services
business segment reported earnings of $20.3 million in
2003, compared to earnings of $17.1 million in 2002, an
increase of $3.2 million, or 18.7%. This increase resulted
primarily from higher earnings at the energy facilities as
well as a full year of income from a new synthetic fuel
facility management services contract that commenced in
the fourth quarter of 2002.

Operating revenues for this segment are primarily
derived from the facility management services for
industrial, airport and synthetic fuel customers. Operating
revenues increased $8.8 million, or 16.1%, compared to
2002. This increase is principally due to higher synthetic
fuel production related to the new services contract
discussed above.

Operating expenses consist of the operating and
maintenance costs to manage the facilities, as well as
general corporate overhead. Operating expenses
increased $3.8 million, or 13.0%, compared to 2002,
primarily due to higher employee compensation costs and
additional operating expenses associated with the new
services contract. These were partially offset by decreased
operating costs at the energy facilities.

Financial Business Segment. The Financial business
segment reported earnings of $33.2 million in 2003,
compared to a loss of $8.0 million in 2002, which
consisted of income of $21.8 million before after-tax
impairment charges of $29.8 million. Absent the
impairment charges, earnings increased $11.4 million, or
52.3%. This increase resulted primarily from a $7.0
million after-tax gain on the sale of an investment in a
natural gas operating partnership, higher earnings due to
higher sales prices for processed landfill gas and $3.4
million of increased earnings from the synthetic fuel
investment.

Operating revenues in this business segment are
primarily derived from the sale of landfill gas. Operating
revenues increased $5.8 million, or 26.4%, compared to
2002. This increase is primarily due to higher sales prices
for pipeline quality landfill gas which increased 61.7% as
the pipeline quality production volume remained
relatively consistent between the years.

Operating expenses consist of various costs to operate
and maintain the landfill gas sites, as well as expenses
related to synthetic fuel and natural gas investments.
Operating expenses increased $1.9 million, or 4.4%,
compared to 2002. Expenses related to our synthetic fuel
investment increased $5.5 million from 2002 due to
higher production volumes in 2003, while general
corporate overhead expenses decreased $1.8 million and
landfill related costs decreased $1.2 million.

Depreciation and amortization expense consists of the
depreciation of landfill gas equipment and gas rights. The
decrease of $5.9 million, or 48.0%, compared to 2002,
was primarily due to the write-off of the Fresh Kills
landfill gas investment as of December 31, 2002,

Other income consists of income from structured lease
and affordable housing investments and gains recognized
on the sale of investments. Other income increased $6.7
million, or 29.5%, as compared to 2002, primarily due to
a pre-tax gain of $10.8 million on the sale of the limited
partnership investment previously discussed. This gain
was partially offset by a $3.0 million scheduted decline in
earnings from structured lease investments.

Income taxes consist of our provision for federal
income taxes as well as the tax credits generated from our
synthetic fuel, landfill gas, affordable housing and (until
their expiration in 2002) natural gas investments. Our
income tax benefit decreased $5.0 million or 14.5% from
2002, primarily due to the increase in our pre-tax
earnings, which caused a corresponding change in our
provision for federal income taxes.

Our pre-tax earnings in 2003 were $3.6 million,
compared to a pre-tax loss of $12.8 million in 2002, prior
to the impairment charges, which are shown net of tax.
This increase in our pre-tax earnings caused a decrease to
our income tax benefit of $5.7 million.

Income tax credits generated in 2003 were $30.8
million, compared to the $30.2 million of tax credits in
2002, however the source of the income tax credits
changed between the years. During 2003, the income tax
credits generated from our synthetic fuel investment
increased $7.0 million, while the credits from our natural
gas investments decreased $2.7 million, due to their
expiration at the end of 2002. The tax credits generated
from our landfill gas investments decreased $3.2 million,
primarily due to some landfill sites that were tax credit
qualified only through 2002. The tax credits from our
affordable housing investments decreased $0.5 million
from 2002.

All Other. The all other category reported a loss of
$25.2 million in 2003, which consisted of a loss of $23.8
million before an after-tax impairment charge of $1.0
million and preferred dividends of $0.4 million. This is
compared to a loss of $51.9 million in 2002, which
consisted of a loss of $32.4 million before after-tax
impairment charges of $18.1 million, after-tax
restructuring charges of $0.8 million and preferred
dividends of $0.6 million. Absent the impairment and
restructuring charges (discussed previously) and the
preferred dividends, the improvement of $8.6 million was
primarily due to a $3.5 million after-tax charge, or $5.9
million pre-tax, recorded in 2002 related to the write-off
of a receivable from a telecommunications customer who




filed for bankruptcy, and lower revolving credit
agreement fees and interest charges in 2003.

Operating expenses consist of expenses to operate and
maintain our fiber optic based network, expenses to
manage our electronic commerce and energy technology
portfolio and general corporate expenses. In 2003,
operating expenses decreased $14.5 million, or 54.1%,
compared to 2002. This decrease is primarily due to the
$5.9 million pre-tax receivable write-off discussed above.
Expenses also decreased $3.4 million due to the lower fees
discussed above and the sale of an energy services
investment in the second quarter of 2002. In addition, the
capital stock tax liability was reduced by $5.4 million.

Interest and other charges include interest on long-
term debt, other interest, and, effective July 1, 2003,
dividends on Holdings preferred stock. Interest expense
decreased $4.3 million, or 14.4%, compared to 2002. This
decrease was primarily due to lower intercompany loan
balances in 2003.

2002 Compared to 2001

Electricity Delivery Business Segment. The electricity
delivery business segment reported $55.3 million of
earnings in 2002, consisting of $57.6 million before an
after-tax restructuring charge of $2.3 million, previously
discussed. This is compared to $37.7 million of earnings
in 2001, consisting of $44.4 million before an after-tax
restructuring charge of $6.7 million. Excluding the
restructuring charges in both years, earnings from the
electricity delivery business segment were $13.2 million,
or 29.7%, higher in 2002, due to the hotter than normal
summer weather in 2002 and lower interest and operating
costs, as discussed below.

Operating revenues increased by $30.4 million, or
9.5%, compared to 2001. The increase can be primarily
attributed to a $15.9 million increase in 2002 in gross
receipts taxes that are collected through revenue. The
largest component increase was in the Pennsylvania
revenue neutral reconciliation (RNR) tax rate, which
became effective January 1, 2002. Electric distribution
companies such as Duquesne Light are permitted to
recover this cost from consumers on a current basis. In
addition, there was a 5.1% increase in MWh sales to
customers as compared to 2001, which caused a $9.6
million increase in revenues.

The hotter than normal summer temperatures in the
Pittsburgh region in 2002 contributed to residential and
commercial sales increasing 9.5% and 4.6%, compared to
2001, in response to higher cooling demands. Industrial
sales, which are less sensitive to weather, also increased
by 1.4%, due to higher sales to industrial customers in the
primary metals sector.

The following table sets forth MWh delivered to

electric utility customers.

MWh Delivered
(In Thousands)
2002 2001 Change
Residential 3,924 3,584 9.5%
Commercial 6,528 6,241 4.6%
Industrial 3,328 3,283 1.4%
MWh Delivered 13,780 13,108 5.1%

Operating expenses increased by $8.2 million, or
5.5%, compared to 2001, primarily due to the increase in
gross receipts tax expense of approximately $14.3 million
from the increased RNR in 2002. This increase was
partially offset by the cost savings from corporate
restructurings that occurred in the fourth quarters of both
2001 and 2002 and other cost reduction initiatives, which
continue to generate incremental cost savings.

Other income decreased $7.2 million, or 18.4%,
compared to 2001, primarily due to lower earnings on
invested cash as a result of lower interest rates in 2002,

In 2002, there was $6.0 million, or 7.7%, less interest
and other charges primarily due to debt retirements
during August 2002 totaling $110 million, which reduced
interest expense by $3.4 million. In addition, there were
lower interest rates on the variable rate, tax-exempt debt
in 2002,

Electricity Supply Business Segment. In 2002, the electricity
supply business segment reported earnings of $13.9
million, compared with zero earnings in 2001. For the
period April 28, 2000 through December 31, 2001, this
segment's financial results reflected POLR [, which was
designed to be income neutral to Duquesne Light. During
the first quarter of 2002, Duquesne Light began operating
under POLR 1.

Operating revenues increased $41.9 million, or 9.7%,
compared to 2001. The increase is due to an increase in
the average generation rate charged to customers,
partially offset by a decrease in the percentage of
customers who received electricity through our POLR
arrangements.

The following table sets forth MWh supplied for
POLR customers.




MWh Supplied
(In Thousands)

2002 2001
POLRI POLRII Total POLRI
Residential 699 2,045 2,744 2,348
Commercial 2,355 2,512 4,867 5,367
Industrial 2,433 618 3,051 3,079
MWh Supplied 5,487 5,175 10,662 10,794
POLR Customers (MWh basis) 77% 82%

Operating expenses increased $18.3 million, or 4.3%,
compared to 2001, despite a decrease in the MWh
supplied. The increase in expense is due to the higher rate
charged by our supplier under POLR 11

CTC Business Segment In 2002, the CTC business
segment reported earnings of $2.9 million compared to
earnings of $12.3 million in 2001, a decrease of $9.4
million, or 76.4%.

Operating revenues decreased $181.3 million, or
59.7%, due to the full collection of the allocated CTC
balance as of December 31, 2002, for most of our
customers as well as scheduled decreases in the average
CTC rate charged to customers from 2001 to 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, the CTC balance had been fully
collected for approximately 95% of Duquesne Light's
customers, representing approximately 87% of the MWh
sales for the year.

Operating expenses consist solely of gross receipts
tax, which fluctuates in direct relation to operating
revenues. Operating expenses decreased $8.1 million, or
60%, compared to 2001,

Depreciation and amortization expense consists of the
amortization of transition costs. There was a decrease of
$158.7 million, or 58.5%, compared to 2001, primarily
due to the full collection of the allocated CTC balance
for most customers.

Energy Services Business Segment. The Energy Services
business segment reported earnings of $17.1 million in
2002, compared to earnings of $6.3 million in 2001, an
increase of $10.8 million, or 171.4%. This increase
resulted primarily from a full year of earnings from
synthetic fuel service contracts that were entered into
during 2001 and new contracts entered into in 2002.

Operating revenues increased $23.4 million, or 74.8%,
compared to 2001. This increase is primarily due to the
increased facility management revenue of $17.4 million
from the additional synthetic fuel service contracts.

Operating expenses increased $1.6 milltion, or 5.8%,
compared to 2001. An increase of $8.6 million resulted
from the additional synthetic fuel facility management
service contracts, and was partially offset by decreased
overhead costs.

Other income consists of income from early
completion bonuses, construction management fee
income and gains recognized on the sale of assets. Other
income decreased $5.3 million, or 67.1%, compared to
2001 due primarily to gains recognized on sales of
alternative fuel property of $2.6 million and recognition
of an early completion bonus and construction
management fee of $2.6 million on a new alternative fuel
facility in 2001.

Financial Business Segment. The Financial business
segment reported a loss of $8.0 million in 2002,
consisting of income of $21.8 million before after-tax
impairment charges of $29.8 million. This is compared to
a loss of $2.6 million in 2001, which consisted of income
of $41.1 million befare after-tax impairment charges of
$43.7 million. (See Note 3.) Absent these impairment
charges, income decreased $19.3 million, or 47.0%. The
decrease resuited primarily from $9.8 million fewer tax
credits generated in 2002, due primarily to the sale of the
majority of the affordable housing portfolio in 2001. In
addition, earnings from the structured lease investments
decreased $3.4 million after-tax due to scheduled declines
in the earnings of these investments. Lower landfill gas
production and lower gas sales prices in 2002 also
contributed to the decline in income.

Operating revenues decreased $7.8 million, or 26.2%,
compared to 2001. This decrease is primarily due to lower
landfill gas production and lower landfill gas sales prices
in 2002 that reduced revenues by $3.0 million and $2.0
million, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased
$2.2 million, or 21.8%, compared to 2001. This increase
resulted from additional depreciation on portions of the
Fresh Kills landfill gas investment.

Other income decreased $5.8 million, or 20.3%, as
compared to 2001, primarily due to a $5.2 million
decrease in earnings from structured lease investments.

Interest and other charges include interest on long-
term debt and other interest. There was a decrease of
$4.3 million, or 71.7%, compared to 2001, due to the
retirement of $85.0 million of term loan debt in 2001.

Qur income tax benefit decreased $7.0 million, or
16.8%, from 2001. This decrease is due to a decrease in
the total income tax credits generated, primarily from our
affordable housing investments, partially offset by an
increase in the federal income tax benefit recorded related
to our pre-tax losses in both years. The income tax credits
recognized declined significantly, from $40.0 million in
2001 to $30.2 million in 2002.

The income tax credits generated from our affordable
housing investments decreased $8.5 million due to the
sale of a significant portion of our remaining portfolio in
2002. Tax credits from our synthetic fuel investment
increased $5.8 million, while credits from our landfill gas




and natural gas investments decreased $3.8 million and
$3.3 million from 2001.

Our pre-tax loss in 2002 was $12.8 million, prior to
the impairment charges, which are shown net of tax,
compared to a pre-tax loss of $0.5 million in 2001, prior
to the impairment charges in that year. As the pre-tax loss
increased in 2002, there was a corresponding $4.3 million
increase in the federal income tax benefit recorded.

All Other. The all other category reported a loss of
$51.9 million in 2002, consisting of a loss of $32.4 million
before after-tax impairment charges of $18.1 million,
after-tax restructuring charges of $0.8 million and
preferred dividends of $0.6 million. This is compared to a
loss of $96.6 million in 2001, which consisted of a loss of
$48.9 million before after-tax impairment charges of
$36.1 million, after-tax restructuring charges of $11.1
million and preferred dividends of $0.5 million. Absent
the impairment charges, restructuring charges and the
preferred dividends, this improvement of $16.5 million
was primarily due to lower interest expense in 2002 and
the $4.9 million after-tax loss on the sale of the bottled
water business recognized in 2001.

Operating revenues are comprised of revenues from
DQE Communications and, until their sales in 2001,
revenues from our bottled water business, the Pittsburgh
Airport energy facility and rental property. Operating
revenues decreased $30.1 million, or 82.0%, compared to
2001, due to decreased revenues of $8.1 million from the
sale of our bottled water business, $8.1 million from sales-
type leases recognized in 2001 by DQE Communications,
$7.8 million from the sale of the energy facility and $4.4
million from the sale of rental property.

Operating expenses consist of expenses to operate and
maintain our fiber optic based network and, until their
sales, expenses to operate our bottled water business, the
energy facility and the rental properties. In 2002,
operating expenses decreased $20.3 million, or 43.1%,
compared to 2001. This decrease was primarily due to an
$8.4 million decrease in expenses following the sale of the
bottled water business, $5.7 million following the sale of
the energy facility, $4.6 million following the sale of the
rental properties and a decrease in expenses from the cost
savings associated with the 2001 restructuring. Offsetting
this was a $5.9 million increase in expenses in 2002 due to
the write-off of a receivable from a telecommunications
customer who filed for bankruptcy and a $1.9 million
increase in expenses associated with the write-off of the
costs associated with the previously proposed generating
station.

Interest expense decreased $18.5 million, or 38.3%, in
2002. This decrease was primarily due to lower interest
rates, lower short-term borrowing levels and the
retirement of $150.0 million of floating rate notes in
January 2002.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires us to make estimates
and assumptions with respect to values and conditions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the
date of the financial statements. The reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period also
may be affected by the estimates and assumptions we are
required to make. We evaluate these estimates on an
ongoing basis, using historical experience, consultation
with experts and other methods we consider reasonable in
the particular circumstances. Nevertheless, actual results
may differ significantly from our estimates.

In preparing our financial statements and related
disclosures, we have adopted the following accounting
policies which management believes are particularly
important to the financial statements and that require the
use of estimates and assumptions in the financial
preparation process.

Accounting for the Effects of Regulation. Duquesne Light
prepares its financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation,” which differs in certain
respects from the application of accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America by
non-regulated businesses. In general, SFAS No. 71
recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises
should reflect the economic effects of regulation. As a
result, a regulated utility is required to defer the
recognition of costs (a regulatory asset) if it is probable
that, through the rate-making process, there will be a
corresponding increase in future rates. Accordingly,
Duquesne Light defers certain costs, which will be
amortized over future periods. To the extent that
collection of such costs is no longer probable as a result
of changes in regulation or competitive position, the
associated regulatory assets are charged to expense.

Unbilled Energy Revenues. Duquesne Light records
revenues related to the sale of energy when delivery is
made to customers. However, the determination of such
sales to individual customers is based on the reading of
their meters, which Duquesne Light reads on a systematic
basis throughout the month. At the end of each month,
Duquesne Light estimates the amounts delivered to
customers since the date of the last meter reading and
records the corresponding unbilled revenue. Duquesne
Light estimates this unbilled revenue each month based
on daily volumes, estimated customer usage by class,
delivery losses and applicable customer rates based on
regression analyses reflecting significant historical trends




and experience. Customer accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2003, and 2002, include unbilled revenues
of $29.7 million and $31.9 million.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Investments. We evaluate
long-lived assets (including other intangibles) of
identifiable business activities and investments for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate, in management’s judgment, that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable. In addition to
those long-lived assets and investments for which
impairment charges were recorded (see Note 3), others
were reviewed for which no impairment was required. For
long-lived assets to be held and used, these computations
used judgments and assumptions inherent in
management's estimate of undiscounted future cash flows
to determine recoverability of the assets. It is possible that
a computation under a “held for sale” situation for certain
of these long-lived assets could result in a significantly
different assessment because of market conditions,
specific transaction terms or a buyer's different viewpoint
of future cash flows. For investments, we considered our
investee’s cash on-hand, fundraising abilities, customers,
contracts and overall ability to continue as a going
concern.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plan Assumptions. We
provide pension benefit plans covering substantially all of
our full-time employees. We also provide postretirement
benefits for some retired employees. The retiree medical
benefits terminate when retirees reach age 65. We
account for these benefits in accordance with SFAS No.
87, "Emplayers’ Accounting for Pensions” and SFAS No.
106, "Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions.” We record amounts related to our
pension and other postretirement benefit plans based on
actuarial valuations. Inherent in those valuations are key
assumptions including discount rates, expected returns on
plan assets, compensation increases, and health care cost
trend rates. These actuarial assumptions are reviewed
annually and modified as appropriate. Changes in these
assumptions could have a significant effect on our
noncash pension income or expense or on our
postretirement benefit costs. The effect of changes in
these assumptions is generally recorded or amortized over
future periods.

We discounted our future pension and other
postretirement plan obligations using a rate of 6.25% as
of December 31, 2003, compared to 6.75% as of
December 31, 2002. We determine the discount rate by
considering the yield rates on corporate high-grade
bonds, including relative year-over-year changes. Both
the pension and other postretirement plan obligations and
related expense increase as the discount rate
is reduced.
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The assumed rate of return on plan assets in the
pension plans is the weighted average of long-term
returns forecast for the type of investments held by the
plans. As the expected rate of return on plan assets
increases, the pension plan expense decreases, however
the postretirement plan expense is unaffected as this plan
has no assets. For 2003, the assumed rate of return on plan
assets in the pension plans was 7.5%. We have revised
this assumption for 2004, and will assume a rate of return
on plan assets in the pension plans of 8.0%.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the liabilities for the postretirement plans. The
health care trend assumption used in the development of
the fiscal 2003 postretirement benefit plan expense was
10.5% for fiscal year 2003, decreasing to an ultimate rate
of 5.25% in 2014. In 2003, we modified the
postretirement plan design, which provides for greater
cost-sharing by the participants beginning in 2004,

We believe the assumptions used in recording
obligations under the plans are reasonable based on our
prior experience, market conditions, and the advice of
plan actuaries. See Note 14 for information about these
assumptions, actual performance, amortization of
investment and other actuarial gains and losses and
calculated plan costs for 2003, 2002 and 2001. As of
December 31, 2003, the fair value of the pension plan
assets of $679.0 million represented approximately 98%
of the projected benefit obligation of our pension plans.

Primarily because of the amortization of previous
years' net investment gains, our pension expense for 2003,
2002 and 2001 was negative, resulting in an increase in
net income in each year. Our expense or (credit) for
actual pension benefits in future periods will depend upon
actual returns on plan assets and the key assumptions we
use for future periods. Our current estimate for 2004 is an
increase in our pre-tax pension expense of approximately
$4 million compared to 2003. This increase reflects,
among other factors, actual losses on the pension fund
assets in both 2002 and 2001, compared with an expected
annual asset return assumption of 7.5% in each of the
years. Although the actual return on plan assets in 2003 of
$120.2 million significantly exceeded the assumed rate of
return on plan assets of 7.5%, it does not fully mitigate
the shortfall in the actual return on plan assets over the
past few years.

Pursuant to the actuarial valuations that were
performed, we were not required to make cash
contributions to our pension plans in 2003, nor will we be
required to do so in 2004. However, Duquesne Light has
an obligation to contribute approximately $32.1 million
to the pension plans over future years. (See
Note 14.)

Income Taxes. In accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” we use the liability



method in computing deferred taxes on all differences
between book and tax bases of assets and liabilities. These
book/tax differences occur when events and transactions
recognized for financial reporting purposes are not
recognized in the same period for tax purposes. The
deferred tax liability or asset is also adjusted in the period
of enactment for the effect of changes in tax laws or rates.
Qur overall effective tax rate is significantly reduced by
the income tax credits generated from our synthetic fuel,
landfill gas and affordable housing investments.

We file a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return
with our subsidiaries, all of whom participate in an
intercompany tax sharing agreement which generally
provides that taxable income for each subsidiary be
calculated as if it filed a separate return.

Duquesne Light recognizes a regulatory asset for
deferred tax liabilities that are expected to be recovered
through rates. The difference in the provision for deferred
income taxes related to depreciation of electric plant in
service and the amount that otherwise would be recorded
under generally accepted accounting principles is deferred
and included in regulatory assets on the consolidated
balance sheets. (See Note 1.)

Contingent Liabilities. We establish reserves for estimated
loss contingencies when it is management's assessment
that a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Revisions to contingent liabilities are reflected
in income in the period in which different facts or
information become known, or circumstances change,
that affect the previous assumptions with respect to the
likelihood or amount of loss. Reserves for contingent
liabilities are based upon management’s assumptions and
estimates, advice of legal counsel, or other third parties
regarding the probable outcomes of the matter. Should
the ultimate outcome differ from the assumptions and
estimates, revisions to the estimated reserves for
contingent liabilities would be recognized. Such
contingent liabilities include, but are not limited to,
restructuring liabilities (see Note 4), income tax matters
{see Note 10), and other commitments and contingencies
{see Note 12).

DIVIDENDS

Once all dividends on Holdings Preferred Stock,
Series A (Convertible), $100 liquidation preference per
share (Holdings preferred stock), have been paid,
dividends may be paid on Holdings common stock as
permitted by law and as declared by the board of
directors. As a holding company, substantially all of
Holdings' assets shown on its consolidated balance sheets
are held by subsidiaries. Accordingly, Holdings' earnings
and cash flow, and Holdings ability to meet its
obligations, are largely dependent upon the earnings and
cash flows of such subsidiaries and the distribution or
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other payment of such earnings in the form of dividends,
loans or advances, and repayment of loans and advances
from Holdings. Holdings' subsidiaries are separate and
distinct legal entities and have no obligation to pay any
amounts due on securities or to make any funds available
for such payments. Holdings' practice has been for its
subsidiaries to dividend their earnings on a quarterly
basis, if cash is available. Holdings' subsidiaries’ ability to
make dividend payments or other distributions may be
restricted by their obligations to holders of their
outstanding debt and preferred securities and to their
creditors, the availability of earnings and the needs of
their businesses.

If Duquesne Light cannot pay common dividends, we
may not be able to pay dividends on our common stock
or preferred stock. Payments of dividends on Duquesne
Light's common stock may be restricted by Duquesne
Light's obligations to holders of preferred and preference
stock pursuant to Duquesne Light's articles of
incorporation and by obligations of a Duquesne Light
subsidiary to holders of its securities. (See Note 15.) No
dividends or distributions may be made on Duquesne
Light's common stock if Duguesne Light has not paid
dividends on its preferred or preference stock. Dividends
on Duquesne Light stock may also be effectively limited
by the terms of certain financing agreements. Further, the
aggregate amount of Duquesne Light's common stock
dividend payments or distributions may not exceed
certain percentages of net income if the ratio of total
common shareholder’s equity to total capitalization is less
than specified percentages. During 2003, 2002 and 2001,
Duquesne Light paid dividends on common stock of
$69.0 million, $63.7 million and $56.0 million.

Holdings has continuously paid dividends on its
common stock since 1953. Annual dividends per share,
paid quarterly, were $1.00, $1.51 and $1.68 for the years
2003, 2002 and 2001. Most recently, in the first quarter
of 2004 the board of directors declared a quarterly
dividend of $0.25 per share (payable on April 1, 2004 to
holders of record on March 10, 2004). The board
regularly evaluates the dividend policy and sets the
amount each quarter. The level of dividends will continue
to be influenced by many factors such as, among other
things, earnings, financial condition and cash flows from
subsidiaries, as well as general economic and competitive
conditions.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Capital Expenditures

Continuing Operations. In 2003, 2002 and 2001,
Duquesne Light spent $76.1 million, $72.5 million and
$59.1 million for electric utility construction. In addition,
Holdings spent $1.9 million, $11.3 million and $61.3
million on capital expenditures relating to our other




business lines and other investments. We estimate that
during 2004, 2005 and 2006 Duquesne Light will spend,
excluding the allowance for funds used during
construction, approximately $80 million, $80 million and
$78 million for electric utility construction related to its
transmission and distribution infrastructure, and Holdings
will spend $3 million, $4 million and $3 million for
construction by our other businesses.

Discontinued Operations. In 2003, 2002 and 2001,
Holdings spent $16.8 million, $39.9 million and $39.5
million for water utility construction.

Asset Dispositions

Continuing Operations. In 2003, we sold a limited
partnership investment in a natural gas operating
partnership for $18.5 million and recognized an after-tax
gain of $7.0 million. We received $2.5 million for the sale
of stock in three publicly traded companies and
recognized an after-tax gain of $0.6 million. Duquesne
Light also sold its 530% investment in a small mining
operation for $1.4 million ($1.0 million of which was a
note receivable), which resulted in an after-tax gain of
$0.4 million.

In 2002, we sold a significant portion of our remaining
affordable housing portfolio, receiving proceeds of
approximately $17 million, which approximated book
value. Duquesne Light received $1.3 million from the sale
of securities and recognized an after-tax gain of $0.8
million. Duquesne Light received $1.3 million from the
sale of a building and recognized an after-tax gain of $0.3
million. We also received $2.3 million for the sale of an
electronic commerce investment, which approximated
book value.

In 2001, we sold a portion of our affordable housing
portfolio, receiving proceeds of approximately $34
million ($3.4 million at Duquesne Light), which
approximated book value. We also sold an office building,
receiving proceeds of $18.5 million, which approximated
book value.

Also in 2001, the Allegheny County Airport Authority
purchased the Pittsburgh International Airport energy
facility from a DQE Enterprises subsidiary, and entered
into a 15-year operations and maintenance agreement
regarding the facility with DQE Energy Services. The
transaction resulted in an after-tax gain of $8.4 million.

We sold our bottled water assets in 2001. The sale
resulted in an after-tax loss of approximately $15 million,
of which $10.0 million had been recorded in December
2000. We also received $4.3 million for the sale of other
non-strategic assets.

Discontinued Operations. On July 31, 2003, AquaSource
closed the sale of its investor-owned utilities (and certain
related contract operations) to PSC, receiving cash
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proceeds of approximately $195 million, including
approximately $5 million related to working capital. PSC
also assumed $10.4 million of debt associated with the
business. The final purchase price will be determined
once various purchase price adjustments are applied.
These adjustments will be based on the pre-closing
achievement of specific performance measures related to
revenue, rate base and customer connections, as well as
working capital. In October 2003, AquaSource returned
$2.8 million to PSC related to purchase price adjustments
attributable to the difference between the estimated and
proposed final closing purchase price. In November 2003,
AquaSource returned $2.0 million to PSC related to
purchase price adjustments and working capital. The
maximum remaining purchase price adjustment that could
result is approximately $12 million. However, we have
been unable to resolve the purchase price issues and, with
PSC, will be appointing an arbitrator. We do not expect
that any additional purchase price adjustments will have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or results
of operations.

On April 30, 2003, AquaSource closed the sale of a
water utility subsidiary to California Water Services
Croup, receiving $7.5 million of proceeds at closing,
though subsequent purchase price adjustments reduced
the net amount to $6.1 million. Also on April 30, 2003,
the Alabama contract operations were terminated and
AquaSource received $0.9 million of proceeds. On
March 31, 2003, AquaSource closed the sale of its water
and wastewater utility construction business to former
members of AquaSource management for approximately
$8 million. Also in the first quarter of 2003, AquaSource
sold its New England contract operations for
approximately $1.3 million.

We sold various assets in 2002, including several
wastewater facilities and real property, and received
proceeds of approximately $6 million which
approximated book value. In addition, we sold Pro Am's
propane distribution business for approximately $42
million, $32 million of which was paid in cash at the
closing. (See our more detailed discussion of these sales in
Note 13.)

In 2001, we sold 50,000 shares of AquaSource Class A
Common Stock to a third party in exchange for
approximately $4 million of services. We will share
proceeds from the sale of AquaSource with this third
party. We also sold real property, receiving proceeds of
$0.1 million, and acquired four water companies for
approximately $0.9 million.

Financing

On March 3, 2004, and January 26, 2004, Duquesne
Capital, L.P., a special purpose subsidiary of Duquesne
Light, redeemed $25 million and $50 million principal
amounts of its 8 3/8% Monthly Income Preferred




Securities (MIPS). Pursuant to the terms of the MIPS,
Duquesne Light simultaneously redeemed $25.3 million
and $50.5 million of its 8 3/8% Subordinated Deferrable
Interest Debentures, Series A, due May 31, 2044
{Subordinated Debentures). (See Note 1.)

As of March 3, 2004, $41 million was outstanding
under the Duquesne Light revolving credit facility
{described below), bearing an average interest rate of
2.2% annually.

On February 18, 2004, GSF paid the City of New
York $4.5 million and was released from all financial
obligations of the prior Fresh Kills concession agreement,
including a $21.4 million note payable balance. As a
direct result of the settlement, we will recognize
approximately $16 million into income ratably over the
new contract term, scheduled to end June 30, 2006. (See
Note 12.)

On December 30, 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed
$100 million principal amount of its 7.55% first mortgage
bonds (due 2025) at a redemption price of 102.97% of
the principal amount thereof.

On August 1, 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed at par
$100 million principal amount of its 7 3/8% first
mortgage bonds (due 2038).

In May 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed the $2.8
million outstanding balance of 5% Sinking Fund
Debentures (due 2010) at a redemption price of 100.95%
of the principal amount thereof.

In March 2003, we redeemed at par two long-term
loans with principal amounts totaling $2.0 million relating
to investments at DQE Financial.

In September 2002, Duquesne Light converted
approximately $98 million oif variable rate, tax-exempt
debt to fixed rate with matutities in 2011 and 2013,
resulting in a weighted average interest rate of 4.20%.

In August 2002, Duquesne Light redeemed the
following: (i) $10 million aggregate principal amount of
8.20% first mortgage bonds (due 2022) at a redemption
price of 104.51% of the principal amount thereof, and (ii)
$100 million aggregate principal amount of 7 5/8% first
mortgage bonds (due 2023) at a redemption price of
103.9458% of the principal amount thereof.

In June 2002, we issued 17,250,000 shares of Holdings
common stock at $13.50 per share in an underwritten
public offering. This issuance was made under a shelf
registration statement for up to $500.0 million of various
debt and equity securities.

[n April 2002, Duquesne Light issued $200 million of
6.7% first mortgage bonds (due 2012), and $100 million
of 6.7% first mortgage bonds (due 2032). In each case it
used the proceeds to call and refund existing debt,
including debt scheduled to mature in 2003 and 2004.

In January 2002, we refinanced $150 million of
matured DQE Capital floating rate notes through the
issuance of commercial paper, primarily at Duquesne
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Light, which loaned the proceeds to Holdings. Cash
generated from operations and equity offering proceeds
was used to repay and retire this debt in full, leaving no
outstanding balance at December 31, 2002.

Liquidity

We maintain two 364-day, unsecured revolving credit
agreements, one for $180 million at Duquesne Light and
one for $110 million at Holdings. Both expire in
September 2004. We may convert each revolving credit
facility into a one-year term loan facility for (i) the
amount of letters of credit outstanding plus (ii) one-half
of the principal loan amounts less the amount of letters of
credit outstanding. At December 31, 2003, no borrowings
were outstanding; however, we had $92.9 million in
standby letters of credit (including $10.1 million relating
to Duquesne Light}, $69.8 million of which are backed by
the revolving credit agreements, leaving $220.2 million
available (including $169.9 million available at Duquesne
Light). These letters of credit relate primarily to DQE
Financial. As discussed above, Duquesne Light made
borrowings under these facilities in the first quarter of
2004. See "Financing.”

Decreases in our credit ratings could result in an
inverse change in the fees and interest rates charged
under the facilities. Both revolving credit agreements are
subject to cross-default if Duquesne Light or any
subsidiary defaults on any payment due under any
indebtedness exceeding $50 million. In addition, the $110
million revolver is subject to cross-default if Holdings or
any subsidiary defaults on any payments due under any of
its indebtedness exceeding $50 million.

Under our credit facilities, we are subject to financial
covenants requiring each of Holdings and Duquesne
Light to maintain a maximum debt-to-capitalization ratio
of 65.0%, as defined in the facilities. In addition,
Holdings is required to maintain a minimum coverage
ratio of 2-to-1, as defined in the facilities. At
December 31, 2003, we were in compliance with these
covenants.

None of our long-term debt is scheduled to mature
before 2008. In December 2003, Duquesne Capital issued
a call for $50.0 million of MIPS effective January 26,
2004. This caused Duquesne Light to simultaneously
redeem $50.5 million of its Subordinated Debentures. As
of December 31, 2003, we reclassified the $50.5 million
from long-term debt to current maturities, as it would be
paid within one year. The additional $1.0 million of
current maturities represents scheduled principal
payments on other long-term debt, primarily the Fresh
Kills note payable balance. (See the Contractual
Obligations table below.)

In the first quarter of 2003, Standard & Poor's reduced
Holdings' and Duquesne Light's short-term corporate
credit and commercial paper ratings by one level, thereby




restricting our access to the commercial paper market.
These ratings downgrades do not limit our ability to
access our revolving credit facilities. These ratings are nat
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any securities of
Holdings, Duquesne Light or their subsidiaries, may be
subject to revisions or withdrawal by the agencies at any
time, and should be evaluated independently of each
other and any other rating that may be assigned to our
securities.

Holdings. As of December 31, 2003, we had no
commercial paper borrowings outstanding, and
$51.5 million of current debt maturities. During 2003,
the maximum amount of bank loans outstanding was
$35 million (borrowed to facilitate the redemption of
$100 million of first mortgage bonds, and repaid within
three days), the amount of average daily borrowings was
$0.3 million and the weighted average daily interest rate
was 2.38%.

As of December 31, 2002, we had no commercial
paper borrowings outstanding, and $1.0 million of current
debt maturities. During 2002, the maximum amount of
bank loans and commercial paper borrowings outstanding
at any date was $155 million, the amount of average daily
borrowings was $45.8 million, and the weighted average
daily interest rate was 2.34%.

As of December 31, 2001, we had $151.0 million of
current debt maturities and no commercial paper
borrowings outstanding. During 2001, the maximum
amount of bank loans and commercial paper borrowings
outstanding at any date was $55.0 million, the amount of
average daily borrowings was $22.7 million, and the
weighted average daily interest rate was 4.79%.

Duguesne Light. As of December 31, 2003, Duguesne
Light had no commercial paper borrowings outstanding,
and $50.5 million of current debt maturities. During
2003, there were no bank loans or commercial paper
borrowings outstanding.

As of December 31, 2002, Duquesne Light had no
commercial paper borrowings outstanding and no current
debt maturities. During 2002, the maximum amount of
bank loans and commercial paper borrowings outstanding
at any date was $125 million, the amount of average daily
borrowings was $43.7 million, and the weighted average
daily interest rate was 2.34%.
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As of December 31, 2001, Duquesne Light had no
current debt maturities and no commercial paper
borrowings outstanding. During 2001, there were no
bank loans or commercial paper borrowings outstanding.

Holdings Preferred Stock, Series A

As of December 31, 2003, 151,800 shares of Holdings
preferred stock were outstanding and included in
liabilities on the balance sheet. (See Note 1.) On February
13, 2004, we repurchased 8,667 shares for $98.00 per
share. Each outstanding share is redeemable for cash or
convertible at our option into the number of shares of our
common stock computed by dividing the preferred stock’s
$100 per share liquidation value by the five-day average
closing sales price of common stock for the five trading
days immediately prior to the conversion date.

Each outstanding share of Holdings preferred stock
will automatically be converted on the first day of the first
month commencing after the sixth anniversary of its
issuance. On January 1, 2004, we converted 3,760 shares
into 20,720 shares of common stock; on March 1, 2004,
we converted 22,000 shares into 112,255 shares of
common stock. The remaining conversions will take place
as set forth in the following table:

Conversion Date Number of Shares

April 1, 2004 6,240
May 1, 2004 18,565
September 1, 2004 17,334
December 1, 2004 9,085
January 1, 2005 41,183
February 1, 2005 23,960
April 1, 2005 1,006

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Except for the guarantees discussed in Note 12,
neither Holdings nor Duquesne Light has any material
off-balance sheet arrangements. Neither Holdings nor
Duquesne Light is involved in any material contract
trading activities. As a wholly owned subsidiary of
Holdings, Duquesne Light is involved in various
transactions with affiliates. (See Notes | and 16.)
Duquesne Light owns a 1% general partnership interest in
Duquesne Capital, the unconsolidated issuer of the MIPS.
(See “Financing” and Notes 1 and 15.)




Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As of December 31, 2003, we have certain contractual obligations and commitments that extend beyond 2004, the
principal amounts of which are set forth in the following table:

Payments Due By Period
(Millions of Dollars)

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Long-Term Debt
Dugquesne Light $ 857.7 $ 25.3(a) $ — $40.0 $792 4
Other Affiliates 119.8 21.4 (b) 05 0.5 97.4
Notes Payable and Current Maturities
Duquesne Light (c) 50.5 50.5 — — —
Other Affiliates (d) 1.0 1.0 — — —
Capital Lease Obligations
Duquesne Light 3.0 0.7 1.4 0.9 —
Operating Leases (¢)
Duquesne Light 32.7 3.8 8.3 8.1 12.5
Other Affiliates 58.9 5.4 8.4 9.1 36.0
IRS Settlement Payment (f) 48.1 481 — — —
Pension Funding Commitment —
Duquesne Light 32.1 — 32.1 —_— —
Warwick Mine Closure Obligations —
Duquesne Light 27.0 3.7 5.0 35 14.8
Other Site Closure Obligations —
Duquesne Light 6.6 0.6 1.1 0.9 4.0
Restructuring
Duquesne Light 33 1.5 1.8 — —
Holdings 1.8 1.8 — — —
AquaSource Minority Interest 8.2 8.2 — — —
Total $1,250.7 $172.0 $58.6 $63.0 $957.1

(a)  Includes $25.3 million Subordinated Debentures redeemed (along with $25.0 million of MIPS called in February 2004 for redemption)
on March 3, 2004.

(b)  Includes $21.4 million related to Fresh Kills that was retired on February 18, 2004 with a payment of $4.5 million.

(c) $50.5 million Subordinated Debentures redeemed (along with $50.0 million of MIPS called in December 2003 for redemption) on
January 26, 2004.

{d) Does not include Holdings' demand note held by Duquesne Light, which is eliminated in the consolidation of Holdings.

(e) Excludes $2.2 million related to discontinued operations.

{fi  Holdings expects to pay a lower amount due to an expected cash refund of approximately $32 million associated with AquaSource’s
capital loss carryback claim. (See Note 10.)
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RATE MATTERS

Competitive Transition Charge

Under Customer Choice, customers must choose to
receive their electric energy from an alternative
generation supplier or through Duquesne Light's POLR
arrangements. Customers who select an alternative
generation supplier pay for generation charges set
competitively by that supplier, and pay Duquesne Light
transmission and distribution charges and any CTC that
has not already been collected for a customer's rate class.

Duquesne Light has completed the CTC collection
from most of its customers. As of December 31, 2003, the
CTC balance has been fully collected for approximately
99.9% of customers, representing approximately 92% of
the MWh sales for 2003. The transition costs, as reflected
on the consolidated balance sheets, are being amortized
over the same period that the CTC revenues are being
recognized. For regulatory purposes, the unrecovered net
of tax balance of transition costs was approximately $5
million as of December 31, 2003, and approximately $15
million as of December 31, 2002. Duquesne Light is
allowed to earn an 11.0% pre-tax return on these
amounts.

Provider of Last Resort
POILR [ and II. Orion Power Midwest (a subsidiary of

Reliant Resources, Inc.} is Duquesne Light's supplier
under POLR I and Il. As discussed in “Results of
Operations” above, POLR Il extends through

December 31, 2004, and permits Duquesne Light a
margin per MWh supplied. This margin fluctuates based
on the mix of rate classes and number of customers
participating in POLR II. The number of POLR customers
will fluctuate depending on market prices and the number
of alternative generation suppliers in the retail supply
business.

There are certain safeguards in POLR I and Il designed
to mitigate losses in the event that Orion defaults on its
performance under the arrangement. Contractually,
Duguesne Light has various credit enhancements to
address market exposure if Orion failed to deliver the
required POLR supply. As of January 31, 2004, Duquesne
Light held an irrevocable $4 million letter of credit that
could be increased based on Orion's investment ratings
and net worth. Duquesne Light also remits the POLR
customer payments 35 days after billing the customer.
Duquesne Light has the right not to remit these payments
in the event of an Orion default.

If Orion were to fail to deliver, Duquesne Light would
be required to procure its POLR supply requirements in
the energy markets. If market prices for energy were
higher than the POLR rate at the time of default,
Duguesne Light could potentially be acquiring energy for
sale to POLR customers at a loss. If that were to happen
and the contractual provisions with Orion were not
sufficient to cover any loss, Duquesne Light would seek
regulatory recovery of any additional loss. While the
Customer Choice Act provides generally for POLR
supply costs to be borne by customers, prior litigation
suggests that the PUC may not permit Duquesne Light to
pass any costs in excess of the existing PUC-approved
POLR prices on to its customers.

Duquesne Light retains the risk that customers will not
pay for the POLR generation supply. However, a
component of Duquesne Light's delivery rate is designed
to cover the cost of a normal level of uncollectible
accounts.

POLR IlI. On December 9, 2003, Duquesne Light
submitted POLR I, its rate plan and related generation
supply plan intended to cover the period beginning in
2005, to the PUC for approval. The plan is currently
under PUC review, with an administrative law judge
expected to provide a recommended decision during the
week of May 24, 2004. A final order is expected by
July 8, 2004,

For our larger commercial and industrial customers,
Duquesne Light proposed three basic supply options:

e An hourly price service that passes through real-time
spot market electricity prices within the PJM RTO
(discussed below);

e A 17-month fixed price service based upon the results
of a competitive wholesale auction; and

o An electric generation service offered by a
competitive supplier in Duquesne Light's
service area.

For the first and second options, Duquesne Light
would include in the price a $5 per MWh margin
designed to recover associated costs, compensate for
market risks, and encourage retail competition.

For residential and small business customers,
Duquesne Light proposed a fixed-price POLR service for
the years 2005 through 2010. Although the proposed
prices would increase generation rates by 12% effective
January 1, 2005 and an additional 9% effective January 1,
2008, these rates would still be below those charged prior
to deregulation in 1996.




The following table provides selected financial and
operating statistics for 2003 for the two customer groups
described above.

lLarge Residential

Commercial & Small

& Industrial Business Total

Customers Customers Customers

(In Thousands)
Number of customers 1 587 588
MWh delivered 6,303 7,060 13,363
MWh supplied 4,528 5,126 9,654
(Millions of Dollars)

POLR revenue $168.6 $274.1 $442.7
POLR net income § 5.8 $ 139 §$ 197

On October 24, 2003, Duquesne Power, LP, a newly
formed subsidiary of Duquesne Light, announced the
signing of a definitive agreement to purchase WPS
Resources Corporation’s Sunbury generation station for
approximately $120 million, which includes inventories
and other items. The Sunbury plant would be used in
conjunction with Duquesne Light's POLR 11l service to
residential and small commercial electric customers.
Closing on the transaction is conditioned on PUC
approval of POLR 11, as well as other related regulatory
approvals.

Duquesne Power made a deposit of $2.7 million upon
signing the purchase agreement. Additional deposits will
be made on April 1, 2004 and July 1, 2004, In the event
the closing occurs after October 1, 2004, Duquesne
Power will make a final deposit on October 1, 2004, for a
total of approximately $5.5 million. All deposits are non-
refundable and will be applied to the final purchase price
at closing.

The Sunbury station consists of six boilers supplying
steam for four turbine generators, with a total rated coal-
fired generating capacity of 402 megawatts. In addition,
the station includes two oil-fired combustion-turbine
generators and two diesel generators, with operating
capacities of 42 megawatts and 5.5 megawatts,
respectively. The facility is located in central
Pennsylvania and provides power into the PJM RTO
{defined below).

Duquesne Power would combine the output of the
Sunbury station with a portfolio of wholesale power
purchase contracts in order to provide Duquesne Light a
full-requirements POLR 1ll-supply contract for our
residential and small business customers. As a means of
managing the various risks related to this contract, and at
the same time building long-term value for the company,
Duquesne Power would focus on a portfolio strategy. This
portfolio approach, which may include blocks of
traditional wholesale contracts with multiple suppliers, is

intended to increase long-term flexibility. The addition of
Sunbury to the supply portfolio would benefit Duquesne
Light's POLR customers as well as help to diversify risk.
As the cornerstone of the supply portfolio, a generating
asset would:
e provide assurance of a stable and reliable long-term
supply of electricity;
¢ enhance flexibility relative to the pricing of other
contracts in the supply portfolio;
¢ increase the ability to include long-term price
protection for Duquesne Light customers as proposed
in the POLR Il filing;
e mitigate credit and default risks of depending on any
one energy supplier; and
o facilitate Duquesne Light's entry into the PJM RTO.

FERC Order No. 2000, as amended, calls on
transmission-owning utilities such as Duquesne Light to
join regional transmission organizations (RTQOs) by
September 2004. Duquesne Light is committed to
ensuring a stable, plentiful supply of electricity for its
customers. Toward that end, Duquesne Light anticipates
joining the Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland (PJM)
RTO as part of POLR HlI. Duquesne Light expects to
recover its incremental expenses incurred due to joining
PJM through its rates.

Rate Freeze

In connection with POLR I, Duquesne Light
negotiated a rate freeze for generation, transmission and
distribution rates. The rate freeze fixed generation rates
for retail POLR Il customers through December 31, 2004,
and continued the transmission and distribution rates for
all customers at then-current levels through 2003. Under
certain circumstances, affected interests may file a
complaint alleging that Duquesne Light has exceeded
reasonable earnings, in which case the PUC could make
adjustments to rectify such earnings.

OUTLOOK

During the past two years, we have successfully
completed the sale of our investments in non-
complementary businesses, including AquaSource and Pro
Am. The proceeds from these sales have permitted the
strengthening of our balance sheet through the reduction
of over $215 million of long-term debt in 2003. In
December 2003, we resolved our IRS tax disputes
regarding our structured lease investments, and reached
agreement on both the past tax liability as well as the
future treatment of these investments. Also during 2003,
the IRS completed its audit of the 1998 through 2001 tax
years for the entity that owns and operates synthetic fuel
facilities in which DQE Financial holds a limited
partnership interest. The audit did not result in any tax




credit disallowances. In February 2004, we settled our
litigation with the City of New York regarding the Fresh
Kills landfill and retired an additional $21 million of debt.
Our focus on the core utility business and resolution of
our legacy issues has provided a solid foundation for our
business. '

Duquesne Light's POLR 11l plan is designed to provide
important price protection to our residential and small
commercial customers through 2010. It would also
incorporate an investment in electric generation to
provide our POLR customers with a portion of their
power needs. Additional power needs would be met
through supply contracts, load-following purchases
and/or other procurement methods. This investment
would be funded primarily with available cash and new
borrowings, as necessary. We will remain focused on (i)
the delivery of continued superior service to our
Duquesne Light customers, and (ii) keeping our total
costs at or near the levels experienced in 2003.

Our 2004 financing plan includes the continued
strengthening of our balance sheet. In December 2003,
Duquesne Light retired $100 million of 7.55% first
mortgage bonds, using cash on hand. In the first quarter
of 2004, Duquesne Light retired $75 million of MIPS.
The redemptions were funded with available cash and
borrowings under the revolving credit facility. In February
2004, Duquesne Light filed a shelf registration statement
with the SEC to permit the issuance of up to $300 million
of first mortgage bonds and preferred stock. Under this
shelf, Duquesne Light plans to issue approximately $250
million of securities, the proceeds of which would be used
to retire the remaining $75 million of MIPS, to repay
amounts borrowed under its revolving credit facility, to
replenish its working capital, and for general corporate
purposes.

We will continue to increase our common equity by
issuing shares of common stock in connection with our
dividend reinvestment plan, the conversion of Holdings
preferred stock, and employee stock option conversions.
Finally, we will examine opportunities to refinance DQE
Capital's $100 million of 8 3/8% public income notes that
are callable at par beginning September 15, 2004.

As part of the IRS settlement, our earnings stream
from our structured lease investments was modified,
causing a $9 million reduction in earnings from 2003 to
2004. However, the earnings volatility of these
investments has been removed, and the revised earnings
of $3 million to $4 million annually will be realized over
the remaining lives of these leases. In addition, as of
December 31, 2003, we have over $90 million of tax
credit carryforwards that will be used to reduce our future
cash payments required for Federal income taxes to the
alternative minimum tax level.

During the first quarter of 2004, we began a
comprehensive review of our unregulated businesses,
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including our landfill gas operations and investments, the
energy services contract operations, and our fiber optic
network. The goal of this review is to improve the
operational efficiency and earnings of these businesses in
the near term, as well as to assess the growth capabilities
of these businesses now and beyond the Section 29 tax
credit period, currently set to expire at the end of 2007.
We expect to complete this review during the summer of
2004. We continue to evaluate the passive investments
held by DQE Financial, including the structured lease
investments and investments that provide additional
Section 29 tax credits, for opportunities to increase future
earnings and/or to monetize those investments.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The "Outlook” section above contains forward-
looking statements. Actual results may materially differ
from those implied by such statements due to known and
unknown risks and uncertainties, some of which are
discussed below.

e Cash flow, earnings, earnings growth, capitalization
and dividends (as well as earnings per share and total
shareholder return goals) will depend on the
performance of Holdings' subsidiaries, and board
policy.

e Demand for and pricing of electricity and landfill gas,
changing market conditions and weather conditions
could affect earnings levels.

¢ Duquesne Light's earnings will be affected by the
number of customers who choose to receive electric
generation through POLR II, by final PUC approval
of POLR Il and by the continued performance of the
generation supplier.

e POLR I customer retention will depend on market
generation prices.

e The ultimate structure of POLR 1l will be subject to
PUC review and approval, and may depend on the
ability to negotiate appropriate terms with suitable
generation suppliers.

e Any debt reduction or refinancing will depend on the
availability of cash flows and appropriate replacement
or refinancing vehicles.

e The amount and timing of any security issuance
under Duquesne Light's shelf registration statement
will depend on financial market performance.

e Purchase price adjustments related to the sale of
AquaSource, and the resolution and disposition of the
retained liabilities and indemnities, may affect
earnings and cash flows.

e The outcome of the current IRS audit may affect any
refunds owed to us.

¢ Maintaining costs at 2003 levels will depend on our
ability to operate with reduced administrative
resources and to further streamline functions to
eliminate remaining redundancies.




e Customer energy demand, fuel costs and plant
operations could affect DQE Energy Services'
earnings.

¢ The outcome of the shareholder litigation initiated
against Holdings may affect performance.

e Earnings with respect to synthetic fuel operations,
landfill gas and affordable housing investments will
depend, in part, on the continued viability of, and
compliance with the requirements for, applicable
federal tax credits.

o The final resolution of proposed adjustments
regarding state income tax liabilities (which will
depend on negotiations with the appropriate tax
authorities) could affect financial position, earnings,
and cash flows.

e The credit ratings received from the rating agencies
could affect the cost of borrowing, the access to
capital markets and liquidity.

o Overall performance by Holdings and its affiliates
could be affected by economic, competitive,
regulatory, governmental and technological factors
affecting operations, markets, products, services
and prices.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risk represents the risk of financial loss that
may impact our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows due to adverse changes in market
prices and rates.

Holdings. We manage our interest rate risk by balancing
our exposure between fixed and variable rates, while
attempting to minimize our interest costs. Currently, our
variable interest rate debt is approximately $320.1
million, or 32.7%, of long-term debt. This variable rate
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debt is low-cost, tax-exempt debt. We also manage our
interest rate risk by retiring and issuing debt from time to
time and by maintaining a balance of short-term and
long-term debt. A 10% increase in interest rates would
have affected our variable rate debt obligations by
increasing interest expense by approximately $0.3 million,
$0.4 million and $1.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. A 10% reduction in
interest rates would have increased the market value of
our fixed-rate debt by approximately $28.6 million and
$49.7 million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Such
changes would not have had a significant near-term effect
on our future earnings or cash flows.

Duguesne Light. Duquesne Light manages its interest rate
risk by balancing its exposure between fixed and variable
rates, while attempting to minimize its interest costs.
Currently, its variable interest rate debt is approximately
$320.1 million, or 37.3%, of long-term debt. This variable
rate debt is low-cost, tax-exempt debt. Duquesne Light
also manages its interest rate risk by retiring and issuing
debt from time to time and by maintaining a balance of
short-term and long-term debt. A 10% increase in interest
rates would have affected its variable rate debt obligations
by increasing interest expense by approximately $0.3
million, $0.4 million and $0.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001. A 10% reduction in
interest rates would have increased the market value of its
fixed-rate debt by approximately $18.2 million and $37.6
million as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. Such changes
would not have had a significant near-term effect on its
future earnings or cash flows.

See our Provider of Last Resort discussion in Item 7,
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” for discussion of
market risk associated with our POLR obligation.




Consolidated Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data.

Item 8.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS

To the Directors and Shareholders of Duquesne Light
Holdings, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.
(formerly DQE, Inc.) and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements
of income, comprehensive income, retained earnings, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. QOur audits also included the

financial statement schedule listed in the Index at [tem 15.

These financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of Duquesne Light
Holdings, Inc.'s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial statements and
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003,
in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our
opinion, such financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material
respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, effective January 1, 2002, Duquesne Light
Holdings, Inc. changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 5, 2004

To the Directors and Shareholder of Duquesne Light
Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of Duquesne Light Company (a wholly
owned subsidiary of Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.) and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
related consolidated statements of income,
comprehensive income, retained earnings, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of Duquesne Light Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the financial statements and financial statement
schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
pasition of Duquesne Light Company and subsidiaries as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such
financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respects the
information set forth therein.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
March 5, 2004




Duquesne Light Holdings>
Consolidated Statements of Income

{All Amounts in Millions,
Except Per Share Amounts)
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenues:
Retail sales of electricity $ 780.8 $ 9215 $1,025.5
Other 122.0 104.5 116.9
Total Operating Revenues 902.8 1,026.0 1,142.4
Operating Expenses:
Purchased power 393.7 4281 4143
Other operating and maintenance 221.8 217 .4 2249
Impairment of long-lived assets (Note 3) — 30.2 67.3
Restructuring (Note 4) — 52 27.9
Depreciation and amortization 87.3 185.6 348.6
Taxes other than income taxes 49,1 63.8 55.6
Total Operating Expenses 751.9 930.3 1,138.6
Operating Income 150.9 95.7 3.8
Investment income 35.4 36.6 394
Investment impairment (Note 3) (1.0) (33.7) (61.7)
Total Other Income 34.4 2.9 (22.3)
Interest and Other Charges 74.4 83.5 103.4
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes 110.9 15.1 (121.9)
Income Tax Expense (Benefit) 17.7 (11.6) (77.4)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations 93.2 26.7 (44.5)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations — Net (Note 13) 82.7 (127.6) (108.9)
Income (Loss) before Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle 175.9 (100.9) (153.4)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle — Net o (113.7) —_—
Net Income (Loss) 175.9 (214.6) (153.4)
Dividends on Preferred Stock (Note 1) 0.4 0.6 0.5
Earnings (Loss) Available for Common Stock $ 1755 $(2152) $(153.9)
Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding 75.0 65.6 559
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:
Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 1.24 $ 040 $ (0.80)
Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 1.10 (1.95) (1.95)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle — (1.73) —
Basic Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 234 $ (3.28) $ (2.75)
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock:
Earnings (Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 122 $ 040 $ (0.80)
Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 1.07 (1.95) (1.95)
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle — {1.73) —
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share of Common Stock $ 2109 $ (3.28) $ (2.75)
Dividends Declared Per Share of Common Stock $ 1.00 $ 1.34 $ 1.68

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Dugquesne Light Holdings
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

Assets 2003 2002
"Current Assets:
Cash and temporary cash investments $ 338 $ 939
Receivables:
Electric customers 66.4 80.4
Unbilled electric customers 29.7 31.9
Other 24.6 29.3
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts (5.7) (7.7)
Total Receivables — Net 115.0 133.9
Materials and supplies (at average cost) 17.1 19.0
Prepaid expenses 11.6 13.8
Other 6.6 8.0
Discontinued operations — 180.2
Total Current Assets 184.1 448 8
Long-Term Investments:
|eases 515.1 4951
Gas rights and reserves 40.9 55.0
Affordable housing 2.5 3.2
Other 9.4 12.6
Total Long-Term Investments 567.9 565.9
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Electric plant in service 1,999.5 1,957.3
Construction work in progress — electric 64.2 61.6
Other energy facilities 28.2 278
Fiber optic network 28.2 27.6
Landfill gas equipment 14.1 15.4
Other 9.7 10.4
Gross property plant and equipment 2,143.9 2,100.1
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (706.6) (674.6)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment — Net 1,437.3 1,425.5
Other Non-Current Assets:
Regulatory assets 281.6 280.3
Transition costs 8.4 24.1
Prepaid pension cost 21.6 16.9
Other 39.9 39.3
Total Other Non-Current Assets 351.5 360.6
Total Assets $ 2,540.8 $ 2,800.8

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Holdings
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

Liabilities and Capitalization 2003 2002
Current Liabilities:
Current debt maturities $ 51.5 $ 1.0
Accounts payable 112.0 113.2
Accrued liabilities 50.8 60.5
Dividends declared 21.4 21.1
Other 13.7 13.2
Discontinued operations 29.9 40.0
Total Current Liabilities 279.3 249.0
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes — net 474.1 614.7
Deferred income 12.2 12.8
Pension liability 50.0 47 .4
Other post-retirement benefits 35.8 34.8
Warwick Mine liability 27.0 30.0
Other 38.8 343
Total Non-Current Liabilities 637.9 774.0
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Capitalization:
Long-term debt 977.5 1,082.0
Duquesne Light Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred
Securities (Note 1) —_— 150.0

Preferred and Preference Stock
(aggregate involuntary liquidation value of $77.0 and $102.3):

Holdings preferred stock (Note 1) —_ 22.4
Preferred stock of subsidiaries 61.6 61.6
Preference stock of subsidiaries ' 15.5 18.4
Total preferred and preference stock before deferred
employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) benefit 77.1 102.4
Deferred ESOP benefit (6.4) (9.2)
Total Preferred and Preference Stock 70.7 93.2

Common Shareholders' Equity:
Common stock ~ no par value (authorized —

187,500,000 shares: issued — 126,929,154 shares) 1,215.4 1,219.1
Retained earnings 553.1 452.9
Treasury stock (at cost) (51,505,469 and 52,584,174 shares) (1,189.7) (1,219.1)
Unearned compensation (Note 14) (3.4) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income — (0.3)

Total Common Shareholders’ Equity 575.4 452.6
Total Capitalization 1,623.6 1,777.8
Total Liabilities and Capitalization $2,540.8 $ 2,800.8

See nates to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Holdings
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ 175.9 $(214.6) $(153.4)
Principal non-cash charges {credits) to net income:
Depreciation and amortization 87.3 185.6 348.6
Bad debt expense 10.8 21.3 7.9
Revised facility utilization charge 4.9 — —
Asset and investment impairments 1.0 63.9 129.0
Capital lease and investment amortization 13.0 59 459
Restructuring — 52 279
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle — net — 113.7 —
Investment income (20.8) (24.9) (28.3)
Gain on disposition of investments (12.1) (0.8) (11.0)
Deferred taxes (142.1) (30.6) (85.6)
Changes in working capital other than cash (Note 18) (11.9) 595 (79.8)
QOther (6.5) (67.2) (59.7)
Net cash provided from operating activities of:
Continuing operations 99.5 117.0 141.5
Discontinued operations 170.1 142.1 77.9
Net Cash Provided From Operating Activities 269.6 2591 219.4
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments 21.4 22.2 99.6
Long-term investments (3.7) (5.4) (6.8)
Capital expenditures (78.0) (83.8) (120.4)
Other 6.4 52 (5.5)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (53.9) (61.8) (33.1)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
lssuance of debt — 300.0 —
Reductions of long-term debt (204.8) (553.0) (87.9)
Issuance of common stock — 223.4 —
Dividends on common and preferred stock (64.4) (74.1) (94.6)
Repurchase of common and preferred stock (6.0) — (0.3)
Other (0.6) (6.9) (4.7)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (275.8) (110.6) (187.5)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (60.1) 86.7 (1.2)
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of year 93.9 7.2 8.4
Cash and temporary cash investments at end of year $ 338 $ 939 $ 72
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year:
Interest (net of amount capitalized) $ 67.7 $ 67.0 $ 109.8
Income taxes paid (refunded) $ 86.1 $ (45.4) $ 276

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Holdings

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss) $175.9 $(214.6) $ (153.4)
Other comprehensive loss:

Unrealized holding losses arising during the

year, net of tax of $(0.3), $(0.5) and $(15.0) (0.4) (1.0) (27.8)
Reclassification adjustment for holding loss, net of tax 0.7 0.7 —
Comprehensive income (loss) $176.2 $(214.9) $ (181.2)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Duquesne Light Holdings
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

(Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Balance at beginning of year $ 4529 $ 759.7 $1,007.7
Net income (loss) 175.9 (214.6) (153.4)
Dividends declared (75.7) (92.2) (94.6)
Balance at end of year $ 5531 $ 4529 $ 759.7

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Dugquesne Light Company
Consolidated Statements of Income

{Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenues:
Retail Sales of Electricity:
Residential $ 3026 $ 3352 $ 3717
Commercial 334.9 4105 456.3
Industrial 143.3 175.8 197.5
Total Retail Sales Of Electricity 780.8 921.5 1,0255
Other 25.3 23.1 28.1
Total Operating Revenues 806.1 944.6 1,053.6
Operating Expenses:
Purchased power 393.7 4281 414.3
Other operating and maintenance 129.5 121.8 125.9
Restructuring (Note 4) — 3.9 10.8
Depreciation and amortization 76.4 169.1 331.0
Taxes other than income taxes 51.4 60.2 51.5
Total Operating Expenses 651.0 783.1 933.5
Operating Income 155.1 161.5 120.1
Other Income 20.3 319 39.1
Interest and Other Charges (54.1) (56.5) (62.4)
Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred
Securities Dividend Requirements (Note 1) (6.3) (12.6) (12.6)
Net Income Before Income Taxes 115.0 124.3 84.2
Income Taxes 45.4 489 30.8
Net Income 69.6 75.4 53.4
Dividends on Preferred and Preference Stock 3.2 3.3 3.4
Earnings Available for Common Stock $ 66.4 § 72.1 $ 50.0

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

Assets 2003 2002
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Electric plant in service $1,999.5 $1,957.3
Construction work in progress 64.2 61.6
GCross property, plant and equipment 2,063.7 2,018.9
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (681.0) (654.0)
Total Property, Plant and Equipment — Net 1,382.7 1,364.9
Long-Term lnvestments:
Investment in parent's common stock 22.3 18.9
Other investments 4.8 4.8
Total Long-Term Investments 27.1 23.7
Current Assets:
Investment in DQE Capital cash pool 69.1 3459
Customer Receivables:
Electric customers 66.4 80.4
Unbilled electric customers 29.7 31.9
Other 10.7 10.0
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts (5.7) (7.7)
Total Customer Receivables - Net 101.1 114.6
Affiliate Receivables:
Loan receivable from parent 250.0 250.0
Other 6.0 13.1
Total Affiliate Receivables 256.0 263.1
Materials and supplies (at average cost) 17.1 19.0
Other 14.8 6.5
Total Current Assets 458.1 7491
Other Non-Current Assets:
Regulatory assets 281.6 280.3
Transition costs 8.4 24.1
Prepaid pension cost 21.6 16.9
Other 29.7 292
Total Other Non-Current Assets 341.3 350.5
Total Assets $2,209.2 $2,488.2

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Company
Consolidated Balance Sheets

{Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

Capitalization and Liabilities 2003 2002
Capitalization:
Common Shareholder's Equity:
Common stock (authorized — 90,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding — 10 shares) $ — f —
Capital surplus 488.6 4833
Retained earnings 42.9 41.4
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1.4) (3.7)
Total Common Stockholder's Equity 530.1 521.0
Company Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Securities (Note 1) — 150.0
Preferred and Preference Stock
(aggregate involuntary liquidation value of $76.0 and $78.9).
Non-redeemable preferred stock 60.6 60.6
Non-redeemable preference stock 15.5 18.4
Total preferred and preference stock before deferred ESOP benefit 76.1 79.0
Deferred employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) benefit (6.4) (9.2)
Total Preferred and Preference Stock 69.7 69.8
Long-term debt 857.7 959.5
Total Capitalization 1,457.5 1,700.3
Current Liabilities:
Current debt maturities 50.5 —
Accounts payable 98.9 88.6
Payable to affiliates 62.0 107.4
Accrued liabilities 33.1 54.9
Preferred dividends 2.2 2.2
Other 3.5 8.3
Total Current Liabilities 250.2 261.4
Non-Current Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes — net 363.6 389.9
Warwick Mine liability 27.0 30.0
Pension liability 50.0 47 4
Other postretirement benefits 35.8 34.8
Other 25.1 24.4
Total Non-Current Liabilities 501.5 526.5
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12)
Total Liabilities and Capitalization $2,209.2 $2,488.2

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Company
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 69.6 § 754 § 534
Principal non-cash charges (credits) to net income;
Depreciation and amortization 76.4 169.1 331.0
Bad debt expense 10.2 21.3 7.9
Revised facility utilization charge 4.9 — —_
Restructuring — 39 10.8
Deferred taxes (27.0) (22.7) (82.7)
Investment in DQE Capital cash pool 276.8 (31.1) (141.3)
Changes in working capital other than cash (Note 18) (52.1) 104.6 (36.9)
Other (4.2) (58.7) (23.1)
Net Cash Provided From Operating Activities 354.6 261.8 119.1
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Proceeds from disposition of investments 0.4 2.6 5.0
Construction expenditures (76.1) (72.5) (59.1)
Other — (4.7) (3.8)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (75.7) (74.6) (57.9)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Issuance of debt — 300.0 —
Reductions of long-term debt (202.8) (403.0) —
Dividends on common and preferred stock (72.8) (67.7) (56.2)
Other (3.3) (16.5) (5.0)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (278.9) (187.2) {61.2)
Net increase (decrease) in cash — — —
Cash and temporary cash investments at beginning of year — — —
Cash and temporary cash investments at end of year $ — $ — $ —
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year:
Interest (net of amount capitalized) $ 456 $ 532 $ 612
Income taxes $ 94.5 $ 1.8 $ 83.0

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Duquesne Light Company

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

{Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net income $69.6 $754 $53.4
Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the year,
net of tax of $1.6, $(1.9) and $(7.2) 2.3 (2.7) (10.2)
Comprehensive income $71.9 $72.7 $432

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Duquesne Light Company
Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings

(Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Balance at beginning of year $ 41.4 $ 444 $ 471
Net income 69.6 75.4 53.4
Dividends declared (68.1) (78.4) (56.1)
Balance at end of year $ 4209 $ 414 $ 444

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Notes present information on both
Duguesne Light Holdings, Inc. (Holdings) and Duquesne
Light Company (Duquesne Light). Information on
Holdings and its subsidiaries (not including Duquesne
Light and its subsidiaries) shall not be deemed to be
included as part of Duquesne Light's Notes. Specifically,
information on the Energy Services and Financial business
segments, and the all other category, is not so included.

References in the Notes to "we,” “us” and “our” are to
Holdings and its subsidiaries, collectively.

1.  Accounting Policies

CONSOLIDATION

Holdings is an energy services holding company. Our
subsidiaries include those discussed below.

The consolidated financial statements of Holdings and
Duquesne Light include their accounts and their wholly
and majority owned subsidiaries. The equity method of
accounting is used for 20% to 50% interests in other
companies. Under the equity method, original
investments are recorded at cost and adjusted by our

share of undistributed earnings or losses of these
companies. All material intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in the consolidation.

Continuing Operations

Duquesne Light, our largest subsidiary, is an electric
utility engaged in the supply (through its provider-of-last-
resort service (POLR)), transmission and distribution of
electric energy. Its subsidiaries are primarily involved in
operating our automated meter reading technology and
providing financing to certain affiliates.

DQE Energy Services, LLC is an energy facilities
management company that provides energy outsourcing
solutions including development, operation and
maintenance of energy and synthetic fuel facilities.

DQE Communications, Inc. owns, operates and
maintains a high-speed, fiber optic based network, and
leases dark fiber from the network to commercial,
industrial and academic customers.

DQE Financial Corp. owns and operates landfill gas
collection and processing systems, and is an investment
and portfolio management organization focused on
structured finance and alternative energy investments.

DQE Capital Corporation provides financing to
Holdings for use with its affiliates.



Discontinued Operations

During 2003, AquaSource, Inc. (formerly our water
resource management subsidiary) completed the sale of its
assets, pursuant to agreements entered into in 2002. We
sold the propane distribution business of our subsidiary,
Pro Am, Inc. in December 2002. (See Note 13.)

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Holdings and Duquesne Light are subject to the
accounting and reporting requirements of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC). Duguesne Light's
electricity delivery business is also subject to regulation
by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (PUC)
and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
with respect to rates for delivery of electric power,
accounting and other matters.

As a result of Duquesne Light's PUC-approved
restructuring plan in 1998, the electricity supply segment
does not meet the criteria of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” Pursuant to
the PUC's final restructuring order, and as provided in the
Pennsylvania Electricity Generation Customer Choice
and Competition Act (Customer Choice Act), generation-
related transition costs are being recovered through a
competitive transition charge (CTC) collected in
connection with providing transmission and distribution
services, and these assets have been reclassified
accordingly. The electricity delivery business segment
continues to meet SFAS No. 71 criteria, and accordingly
reflects regulatory assets and liabilities consistent with
cost-based ratemaking regulations. The regulatory assets
represent probable future revenue, because provisions for
these costs are currently included, or are expected to be
included, in charges to electric utility customers through
the ratemaking process. {See Note 2.) These regulatory
assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 consist of
regulatory tax receivables of $222.0 million and $222.9
million, unamortized debt costs of $42.5 million and
$41.6 million, and deferred employee and other costs of
$17.1 million and $15.8 million. These assets are
currently being recovered over a period of approximately
28 years and are not earning a rate of return.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions with respect to values and
conditions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities, at the date of the financial statements. The
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
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reporting period also may be affected by the estimates
and assumptions management is required to make.
Management evaluates these estimates on an ongoing
basis, using historical experience and other methods
considered reasonable in the particular circumstances.
Nevertheless, actual results may differ significantly from
these estimates.

CUSTOMER CONCENTRATIONS

Duquesne Light's electric utility operations provide
service to approximately 588,000 direct customers in
southwestern Pennsylvania (including in the City of
Pittsburgh), a territory of approximately 800 square miles.

DQE Energy Services relies on a single synthetic fuel
facility customer for a significant portion of
its revenues and earnings.

REVENUES FROM UTILITY SALES

Dugquesne Light's meters are read monthly, and
electric utility customers are billed on the same basis.
Revenues reflect actual customer usage in an accounting
period, regardless of when billed.

Electricity sales revenue includes related excise and
other taxes, primarily gross receipts taxes, that are
collected from ratepayers and remitted to the appropriate
taxing agency. These taxes are recorded in a taxes payable
account at the time of sale and as an expense in taxes
other than income taxes. The payable is relieved when
payment is made to the appropriate taxing agency. The
excise and other taxes recorded in revenue were
approximately $43 million, $54 million and $38 million in
2003, 2002 and 2001.

OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND
OTHER INCOME

Other operating revenues include non-megawatt-hour
electric utility revenues, such as transmission fees charged
to other utilities that use Duquesne Light's transmission
system, and revenues from our other business lines'
operating activities. In addition, Duquesne Light charges
rental fees to third parties who have cable or other
equipment attached to its utility poles and transmission
towers, or who have cable included in its underground
ducts.

SFAS No. 13, "Accounting for Leases,” allows for the
recognition of lease transactions as sales-type leases if
certain criteria are met. DQE Communications recorded
no such transactions that met the criteria of SFAS No. 13
in 2003 or 2002. In 2001, three transactions resulted in
the recognition of approximately $11.0 million of
revenues and $5.1 million of net income.




Duquesne Light's other income consists primarily of
interest income from the loan receivable from Holdings
and the investment in the DQE Capital cash pool
discussed below. Gains or losses resulting from the
disposition of certain assets are also included here.

Holdings investment income consists primarily of
income from long-term investments, and gains or losses
from the disposition of certain assets.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We continue to account for stock-based employee
compensation using the intrinsic value method under the
recognition and measurement principles of Accounting
Principles Board No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” and related Interpretations. Accordingly,
compensation cost is measured as the excess, if any, of the
quoted market price of Holdings common stock at the
date of the grant over the amount an employee must pay
to acquire the stock and is spread over the vesting period,
as applicable. For stock-based compensation with
specified performance criteria, compensation cost is
generally recognized as the excess, if any, of the quoted
market price of Holdings common stock at the date the
specified criteria are met, over the amount an employee
must pay to acquire the stock, and is spread over the
vesting period, as applicable. The following tables
illustrate the effect on reported income and earnings per
share if we had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” as required under SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stack-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure — anamendment of FASB Statement
No. 123"
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Duquesne Light Holdings

{Millions of Dollars,
Except Per Share Amounts)
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Reported net income
(loss)

Add:
Stock-based
compensation
determined under
the intrinsic value
method for all
option awards, net
of tax

Deduct:
Stock-based
compensation
determined under
the fair value
method for all
option awards, net
of tax

$175.9 $(214.6) $(153.4)

0.6 0.6 —

Pro forma net income

(loss)

Basic earnings (loss)
per share:
Reported
Pro forma

$2.34 $(3.28) $(2.7%)
$2.34  $(3.29) $02.76)

Diluted earnings (loss)
per share:
Reported
Pro forma

$2.29  $(3.28)
$2.30 $




Duquesne Light Company
(Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

these shares would be anti-dilutive. The treasury stock
method is used in computing the dilutive effect of stock
options. This method assumes any proceeds obtained

2003 2002 2001 upon the exercise of options would be used to purchase
Reported net income $69.6 $75.4 $53.4 common stock at the average market price during the
period. The following table presents the numerators and

Add: denominators used in computing the diluted earnings per

Stock-based share for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

compensation

dete'rmi‘ne(.:l under Diluted Earnings Per Share for the Year Ended

the intrinsic value December 31,

method for all .

option awards, net (Millions of Dollars)

of tax 0n 0.6 _ 2003 2002 2001
Deduct: Income (loss) from

Stock-based continuing operations  $932  $267  $(44.5)

compensation Less: Preferred dividends 0.4 0.6 0.5

determined under Earnings (loss) from

the fair value continuing operations

method for all for common stock 92.8 26.1 (45.0)

option awards, net Dilutive effect of:

of tax (0.3) (1.2) (0.3) ESOP dividends 1.4 — —_—
Pro forma net income $69.5 $74.8 $53.1 Preferred stock dividends 0.8 — —

Diluted Earnings (Loss)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION '2’)0”’ Continuing
)perations for
Depreciation expense of $70.9 million, $67.7 million, Common Stock $950 $26.1  $(45.0)

and $70.5 million was recorded at Holdings in 2003,
2002 and 2001. Depreciation expense of $60.0 million,
$56.3 million and $59.7 million was recorded at
Duquesne Light in 2003, 2002 and 2001. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment is recorded on a straight-
line basis over the estimated remaining useful lives of
properties, which is approximately 29 years for both the
transmission and distribution portions of electric plant in
service. Depreciation of other property, plant and
equipment is recorded on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful lives of properties, which are between 5
and 15 years. Amortization of gas rights and reserve
investments and depreciation of related property are on a
units of production method over the total estimated gas
reserves through the applicable tax credit period.
Amortization of transition costs represents the difference
between CTC revenues billed to customers (net of gross
receipts tax) and the allowed 11% pre-tax return on the
unrecovered net of tax transition cost balance.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are computed on the basis of
the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are computed on
the basis of the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding, plus the effect of the outstanding
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares, Holdings
preferred stock, stock options and other types of stock-
based compensation discussed in Note 14, unless a net
loss from continuing operations occurs as the inclusion of
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(Millions of Shares)

2003 2002 2001
Basic average shares 75.0 65.6 55.9
Dilutive effect of:
ESOP shares 1.2 — —
Holdings preferred stock 1.4 — —
Stock options — 0.1 —_
Diluted average shares 77.6 65.7 559
Diluted Earnings (Loss)
Per Share from
Continuing Operations  $1.22 $0.40 $(0.80)

Note: In 2003, 1.4 million options are not included because the
exercise price of these options exceeds the average stock price.

In 2002, the incremental shares from assumed conversions of ESOP
shares and Holdings preferred stock are not included in computing
diluted per-share amounts because they are anti-dilutive. Also in
2002, 1.8 million options are not included because the exercise
prices of these options exceed the average stock price.

TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS

Temporary cash investments are short-term, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three or
fewer months. They are stated at cost, which
approximates market. We consider temporary cash
investments to be cash equivalents.

DQE CAPITAL CASH POOL

All Holdings subsidiaries participate in a cash pool
arrangement with their affiliate DQE Capital. Through




this arrangement, available cash is deposited with DQE
Capital and interest is earned daily at a market rate. DQE
Capital from time to time lends funds from the pool, on a
demand basis, to Holdings which, in turn, makes loans
and/or capital contributions to its other subsidiaries to
provide funds for capital expenditures, new investments
or operating expenses. An investor in the pool is entitled
to withdraw its investment at any time, and, to the extent
that sufficient cash is not then on deposit, DQE Capital
would have to demand full or partial repayment by
Holdings of the loan to it. (See Note 9.) Duquesne Light's
investment in the pool is shown on its consolidated
balance sheets. Duquesne Light reduced its investment in
the pool primarily to retire long-term debt in 2003.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables on the consolidated balance sheets are
comprised of outstanding billings for electric customers,
other utilities, and amounts related to unbilled revenues.
At Holdings, receivables include the outstanding billings
of our other business lines.

INVESTMENT IN HOLDINGS STOCK

As of December 31, 2003 and 2002, the fair market
value of Duquesne Light's investment in Holdings
common stock was $22.3 million and $18.9 million, and
the cost of the investment was $24.7 million and
$25.2 million. This investment is eliminated in the
consolidated balance sheets of Holdings with the related
shares and cost reflected as treasury stock.

This investment was in a continuous unrealized loss
position for more than 12 months as of December 31,
2003, with a total unrealized loss of $2.4 million.

If the unrealized loss is determined to be other than
temporary, it will be written off and an impairment charge
will be recognized on the statement of income.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The asset values of Duquesne Light's utility properties
are stated at original construction cost, which includes
related payroll taxes, pensions and other fringe benefits,
as well as administrative costs. Also included in original
construction cost is an allowance for funds used during
construction, which represents the estimated cost of debt
and equity funds used to finance construction.

Additions to, and replacements of, property units are
charged to plant accounts. Maintenance, repairs and
replacement of minor items of property are recorded as
expenses when they are incurred. The costs of electricity
delivery business segment properties that are retired (plus
removal costs and less any salvage value) are charged to
accumulated depreciation and amortization.

Substantially all of the electric utility properties are
subject to the lien of Duquesne Light's first mortgage
indenture.
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We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured
by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to
future net cash flows expected to be generated by the
asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the
impairment recognized is measured by the amount by
which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair
value of the assets.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 143, "Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations,” which requires entities to record
the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred, if a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The entity
is required to capitalize the cost by increasing the
carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The
capitalized cost is then depreciated over the useful life of
the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, an
entity either settles the obligation for its recorded amount
or incurs a gain or loss. The adoption of SFAS No. 143
did not have a significant impact on the financial
statements of either Holdings or Duquesne Light.

GOODWILL

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142,
"Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which establishes
financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwil!
and other intangible assets. This standard requires that
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
not be amortized but, instead, be tested at least annually
for impairment, and more frequently if certain indicators
appear. We adopted this standard effective January 1,
2002, and accordingly ceased amortization of goodwill,
our only intangible asset with an indefinite useful life.
Our goodwill related to both AquaSource and Pro Am.

We considered independent valuations performed on
both of these reporting units in order to determine their
fair values as of January 1, 2002. These valuations
determined the implied fair values of each of the
reporting units using a discounted cash flow analysis and
public company trading multiples. These valuations
indicated that the fair values of both reporting units were
less than their carrying values, an indication of
impairment. We then assessed the fair value of the
tangible assets and liabilities of each of these reporting
units, and determined that substantially all of the
goodwill related to the water distribution reporting unit
and a portion of the goodwill related to the propane
delivery reporting unit was impaired as of January 1,
2002. Accordingly, we recognized a $113.7 million
charge, recorded as of January 1, 2002, as the cumulative




effect of a change in accounting principle for the
impairment of goodwill, consisting of $103.0 million
related to water distribution and $10.7 million related to
propane delivery. The impaired goodwill was not
deductible for tax purposes, and as a result, no tax benefit
was recorded in relation to the charge.

In 2001, if we had excluded the goodwill amortization
expense that is no longer recorded under the provisions of
SFAS No. 142, we would not have recognized $4.4
million of amortization expense related to water
distribution assets and $1.2 million of expense related to
propane delivery assets. Our pro forma net loss would
have been $147.8 million. Our pro forma basic and
diluted loss per share would have been $2.65. Our
reported basic and diluted loss per share both
were $2.75.

INCOME TAXES

In accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for
Income Taxes,” Holdings and Duquesne Light use the
liability method in computing deferred taxes on all
differences between book and tax bases of assets and
liabilities. These book/tax differences occur when events
and transactions recognized for financial reporting
purposes are not recognized in the same period for tax
purposes. The deferred tax liability or asset is also
adjusted in the period of enactment for the effect of
changes in tax laws or rates. Valuation allowances are
provided against deferred tax assets for amounts which
are not considered "more likely than not” to be realized.
Holdings' overall effective tax rate is significantly reduced
by the income tax credits generated from our synthetic
fuel, 1andfill gas and affordable housing investments.

We file a consolidated ULS. federal income tax return
with our subsidiaries, all of whom participate in an
intercompany tax sharing agreement which generally
provides that taxable income for each subsidiary be
calculated as if it filed a separate return. The federal tax
liability for Duquesne Light is reflected in payable to
affiliates on its consolidated balance sheets. (See
Note 16.}

Duquesne Light recognizes a regulatory asset for
deferred tax liabilities that are expected to be recovered
through rates. The difference in the provision for deferred
income taxes related to depreciation of electric plant in
service and the amount that otherwise would be recorded
under generally accepted accounting principles is deferred
and included in regulatory assets on the consolidated
balance sheets.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT
BENEFITS

See Note 14 for a discussion of the accounting for
pension and other postretirement benefits.

45

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Holdings and Duquesne Light establish reserves for
estimated loss contingencies when it is management's
assessment that a loss is probable and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Revisions to contingent liabilities
are reflected in income in the period in which different
facts or information become known, or circumstances
change, that affect the previous assumptions with respect
to the likelihood or amount of loss. Reserves for
contingent liabilities are based upon management’s
assumptions and estimates, which consider advice of legal
counsel, or other third parties regarding probable
outcomes of the matter. Should the ultimate outcome
differ from the assumptions and estimates, revisions to the
estimated reserves for contingent liabilities would be
recognized. Such contingent liabilities include, but are
not limited to, restructuring liabilities (see Note 4),
income tax matters (see Note 10), and other
commitments and contingencies (see Note 12).

GUARANTEES

In the normal course of business, Holdings, Duquesne
Light and their subsidiaries enter into various agreements
providing financial or performance assurance to third
parties on behalf of certain subsidiaries. Such agreements
include, for example, guarantees, stand-by letters of credit
and surety bonds. These agreements are entered into
primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness
otherwise attributed to a subsidiary on a stand-alone
basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit
to accomplish the subsidiaries’ intended business
purposes. To determine if there is a liability, and its fair
value, we use a probabilistic model to assess the
possibilities of future payments under the
indemnifications. We discount these future cash payments
using estimated interest rate values and, if necessary,
record a liability. (See Note 12.)

DERIVATIVES

On January 1, 2001, Holdings and Duquesne Light
adopted SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Neither the initial
adoption nor the continued application of SFAS No. 133
has had a significant effect on our financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Holdings' practice has been for its subsidiaries to
dividend their earnings on a quarterly basis, if cash is
available. In addition, special dividends are declared
periodically related to proceeds from asset sales and other
special circumstances. During the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, Duquesne Light declared cash




dividends on common stock of $65.0 million, $75.0
million and $52.7 million to Holdings as estimates of
earnings for the year. (See Note 5.)

RECLASSIFICATION

The 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements
have been reclassified to conform with the 2003
presentation.

During 2003 we reclassified the income tax credits
generated from our synthetic fuel, landfill gas and
affordable housing investments as an offset to income tax
expense. We had previously recorded these credits as
other income. The income tax credits generated at
Holdings in 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled $31.3 million,
$31.5 million and $41.8 million. (See Note 10.)

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation
No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (as
revised in December 2003, FIN 46R), which addresses the
consolidation of variable interest entities (VIEs) by
business enterprises that are the primary beneficiaries.
A VIE is an entity that does not have sufficient equity
investment at risk to permit it to finance its activities
without additional subordinated financial support, or
whose equity investors lack the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest. The primary beneficiary of
a VIE is the enterprise with the majority of the risks or
rewards associated with the VIE. FIN 46R applies to
public entities that have an interest in a structure that is
commonly referred to as a special-purpose entity for
periods ending after December 15, 2003. For all other
types of VIEs, FIN 46R requirements apply for periods
ending after March 15, 2004. Holdings and Duquesne
Light adopted the provisions of FIN 46R that apply to
special purpose entities as of December 31, 2003.

Duquesne Capital L.P., a special-purpose limited
partnership of which Duquesne Light is the sole general
partner, had outstanding as of December 31, 2003,
$150.0 million principal amount of 8 3/8% Monthly
Income Preferred Securities, Series A (MIPS), each with a
stated liquidation value of $25.00. As of December 31,
2003, there were six million shares authorized and
outstanding. Duquesne Capital, at the direction of
Duquesne Light, has the option to redeem the MIPS at
any time, in whole or in part. The MIPS are also subject
to mandatory redemption at the maturity of the
Subordinated Debentures (defined below). Until
December 2003, Duquesne Light consolidated Duquesne
Capital. Under FIN 46R, Duquesne Light is not the
primary beneficiary of Duquesne Capital and as of
December 31, 2003, has discontinued the consolidation
of the subsidiary. The holders of the MIPS are the
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primary beneficiaries because they bear the risk of
absorbing the majority of any losses incurred by the
partnership.

Duquesne Capital applied the proceeds of the sale of
the MIPS, together with certain other funds, to the
purchase from Duquesne Light of $151.5 million principal
amount of Duquesne Light's 8 3/8% Subordinated
Deferrable Interest Debentures, Series A, due May 31,
2044 (Subordinated Debentures). The Subordinated
Debentures are Duquesne Capital's sole assets, and
Duquesne Capital has no business activity other than
holding the Debentures. Duquesne Light has guaranteed
the payment of distributions on, and redemption price
and liquidation amount in respect of, the MIPS to the
extent that Duquesne Capital has funds available for such
payment from the Subordinated Debentures. Upon any
redemption of the MIPS, the Subordinated Debentures
will be mandatorily redeemed.

As a result of the discontinuance of consolidation, the
following classifications have been made on the
December 31, 2003 balance sheet. Duquesne Light had a
$1.5 million investment in Duquesne Capital and debt
equal to the $151.5 million principal amount of the
Subordinated Debentures discussed above. In December
2003, Duquesne Capital issued a call notice for $50
million (or one third) of the outstanding MIPS effective
January 26, 2004. Accordingly, $50.5 million (or one
third) of the Subordinated Debentures were also called.
Therefore, as of December 31, 2003, $50.5 million of
Subordinated Debentures are included in current debt
maturities. The remaining $101 million is included in
long-term debt. The investment in an unconsolidated
subsidiary is included in other long-term investments.

Management of Holdings and Duquesne Light does
not believe the adoption of the remaining components of
FIN 46R will have a material impact on their consolidated
financial position, earnings or cash flows.

Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150,
"Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This
standard requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that falls within its scope as a liability, or as an
asset in some circumstances. This standard was adopted
effective July 1, 2003, and accordingly we began
classifying Holdings' preferred stock as a liability.

Holdings preferred stock falls within the scope of
SFAS No. 150 due to the mandatory conversion feature
embodied in this instrument and the fact that the
monetary value of the obligation is based solely on a fixed
monetary amount that is known at inception. Previously,
Holdings preferred stock, with a recorded value of $15.2
million as of December 31, 2003, was shown as a



component of capitalization on the consolidated balance
sheets. Upon adoption of this standard, the Holdings
preferred stock is included in other liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets ($8.6 million current and
$6.6 million non-current), with the dividends paid on the
stock classified as interest and other charges, rather than
dividends, effective after July 1, 2003.

Until the adoption of FIN 46R, the MIPS fell within
the scope of SFAS No. 150. There were $5.4 million in
costs associated with the issuance of the MIPS that were
previously recorded as a reduction of the equity proceeds.
Upon adoption of SFAS No. 150, these costs have been
treated as debt issuance costs, and effective July 1, 2003,
have been reclassified to other non-current assets on the
consolidated balance sheets. The effect on the statement
of income as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 150
was not material.

2. Rate Matters

COMPETITIVE TRANSITION CHARGE

Under Customer Choice, customers must choose to
receive their electric energy from an alternative
generation supplier or through Duquesne Light's POLR
arrangements. Customers who select an alternative
generation supplier pay for generation charges set
competitively by that supplier, and pay Duquesne Light
transmission and distribution charges and any CTC that
has not already been collected for a customer's rate class.

Duquesne Light has completed the CTC collection
from most of its customers. As of December 31, 2003, the
CTC balance has been fully collected for approximately
99.9% of customers, representing approximately 92% of
the megawatt-hour (MWh) sales for 2003. The transition
costs, as reflected on the consolidated balance sheets, are
being amortized over the same period that the CTC
revenues are being recognized. For regulatory purposes,
the unrecovered net of tax balance of transition costs was
approximately $5 million as of December 31, 2003, and
approximately $15 million as of December 31, 2002.
Duquesne Light is allowed to earn an 11.0% pre-tax
return on these amounts.

PROVIDER OF LAST RESORT

POILR [ and II. Orion Power Midwest (a subsidiary of
Reliant Resources, Inc.) is Duquesne Light's supplier
under POLR T and Il. As discussed in "Results of
Operations” above, POLR Il extends through
December 31, 2004, and permits Duquesne Light a
margin per MWh supplied. This margin fluctuates based
on the mix of rate classes and number of customers
participating in POLR II. The number of POLR customers
will fluctuate depending on market prices and the number
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of alternative generation suppliers in the retail supply
business.

There are certain safeguards in POLR | and 1l designed
to mitigate losses in the event that Orion defaults on its
performance under the arrangement. Contractually,
Duquesne Light has various credit enhancements to
address market exposure if Orion failed to deliver the
required POLR supply. As of December 31, 2003,
Duquesne Light held an irrevocable $7 million letter of
credit that could be increased based on Orion’s
investment ratings and net worth. Duquesne Light also
remits the POLR customer payments 35 days after billing
the customer. Duquesne Light has the right not to remit
these payments in the event of an Orion default.

If Orion were to fail to deliver, Duquesne Light would
be required to procure its POLR supply requirements in
the energy markets. If market prices for energy were
higher than the POLR rate at the time of default,
Duquesne Light could potentially be acquiring energy for
sale to POLR customers at a loss. If that were to happen
and the contractual provisions with Orion were not
sufficient to cover any loss, Duquesne Light would seek
regulatory recovery of any additional loss. While the
Customer Choice Act provides generally for POLR
supply costs to be borne by customers, prior litigation
suggests that the PUC may not permit Duquesne Light to
pass any costs in excess of the existing PUC-approved
POLR prices on to its customers.

Duquesne Light retains the risk that customers will not
pay for the POLR generation supply. However, a
component of Duquesne Light's delivery rate is designed
to cover the cost of a normal level of uncollectible
accounts.

POLR III. On December 9, 2003, Duquesne Light
submitted POLR I11, its rate plan and related generation
supply plan intended to cover the period beginning in
2005, to the PUC for approval.

On October 24, 2003, Duquesne Power, LP, a newly
formed subsidiary of Duquesne Light, announced the
signing of a definitive agreement to purchase WPS
Resources Corporation’s Sunbury generation station for
approximately $120 million, which includes inventories
and other items. The Sunbury plant would be used in
conjunction with Duquesne Light's POLR Il service to
residential and small commercial electric customers.
Closing on the transaction is conditioned on PUC
approval of POLR I, currently anticipated to occur in
the summer of 2004, as well as other related regulatory
approvals.

FERC Order No. 2000, as amended, calls on
transmission-owning utilities such as Duquesne Light to
join regional transmission organizations (RTOs) by
September 2004. Duquésne Light is committed to
ensuring a stable, plentiful supply of electricity for its




customers. Toward that end, Duquesne Light anticipates
joining the Pennsylvania-New Jersey-Maryland (PJM)
RTO as part of POLR IIl. Duquesne Light expects to
recover its incremental expenses incurred due to joining
PJM through its rates.

RATE FREEZE

In connection with POLR II, Duquesne Light
negotiated a rate freeze for generation, transmission and
distribution rates. The rate freeze fixed generation rates
tor retail POLR II customers through December 31, 2004,
and continued the transmission and distribution rates for
all customers at then-current levels through 2003. Under
certain circumstances, affected interests may file a
complaint alleging that Duquesne Light has exceeded
reasonable earnings, in which case the PUC could make
adjustments to rectify such earnings.

3.  Impairment Charges

DQE FINANCIAL
Fresh Kills. GSF Energy, L.L.C. (GSF), a DQE Financial

subsidiary, had a concession agreement expiring in
October 2018 for the gas rights to New York City's Fresh
Kills landfill. GSF also maintained an investment in a gas
processing facility at the landfill and was constructing
additional processing capacity when the World Trade
Center tragedy occurred. The debris from the World
Trade Center was transported to the Fresh Kills landfill
and currently rests on top of the landfill’s largest hill.
During 2002, GSF realized reductions in available gas due
to the continued effects of the World Trade Center debris
as well as other actions taken by the New York City
Department of Sanitation resulting in further damage to
its gas collection system. On January 16, 2003, GSF
initiated litigation against the City of New York acting by
and through its Department of Sanitation in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New
York. Concurrently, GSF tendered notice of its intent to
surrender the concession agreement in 180 days as
permitted by the concession agreement. The surrender
date was extended to facilitate settlement discussions.
The complaint sought rescission of the concession
agreement and related relief and sought an injunction to
prevent the City from taking any action to declare an
event of default under the concession agreement,
accelerate payment under a promissory note or draw
on letters of credit supporting GSF's obligations
thereunder. On that same date, GSF filed a notice of
claim with the New York City Comptroller seeking
monetary relief as an alternative to its rescission and other
claims set forth in the complaint. The complaint was
resolved in February 2004. (See Note 12.)
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DQE Financial (the Financial business segment)
recorded a $30.2 million pre-tax, or $19.7 million after-
tax, asset impairment charge relating to the Fresh Kills
landfill gas site during 2002. Based on reduced gas flows
experienced at the site and the actions taken to abandon
the gas rights, management determined that the Fresh
Kills investment was fully impaired, and recognized a
charge to write its investment in the gas rights and long-
lived assets to zero as of December 31, 2002.

During 2001, the excess weight from the World Trade
Center debris caused damage to the gas collection system
as well as reduced gas flows at the Fresh Kills site. Also,
additional security at the site caused construction delays,
and it was determined that the Fresh Kills investment was
partially impaired. DQE Financial also recognized a
charge due to asset abandonment or impairment at three
other landfill gas sites. These asset impairments resulted
in a $67.3 million pre-tax, or $43.7 million after-tax
impairment charge in 2001.

We determined the value of the DQE Financial
impairments by projecting the undiscounted future cash
flows generated by the specific assets over the assets’
expected lives. To the extent that the undiscounted future
cash flows did not exceed the book carrying value of the
assets, the future cash flows were discounted back at our
cost of borrowing to determine the carrying value of the
assets. The impairment charges recorded are the
difference between the previous book carrying values and
the carrying value determined by this process.

Other. DQE Financial maintains a limited partnership
investment in a waste-to-energy facility. In 2002,
Moody's Investor Service downgraded the credit rating of
the general partner's parent, who also guaranteed the
partnership’s obligations. This credit condition led to an
event of default under the partnership’s service agreement
to operate the underlying waste-to-energy facility for a
local authority. On April 1, 2002, the general partner, its
parent and the partnership filed for bankruptcy protection
under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The local
authority issued a notice to terminate the service
agreement; however, the termination was suspended
under the automatic stay protection afforded the
partnership by the bankruptcy filing.

The local authority’s original restructuring proposal,
made in December 2002, did not allow DQE Financial to
recover its investment in this project. Management
determined that the investment had been fully impaired.
This investment impairment resulted in a pre-tax charge
of $15.6 million, or $10.1 million after-tax, in 2002.
There is no remaining book value.

The partnership group, including DQE Financial, the
bondholders and the local authority agreed to a
restructured service agreement in October 2003. The
restructure is contingent upon the general partner's



parent’s emergence from bankruptcy. As part of the
restructuring, we received a distribution of $1.3 million of
previously escrowed cash.

DQE ENTERPRISES

In 2001, we formalized plans to monetize our DQE
Enterprises investments as opportunities presented
themselves. This business was not consistent with our
focus on our core regulated utility businesses, and
opportunities related to these investments did not
develop as expected due to market conditions.

During the second quarter of 2003, DQE Enterprises
wrote down two investments in publicly traded applied
technology businesses to their quoted market value as of
the balance sheet date, and recognized the associated
impairment charge of $1.0 million. This charge reflected
an other-than-temporary decline in the market value of
the underlying securities. DQE Enterprises sold all its
publicly held investments, and there is no book value
remaining, as of December 31, 2003.

During 2002, Enterprises wrote down three
investments in publicly traded applied technology
businesses to their quoted market value as of the balance
sheet date, and recognized the associated pre-tax
impairment charge of $10.9 million. This charge reflected
an other-than-temporary decline in the market value of
the underlying securities. Enterprises also recorded a $7.2
million pre-tax impairment charge for the write-off of five
investments in privately held entities, two of which had
filed for protection under Chapter 7 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code. No tax benefit was recorded relating to
these impairment charges.

During 2001, Enterprises sold two investments and
recognized an impairment charge to write off all or parts
of 11 other investments, resulting in a pre-tax charge of
$61.7 million, or $36.1 million after-tax.

We determined the value of the impairment of each of
the privately held investments by analyzing their business
prospects. This analysis included an evaluation of the
business’ cash on-hand, its fundraising abilities, its number
of customers and contracts, and its overall ability to
continue as a going concern. In addition, we obtained an
independent external valuation for certain of the

businesses.

4.  Restructuring Charges

In 2001, we recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of
$27.9 million (including $10.8 million at Duquesne Light)
related to (1) the consolidation and reduction of certain
administrative and back-office functions through an
involuntary termination plan; (2) the abandonment of
certain office facilities; and (3) the write-off of certain
leasehold-improvements related to those office facilities.
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Approximately 170 employees (96 at Duquesne Light)
were terminated in connection with this restructuring.

In 2002, we recorded a pre-tax restructuring charge of
$4.2 million (including $3.7 million at Duquesne Light)
related to further consolidation and centralization of
certain administrative functions. The 2002 restructuring
charge primarily included severance costs for 20
executive, management, professional and administrative
personnel (14 at Duquesne Light), all of whom were
terminated by June 30, 2003.

In 2002, we increased our restructuring liability and
restructuring expense by approximately $1.0 million for
revisions to our 2001 restructuring plan. Approximately
$1.2 million of this increase (including $0.2 million at
Duquesne Light) was due to revised estimates of certain
severance-related benefits to be paid. Offsetting this
increase was a decrease to the 2001 restructuring liability
of $0.2 million resulting from a partial lease termination at
one of our former office facilities.

In 2003, we increased our restructuring liability by
$0.8 million for revised estimates of severance benefits to
be paid under the 2002 restructuring plan. In addition, we
decreased the 2001 restructuring liability by $1.4 million
(including $0.2 million at Duquesne Light), primarily due
to future sublease income for one of our abandoned office
locations.

The following table summarizes the restructuring
activities for the Holdings 2001 and 2002 restructuring
plans.

Holdings Restructuring Liability
{Millions of Dollars)

Employee
Termination  Lease
Benefits Costs  Total
Beginning Balance,

November 30, 2001 (a) $18.1  $9.8 $2709
Payments in 2001 (4.2) (2.0) (6.2)
Balance,

December 31, 2001 (a) 13.9 7.8 21.7
Restructuring charge 2002 49 — 49
Adjustments to 2001 1.2 (0.2) 1.0
Payments on 2002 (0.3) — (0.3)
Payments on 2001 (11.4) (2.8) (14.2)
Balance,

December 31, 2002 (a) 8.3 4.8 13.1
Adjustments to 2002 0.8 —_ 0.8
Adjustments to 2001 (0.2) (1.2) (1.4)
Payments on 2002 (3.9) -— (3.5)
Payments on 2001 (2.1) (1.8) (3.9)
Balance,

December 31, 2003 (a) $33 $1.8 $5.1

(a) Excludes $2.9 million, $2.8 million, $2.3 million and $0.9
million of restructuring liabilities as of November 30, 2001,
December 31, 2001, December 31, 2002 and December 31,
2003 that are included in discontinued operations.




The Holdings $5.1 million combined remaining
restructuring liability net of discontinued operations as of
December 31, 2003 is included in other liabilities on the
consolidated balance sheets. We believe that the
remaining provision is adequate to complete the
restructuring plan. We expect that the remaining
restructuring liability will be paid on a monthly basis
through 2006.

The following table summarizes the restructuring
activities for the Duquesne Light 2001 and 2002
restructuring plans.

Duquesne Light Restructuring Liability
{Millions of Dollars)

Employee
Termination Lease
Benefits Costs Total
Beginning Balance,

November 30, 2001 $83 $25 %108
Payments in 2001 (1.7) (0.3) (2.0)
Balance,

December 31, 2001 6.6 2.2 8.8
Restructuring charge 2002 43 — 4.3
Adjustments to 2001 0.2 — 0.2
Payments on 2002 (0.3) — (0.3)
Payments on 2001 (5.9) (0.3) (6.2)
Balance,

December 31, 2002 4.9 1.9 6.8
Adjustments to 2001 (0.2) — (0.2)
Payments on 2002 (2.3) (2.3)
Payments on 2001 (0.7) (0.3) (1.0)
Balance,

December 31, 2003 $17 $16 $33

The Duquesne Light $3.3 million combined remaining
restructuring liability as of December 31, 2003 is included
in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
Duguesne Light believes that the remaining provision is
adequate to complete the restructuring plan and expects
that the remaining restructuring liability will be paid on a
monthly basis through 2006.

5.  Equity

Holdings. On June 26, 2002 we issued 17,250,000
shares of Holdings common stock at $13.50 per share in
an underwritten public offering. We received net
proceeds, after payment of underwriters discounts and
commissions and other expenses, of $223.4 million.
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Changes in the Number of Shares of Holdings Common
Stock Qutstanding as of December 31,

{(Millions of Shares)

2003 2002 2001

January 1 74.3 559 559
Issuances 1.1 18.4 —
December 31 75.4 74.3 559

Once all dividends on Holdings preferred stock have
been paid, dividends may be paid on Holdings common
stock as permitted by law and as declared by the board of
directors. Since we are a holding company, substantially
all of the assets shown on our consolidated balance sheets
are held by our subsidiaries. Accordingly, our earnings
and cash flow, and our ability to meet our obligations, are
largely dependent upon the earnings and cash flows of
such subsidiaries and the distribution or other payment of
such earnings to us in the form of dividends, loans or
advances, and repayment of loans and advances from us.
Our subsidiaries are separate and distinct legal entities
and have no obligation to pay any amounts due on our
securities or to make any funds available for such
payments. QOur subsidiaries’ ability to make dividend
payments or other distributions to us may be restricted by
their obligations to holders of their outstanding debt and
preferred securities and to their creditors, the availability
of earnings and the needs of their businesses.

If Duquesne Light cannot pay common dividends, we
may not be able to pay dividends on Holdings common
stock or preferred stock.

No part of the retained earnings of Holdings was
restricted at December 31, 2003.

During 2003, we paid total common stock dividends
of $75.1 million, and of this amount, $10.7 million was
reinvested to purchase approximately 737,000 shares of
treasury stock for those shareholders who participated in
our Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase
Plan (DRIP).

Also during 2003, we issued approximately 241,000
shares of treasury stock for purchases made by
shareholders under our DRIP.

During 2002, we paid total common stock dividends
of $90.2 million, and of this amount, $16.1 million was
reinvested to purchase approximately 926,000 shares of
treasury stock for those shareholders who participated in
our DRIP.

Also during 2002, we issued approximately 236,000
shares of treasury stock for purchases made by
shareholders under our DRIP.

During 2001, we paid total common stock dividends
of $96.2 million.

Also during 2001, we issued approximately 21,000
shares of treasury stock for purchases made by
shareholders under our DRIP.



Duguesne Light. In July 1989, Duquesne Light became a
wholly owned subsidiary of Holdings, whose common
stock replaced the outstanding shares of Duquesne Light's
common stock, except for the 10 shares Holdings holds.

Payments of dividends on Duquesne Light common
stock may be restricted by obligations to holders of its
preferred and preference stock, pursuant to its Restated
Articles of Incorporation, and by obligations of a
subsidiary to holders of its preferred securities. No
dividends or distributions may be made on Duquesne
Light's common stock if it has not paid dividends or
sinking fund obligations on its preferred or preference
stock. Dividends may also be effectively limited by the
terms of certain financing agreements. Further, the
aggregate amount of common stock dividend payments or
distributions may not exceed certain percentages of net
income, if the ratio of total common shareholder's equity
to total capitalization is less than specified percentages.
No part of Duquesne Light's retained earnings was
restricted at December 31, 2003.

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, Duquesne Light paid
dividends on common stock of $69.0 million, $63.7
million and $56.0 million.

Accumulated other comprehensive income consists of
unrealized gains or losses on available for sale
investments.

6. Dispositions

In 2003, DQE Financial sold a limited partnership
investment in a natural gas operating partnership for
$18.5 million and recognized an after-tax gain of $7.0
million. DQE Enterprises received $2.5 million for the
sale of stock in three publicly traded companies and
recognized an after-tax gain of $0.6 million. Duquesne
Light sold its 50% investment in a small mining operation
for $1.4 million ($1.0 million of which was a note
receivable), which resulted in an after-tax gain of $0.4
million.

In 2002 DQE Financial sold a significant portion of its
remaining affordable housing portfolio, receiving
proceeds of approximately $17 million, which
approximated book value. Duquesne Light received $1.3
million from the sale of securities and recognized an after-
tax gain of $0.8 million. Duquesne Light received $1.3
million from the sale of a building and recognized an
after-tax gain of $0.3 million. DQE Enterprises also
received $3.4 million for the sale of an electronic
commerce investment, which approximated book value.

Holdings sold its bottled water assets in May 2001.
The sale resulted in an after-tax loss of $15.0 million, of
which $10.0 million had been recorded in December
2000.

In July 2001, the Allegheny County Airport Authority
purchased the Pittsburgh International Airport energy
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facility from a DQE Enterprises subsidiary, and entered
into a 15-year operations and maintenance agreement
regarding the facility with DQE Energy Services. The
transaction resulted in an approximate $8.4 million after-
tax gain.

In total, Holdings received approximately $47 million
in proceeds for these two dispositions and other non-
strategic investments in 2001. This includes $1.6 million
at Duquesne Light.

In 2001, we sold a significant portion of our remaining
affordable housing portfolio, receiving proceeds of
approximately $34.0 million ($3.4 million at Duquesne
Light), which approximated bock value. DQE Enterprises
sold an office building, receiving proceeds of $18.5
million, which approximated book value.

7.  Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment at Duquesne Light
includes: (1) distribution poles and equipment; (2) lower
voltage distribution wires used in delivering electricity to
customers; (3) substations and transformers; (4) high
voltage transmission wires used in delivering electricity to
substations; (5) meters and automated meter reading
assets; and (6) internal telecommunication equipment,
vehicles and office equipment, all used in the electricity
delivery business segment.

Property, plant and equipment at Holdings consists of
energy facilities used in our Energy Services business
segment, the fiber optic network owned by DQE
Communications (reported in the “all other" category)

-and landfill gas recovery equipment used in our Financial

business segment.

8. Long-Term Investments

Through DQE Financial, we have historically made
equity investments in affordable housing, synthetic fuel
and gas reserve partnerships as a limited partner. At
December 31, 2003, we had limited partnership
investments in two affordable housing funds, one
synthetic fuel partnership and one natural gas operating
partnership. Additionally, we maintain investments in
landfill gas rights at 21 landfills and seven structured lease
transactions involving a waste-to-energy facility, high-
speed ferries and electric generating equipment, and two
leveraged leases involving mining equipment and a gas
processing facility.

The leases expire in various years beginning in 2011
through 2037. The recorded residual value of the
equipment at the end of the lease terms ranges from 0%
to 10% of the original cost.

The aggregate leveraged lease investment represents
20% of the aggregate original cost of the property. The




remaining 80% was financed by non-recourse debt,
provided by lenders who have been granted, as their sole
remedy in the event of default by the lessees, an
assignment of rentals due under the leases and a security
interest in the leased property. The lessees have
investment grade credit ratings.

The aggregate structured lease investment represents
approximately 20% of the total aggregate transaction.
The remaining 80% was financed by non-recourse debt,
which is substantially defeased. Equity in these
transactions is protected by a combination of defeasance
accounts, letters of credit and lessee guarantees.

The total lease investment debt outstanding was
$776.3 million and $841.6 million as of December 31,
2003 and 2002.

Net Lease Investments at December 31,
(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002

Rentals receivable — net $610.4 $611.2
Estimated residual value 11.5 11.5

Less: Unearned Income (106.8) (127.6)
Lease investments 515.1 4951
Less: Deferred raxes (240.6) (385.0)
Net Lease Investments $274.5 $110.1

As a result of the settlement agreement reached with
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) in 2003, a significant
amount of previously deferred taxes became currently
payable. (See Note 10.)

9.  Short-Term Borrowing and
Revolving Credit Arrangements

We maintain two 364-day, unsecured revolving credit
agreements, one for $180 million at Duquesne Light and
one for $110 million at Holdings. Both expire in
September 2004. We may convert each revolving credit
facility into a one-year term loan facility for (i) the
amount of letters of credit outstanding plus (ii) one-half
of the principal loan amounts less the amount of letters of
credit outstanding. At December 31, 2003, no borrowings
were outstanding; however, we had $92.9 million in
standby letters of credit (including $10.1 million relating
to Duquesne Light), $69.8 million of which are backed by
the revolving credit agreements, leaving $220.2 million
available (including $169.9 million available at Duquesne
Light). These letters of credit relate primarily to DQE
Financial.

As of March 3, 2004, $41 million was outstanding
under the Duquesne Light revolving credit facility,
bearing an average interest rate of 2.2% annually.

Decreases in our credit ratings could result in an
inverse change in the fees and interest rates charged
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under the facilities. Both revolving credit agreements are
subject to cross-default if Duquesne Light or any
subsidiary defaults on any payment due under any
indebtedness exceeding $50 million. In addition, the $110
million revolver is subject to cross-default if Holdings or
any subsidiary defaults on any payments due under any of
its indebtedness exceeding $50 million.

Under our credit facilities, we are subject to financial
covenants requiring each of Holdings and Duquesne
Light to maintain a maximum debt-to-capitalization ratio
of 65.0%, as defined in the facilities. In addition,
Holdings is required to maintain a minimum coverage
ratio of 2-to-1, as defined in the facilities. At
December 31, 2003, we were in compliance with these
covenants.

In the first quarter of 2003, Standard & Poor's reduced
Holdings' and Duquesne Light's short-term corporate
credit and commercial paper ratings by one level, thereby
restricting our access to the commercial paper market.
These ratings downgrades do not limit our ability to
access our revolving credit facilities. These ratings are not
a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any securities of
Holdings, Duquesne Light or their subsidiaries, may be
subject to revisions or withdrawal by the agencies at any
time, and should be evaluated independently of each
other and any other rating that may be assigned to our
securities.

Holdings. As of December 31, 2003, we had no
commercial paper borrowings outstanding, and $51.5
million of current debt maturities. During 2003, the
maximum amount of bank loans outstanding was $35
million (borrowed to facilitate the redemption of $100
million of first mortgage bonds, and repaid within three
days), the amount of average daily borrowings was $0.3
million and the weighted average daily interest rate
was 2.38%.

As of December 31, 2002, we had no commercial
paper borrowings outstanding and $1.0 million of current
debt maturities. During 2002, the maximum amount of
bank loans and commercial paper borrowings outstanding
at any date was $155 million, the amount of average daily
borrowings was $45.8 million, and the weighted average
daily interest rate was 2.34%.

As of December 31, 2001, we had $151.0 million of
current debt maturities and no commercial paper
borrowings outstanding. During 2001, the maximum
amount of bank loans and commercial paper borrowings
outstanding at any date was $55.0 million, the amount of
average daily borrowings was $22.7 million, and the
weighted average daily interest rate was 4.79%.

Duguesne Light. As of December 31, 2003, Duquesne
Light had no commercial paper borrowings outstanding,
and $50.5 million of current debt maturities. During



2003, there were no bank loans or commercial paper
borrowings outstanding.

As of December 31, 2002, Duquesne Light had no
commercial paper borrowings outstanding and no current
debt maturities. During 2002, the maximum amount of
bank loans and commercial paper borrowings outstanding
at any date was $125 million, the amount of average daily
borrowings was $43.7 million, and the weighted average
daily interest rate was 2.34%.

As of December 31, 2001, Duguesne Light had no
current debt maturities and no commercial paper
borrowings outstanding. During 2001, there were no
bank loans or commercial paper borrowings outstanding.

10. Income Taxes

In December 2003, we reached a settlement
agreement with the IRS regarding DQE Financial's
structured lease transactions and other similar investments
that had been under review as a result of an IRS audit.
The tax liability associated with the settlement was
determined for the years 1994 through 1997. In addition,
treatment of the structured lease transactions has been
agreed to for all future years affected by the transactions.
As a result of the confidential agreement, achieved
through the IRS' fast track settlement program, we agreed
to make additional cash payments for the tax years 1994
through 2002 of $84.3 million, net of the $12.4 million
tax benefit associated with the interest due. We paid
$48.6 million in December 2003. There was no earnings
impact in 2003 from this resolution.

Subsequent to the settlement agreement having been
reached in 2003, the annual federal corporate income tax
returns have been audited by the IRS and are closed for
the tax years through 1997. The IRS is currently auditing
the 1998 through 2002 tax years. During 2003, we sold
the remainder of our investment in AquaSource. Due to
this divestiture, capital losses were generated which can
be carried back against prior capital gains. In 2003, the
results of discontinued operations reflect the tax benefit
of approximately $67 million resulting from this
carryback claim. The expected refund will consist of cash
of approximately $32 million, as well as tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $35 million that will be
made available to us. As of December 31, 2003, the
expected cash refund has been recorded as a reduction to
our current tax liability, while the expected tax credits
have been recorded as a deferred tax asset and are
included in the tax credit carryforward amount in the
table below.

53

Our state income tax returns are subject to review by
the relevant taxing jurisdictions, Pennsylvania being the
most significant. The Pennsylvania Department of
Revenue has issued assessments of additional tax for 1999
and 2000 primarily to include income of a Duquesne
Light out of state subsidiary corporation in Pennsylvania
taxable income. The 2001 tax year is currently being
audited. I, as expected, the Department asserts the same
positions for 2001 through 2003, Duquesne Light's total
exposure for all years, without interest or penalty, could
approximate $90 million (net of associated federal
benefit). Duquesne Light does not agree with the
Department on this matter, and has filed an appeal for the
1999 tax year with the Pennsylvania Commonwealth
Court. The assessment for the 2000 tax year is currently
awaiting decision from the Department. Ultimately,
Duquesne Light expects all years involved to be appealed
to and decided at the Pennsylvania Commonwealth
Court.

It is not possible to predict if, when or to what extent
any state income tax adjustments ultimately proposed for
the period 1999 through 2003 will be sustained.
Duquesne Light does not believe that the ultimate
resolution of its state tax issue for this period will have a
material adverse effect on its financial position or results
of operation. However, the resolution, depending on the
extent and timing thereof, could have a material adverse
effect on cash flows for the period in which they are paid.

Dugquesne Light Holdings
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities) as of December 31,
(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002
Restructuring charges

and impairments $ 4.9 § 482
Tax credit carryforward 92.4 63.4
Capital loss carryforward 35.8 32.8
Warwick Mine closing costs 11.2 12.5
Pension and benefit costs 49.3 332
Other 35.3 28.4
Deferred tax assets 228.9 218.5
Transition costs (6.6) (8.4)
Property depreciation (284.9) (288.9)
Leveraged leases (240.6) (385.0)

LLoss on reacquired debt
unamortized (17.6) (17.1)
Regulatory assets (92.1) (92.5)
Other (61.2) {41.3)
Deferred tax liabilities (703.0) (833.2)
Net $ (474.1) $ (614.7)




Income Tax Expense (Ben

efit)
(Millions of Dollars)

Income Tax Expense
{Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Current; Current:
Federal. $151.4 § 13.1 § 57 Federal $ 63.3 § 66.5 $111.7
State 8.4 5.9 25 State 9.1 5.1 1.8
Deferred: Deferred:
Federal (141.5) (32.4) (82.9) Federal (26.4) (26.4) (84.6)
State (0.6) 1.8 (2.7) State _(0.6) 3.7 1.9
Income Taxes $ 177 $(11.6) $ (77.4) Income Taxes $ 45.4 $ 489 $ 30.8

Total income taxes differ from the amount computed

by applying the statutory f

income before income taxes, as set forth in the following

table.

ederal income tax rate to

Income Tax Expense Reconciliation

(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Computed federal
income tax statutory
rate (35%) $38.8 $ 53 $(42.7)
Increase (decrease) in
taxes resulting from:
State income taxes,
net of federal income
tax benefits 5.2 5.0 (0.1}
Tax credits (31.3) (31.5) (41.8)
Non-deductible expenses - 2.5 6.3 10.0
Other 2.5 3.3 (2.8)
Total Income Tax
Expense (Benefit) $17.7 $(11.6) $(77.4)

Duquesne Light Company
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities) as of December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002
Pension and benefit costs $ 47.7 $ 332
Warwick Mine closing costs 11.2 12.5
Other 18.8 18.3
Deferred tax assets 77.7 64.0
Transition costs (6.6) (8.4)
Property depreciation (291.2) (288.9)
Loss on reacquired debt
unamortized (17.6) (17.1)
Regulatory assets (92.1) (92.5)
Other (33.8) (47.0)
Deferred tax liabilities (441.3) (453.9)
Net $(363.6) $(389.9)
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Total income taxes differ from the amount computed
by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to
income before income taxes {after deducting dividends on
preferred and preference stock), as set forth in the
following table.

Income Tax Expense Reconciliation

(Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Computed federal
income tax statutory
rate (35%) $39.1 $42.4 $28.3
Increase (decrease) in
taxes resulting from:
State income taxes, net
of federal income
tax benefits 5.6 57 2.4
Tax credits (0.2) (0.3) (0.7)
Other 0.9 i.1 0.8
Total Income Tax
Expense $454 $489 $308
11. Leases

We lease office buildings and other property and
equipment.

Dugquesne Light Holdings
Capital Leases as of December 31,
{Millions of Dollars}

2003 2002

Electric plant $10.1 $10.2
Less: Accumulated amortization (7.8) (7.4)
Capital Leases — Net $ 23 $ 2.8




Summary of Rental Expense

(Millions of Dollars)

Future Minimum Lease Payments
(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31, Operating Capital
2003 2002 2001 Year Ended December 31, Leases Leases
Operating leases $14.5 $92 §$86 2004 $ 38 $ 07
Amortization of capital 2005 4.1 0.7
leases 0.4 0.4 0.3 2006 49 07
Interest on capital leases 1.1 1.1 1.2 2007 4.7 0.9
Total Rental Expense $16.0 $10.7  $10.1 2008 and thereafter 16.4 —
Total $327 $ 3.0

Less: Amount representing
Future Minimum Lease Payments interest 0.7
(Millions of Dollars) Present value $23

Operating Capital
Year Ended December 31, Leases Leases
2004 $ 92 $ 07
2005 8.3 0.7
2006 8.4 0.7
2007 8.4 0.9
2008 and thereafter 57.3 -
Total $91.6 $ 3.0
Less: Amount representing
interest 0.7
Present value $ 23

Dugquesne Light Company

Capital Leases at December 31,

{Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002

Electric plant $10.1 $10.2
Less: Accumulated

amortization (7.8) (7.4)

Capital Leases — Net $ 2.3 $ 28

Summary of Rental Expense

(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Operating leases $114 $52 $ 86
Amortization of capital

leases 0.4 0.4 0.3

Interest on capital leases 1.1 1.1 1.2

Total Rental Expense  $12.9 $ 67 $10.1
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Future minimum lease payments for operating leases
are related principally to an energy facility and certain
corporate offices. Future minimum capital lease payments
relate to a building.

In 2001, we amended the existing lease at our
downtown Pittsburgh offices and extended the lease term
to December 2011. The lease agreement contains one
five-year renewal option. In 2003, we revised the facility
utilization plan at our downtown Pittsburgh offices,
which resulted in a charge of $4.9 million at Duquesne
Light for the vacant space identified. In addition, a $1.4
million charge was recorded in discontinued operations
for the space previously occupied by AquaSource.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

GUARANTEES

As part of DQE Financial's investment portfolio in
seven affordable housing funds, we have received fees in
exchange for guaranteeing a minimum defined yield to
third-party investors. We entered into these transactions
between 1995 and 1999 because of the attractive
risk/reward characteristics available to guarantors. This
group of guarantees will expire by 2015. In the event the
underlying affordable housing properties do not generate
the necessary minimum yield before their expiration, we
will make cash payments necessary to achieve the
minimum yield. The original amount guaranteed was
approximately $250 million, and has declined as investors
have earned the guaranteed returns. We estimate the
maximum potential amount of undiscounted future
payments that we could be required to make under the
guarantees if the investors earn no future returns was
$59.2 million at December 31, 2003. Of the fees received
from third-party investors, $9.4 million has been deferred
to absorb any payments or tax recapture with respect to
our guarantees. Based on an evaluation of and recent
experience with the underlying housing projects, we
believe that such deferrals are ample for this purpose.




In connection with DQE Energy Services' 2000 sale,
through a subsidiary, of its synthetic fuel facilities, we
agreed to guarantee the subsidiary's obligation under the
sales agreement to indemnify the purchaser against
breach of warranties, representations or covenants. The
guarantee generally extends up to six years or otherwise
as stipulated under statute of limitations, based on the
expiration of the underlying warranty, representation, or
covenant. We have determined our exposure to be
limited, as both legal and factual representations and
warranties have been primarily limited to matters within
the control and knowledge of our subsidiary. As such, no
liability has been recorded on the statement of financial
position. Also, Holdings has backed certain limited
obligations during a long-term contract held by its
subsidiary with a $1.5 million payment guarantee that has
not been recorded as a liability on the consolidated
balance sheets. We do not believe these guarantees will
have any material impact on our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

In conjunction with certain transactions, primarily
divestitures, we provide routine indemnifications (e.g.,
retention of previously existing environmental, tax and
employee liabilities) whose terms range in duration and
often are not explicitly defined. Where appropriate, an
obligation for such indemnifications is recorded as a
liability. Because the obligated amounts of these types of
indemnifications often are not explicitly stated, the
overall maximum amount of the obligation under such
indemnifications cannot be reasonably estimated. Other
than obligations recorded as liabilities at the time of
divestiture, historically we have not made significant
payments for these indemnifications.

EMPLOYEES

Duquesne Light is a party to a labor contract with the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, which
represents 941 of Duquesne Light's 1,310 employees. This
contract was recently renegotiated and expires in
September 2006.

PENSION PLANS

Duquesne Light has an obligation to contribute
approximately $32.1 million to its pension plans over
future years. (See Note 14.)

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Sharebolder Class Action. [n October and November

2001, a number of putative class action lawsuits were filed
by purported shareholders of Holdings against Holdings
and David Marshall, our former chairman, chief executive
officer and president, in the United States District Court
for the Western District of Pennsylvania. These cases
were consolidated under the caption In re DQE, Inc.
Securities Litigation, Master File No. 01-1851 (W .D. Pa.),
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and the plaintiffs filed a second consolidated amended
complaint on April 15, 2002. The complaint alleges
violations of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder, and Section 12(a)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933 (the "Securities Act”). The complaint also alleges
controlling person liability under Section 20(a) of the
Exchange Act and Section 15 of the Securities Act. The
complaint alleges that between December 6, 2000 and
April 30, 2001, the defendants issued a number of
materially false and misleading statements concerning
investments made by our subsidiary, DQE Enterprises,
and the impact that these investments would have on our
current and future financial results.

More particularly, the complaint alleges that Holdings
and Marshall stated their expectation that certain
companies in which DQE Enterprises had invested would
undertake initial public offerings of their shares, with the
result that our earnings would be positively impacted by
the public market valuation of DQE Enterprises’ interests
in these companies, but failed to disclose allegedly
adverse facts that made the possibility of successful public
offerings of the securities of these companies unlikely.
The complaint seeks an award of unspecified
compensatory damages, and an order permitting class
members who purchased Holdings shares through a
dividend reinvestment plan to rescind those purchases,
pre- and post-judgment interest, attorneys' fees and
expenses of litigation and unspecified equitable and
injunctive relief.

On May 20, 2003, the court certified a class to include
purchasers of our common stock during the period from
December 6, 2000 through April 30, 2001, and a sub-class
to include purchasers of our common stock through our
dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan during the
same period. Since December 2002, we have been
engaged in pre-trial discovery. The court recently
extended fact discovery through April 2004, with expert
witness discovery to continue until August 2004,

Although we cannot predict the ultimate outcome of
this case or estimate the range of any potential loss that
may be incurred in the litigation, we believe that the
lawsuit is without merit, strenuously deny all of the
plaintiffs’ allegations of wrongdoing and believe we have
meritorious defenses to the plaintiffs' claims. We are
vigorously defending this lawsuit.

Fresh Kills. As discussed in Note 3, GSF has been
involved in settlement discussions with the City of New
York regarding the Fresh Kills landfill gas rights
concession agreement. On January 7, 2004, GSF and the
City executed an amended and restated concession
agreement. Closing on the agreement occurred February
18, 2004, at which time GSF paid $4.5 million to the City
and was released from all financial obligations under the




prior concession agreement (including the remaining
$21.4 million note payable balance to the City). As a
direct result of the settlement, we will recognize
approximately $16 million into income ratably over the
new contract term. Under the new agreement GSF will
perform routine and non-routine maintenance of the
landfill gas processing facility and routine maintenance of
the landfill gas collection system through June 30, 2006.
Future revenues from gas sales at the site will be shared
between the City and GSF if such revenues exceed the
agreed-upon costs of providing the services. The lawsuit
was withdrawn with prejudice on February 18, 2004.

SYNTHETIC FUEL TAX CREDITS

Section 29 of the Internal Revenue Code provides tax
credits for the production and sale of non-conventional
fuels, including solid synthetic fuels produced from coal.
To qualify for the Section 29 tax credits, the synthetic
fuel must, among other things, meet three primary
conditions: (i) there must be a significant chemical
change in the coal feedstock, (ii) the product must be sold
to an unaffiliated entity, and (iii) the production facility
must have been placed in service before July 1, 1998.
Section 29 tax credits are currently scheduled to expire at
the end of 2007.

In June 2003, the IRS announced that it had reason to
question the scientific validity of certain test procedures
and results that have been presented to it by taxpayers
with interests in synthetic fuel operations as evidence that
the required significant chemical change has occurred,
and that it was reviewing information regarding these test
procedures and practices. The IRS also said, pending a
review, it would stop issuing new private letters rulings
{PLRs) relating to synthetic fuel facilities, and indicated
that it could revoke already issued PLRs if it found that
significant chemical change had not occurred.

In October 2003, the IRS announced it had finished
its review of the scientific data involving synthetic fuel,
and determined that the test procedures and results used
by taxpayers are scientifically valid if the procedures are
applied in a consistent and unbiased manner. Companies
with current PLRs will be required to maintain specified
sampling and quality control procedures and obtain
regular reports from independent laboratories that have
analyzed the synthetic fuel production to verify the coal
feedstock undergoes a significant chemical change. The
IRS also is considering whether to require the laboratories
used for synthetic fuels testing to be accredited by the
NIST National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation
Program.

From 1997 to September 2000, a subsidiary of DQE
Energy Services owned and operated several synthetic
fuel facilities, which were sold to a third party in
September 2000. We recognized approximately
$10 million of tax credits related to these facilities during

57

this period. As part of its audit of our open tax years
(1998 to the present), the IRS will be reviewing the
synthetic fuel operations.

Since the sale, DQE Energy Services has operated and
maintained the facilities under an agreement expiring in
2007. DQE Energy Services earnings related to fees under
this agreement were approximately $17 million in 2003.
(See "Guarantees” above.)

A subsidiary of DQE Financial holds an 8.3% limited
partnership interest in an entity that owns and operates
four projects to produce and sell coal-based synthetic
fuel. The IRS audited the entity for the tax years 1998
through 2001, and made no tax credit disallowances. We
recognized approximately $27 million of tax credits from
the investment in the open tax years 2002 and 2003.

OTHER

Continuing Operations

In 1992, the Pennsylvania Department of
Environmental Protection (DEP) issued Residual Waste
Management Regulations governing the generation and
management of non-hazardous residual waste, such as
coal ash. Following the generation asset divestiture,
Duquesne Light retained certain facilities which remain
subject to these regulations. We have assessed our
residual waste management sites, and the DEP has
approved our compliance strategies. We expect the costs
of compliance to be approximately $6.6 million with
respect to sites we will continue to own. These costs were
recovered in the CTC, and the corresponding liability has
been recorded for current and future obligations.

Duguesne Light owns the closed Warwick Mine,
located along the Monongahela River in Greene County,
Pennsylvania. This property had been used in the
electricity supply business segment. Duguesne Light has
been selling unused portions of the property and will
continue to do so. Duquesne Light's current estimated
liability for closing the Warwick Mine, including final site
reclamation, mine water treatment and certain labor
liabilities, is approximately $27 million. Duquesne Light
has recorded a liability for this amount on the
consolidated balance sheets,

Discontinued Operations

AquaSource's former water and water-related
operations were, and remain, subject to the Federal Safe
Drinking Water Act, which provides for uniform minimum
national water quality standards, as well as governmental
authority to specify treatment processes to be used for
drinking water. AquaSource's former operations were
also, and remain, subject to the Federal Clean Water Act,
which regulates the discharge of pollutants into
waterways. AquaSource is aware of various compliance
issues at its former water and wastewater facilities
attributable to the period of time during which




AquaSource owned these facilities. AquaSource has
agreed to indemnify the purchasers of these facilities for
certain pre-closing environmental liabilities and is
communicating and working closely with the purchasers
of its former operations and appropriate regulators to
correct those issues in a timely manner. We do not
believe that AquaSource's indemnity obligations in
respect of any of these compliance issues will have a
material effect on Holding's financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Prior to divesting its former operations, AquaSource
entered into various consent agreements regarding certain
environmental compliance matters. In connection with
divesting its former operations, AquaSource assigned
these consent agreements to the relevant purchasers.
Although AquaSource has agreed to indemnify the
purchasers of its former operations for certain pre-closing
environmental liabilities, we do not believe that any of
these indemnity obligations will have a material effect on
Holding's financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

As part of the transaction, we retained certain
obligations related to the business that was sold to
Philadelphia Suburban Corporation (PSC), including
responsibility for certain existing litigation matters as well
as a 10-year indemnity for certain pre-closing
environmental claims. We purchased an environmental
liability policy to mitigate this indemnity. We also have a
maximum three-year indemnity obligation for certain
other pre-closing liabilities that is limited by a $15 million
indemnity cap. To date, indemnity claims of which we are
aware are not significant.

13. Discontinued Operations

Pursuant to agreements entered into in 2002 to sell the
majority of our investment in AquaSource and our
investment in Pro Am, as well as our commitment to sell
the remaining net assets of AquaSource, these subsidiaries
have been reflected as discontinued operations in the
consolidated financial statements. Prior year financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the
discontinued operations presentation.

AQUASOURCE

On July 31, 2003, AquaSource closed the sale of its
investor-owned water utilities (and certain related
contract operations) to PSC for an estimated purchase
price of approximately $195 million in cash, including
approximately $5 million related to working capital. PSC
also assumed $10.4 million of debt associated with the
business. The final purchase price will be determined
once various purchase price adjustments are applied.
These adjustments will be based on the pre-closing
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achievement of specific performance measures related to
revenue, rate base and customer connections, as well as
working capital. In October 2003, AquaSource returned
$2.8 million to PSC related to purchase price adjustments
attributable to the difference between the estimated
closing purchase price and the proposed final closing
purchase price. [n November 2003, $2.0 million was
returned to PSC related to purchase price adjustments and
working capital. The maximum remaining purchase price
adjustment that could result is approximately $12 million.
However, we have been unable to resolve remaining
purchase price issues, and with PSC, will be appointing an
arbitrator. We do not expect that any additional purchase
price adjustments will have a material adverse effect on
our financial position or results of operations.

Due to the earlier than anticipated closing of this sale,
we were not required to make certain expenditures,
thereby increasing the net recorded fair value of
AquaSource by approximately $11.5 million after-tax,
which was recorded in June 2003. The 2003 income also
included a $66.6 million tax benefit related to the use of
capital losses generated in connection with the sale of the
AquaSource subsidiaries. {See Note 10.)

On April 30, 2003, AquaSource closed the sale of a
water utility subsidiary to California Water Services
Group, receiving $7.5 million of proceeds at closing,
though subsequent purchase price adjustments reduced
the net amount to $6.1 million. The water utility sale also
caused a purchase price adjustment to be applied with
respect to the assets being acquired by PSC. Also, on
April 30, 2003, the Alabama contract operations were
terminated and AquaSource received $0.9 million of
proceeds.

On March 31, 2003, AquaSource sold its water and
wastewater utility construction business to former
members of management for approximately $8 million.
Of the total purchase price, $3.3 million is in the form of
a personally guaranteed promissory note that bears
interest at 3.5% per annum and shall be paid in full,
including accrued but unpaid interest, on the second
anniversary of the closing date. Also in the first quarter of
2003, AquaSource sold its New England contract
operations for approximately $1.3 million.

On November 22, 2002, we sold the majority of
AquaSource's contract operations business to Southwest
Water Company for $10.3 million. Southwest Water also
assumed $2.5 million in debt associated with the business.

In May 2002, we had indicated that we were exploring
the sale of our water resource management business. In
late June 2002, during our analysis of the fair value of
AquaSource’s goodwill, we had received indications of
interest for this business, and ultimately determined that
the likely outcome would be a sale of this business. Based
on the bid information received and the analysis
performed, all goodwill was determined to be impaired,




and an indication of impairment of other long-lived
assets existed.

We estimated the proceeds to be received from a sale
and compared them to the carrying amount of the long-
lived assets that remained after the goodwill impairment.
This comparison indicated that the carrying amount of
the investor-owned water and wastewater utilities to be
sold significantly exceeded the expected proceeds to be
received. As a result, we recorded an impairment charge
of $100.9 million in the second quarter of 2002, which
reduced the amount of property, plant and equipment and
other long-lived assets. No tax benefit was recognized in
connection with this impairment charge due to the
uncertainty of the recoverability of the resulting deferred
tax asset.

In addition, during 2002, we sold various assets,
including several other wastewater facilities and real
property, receiving proceeds of approximately $6 million,
which approximated book value.

During 2001, our management team evaluated
AquaSource’s future direction and the capabilities of its
operating platforms. This evaluation determined that the
company's potential future performance would result in
fower returns than originally anticipated. AquaSource
therefore recorded a second quarter 2001 pre-tax
impairment charge of $109.2 million, or $99.7 million
after-tax, to write down various aspects of its business,
primarily related to contract operations and construction.
The assets determined to be impaired consisted of
goodwill, property, plant and equipment, and other assets.

We determined the value of the impairments by
projecting the undiscounted future cash flows generated
by the specific assets over the assets’ expected lives. To
the extent that the undiscounted future cash flows did not
exceed the book carrying value of the assets, the future
cash flows were discounted back at our cost of borrowing
to determine the carrying value of the assets. The
impairment charge recorded is the difference between the
previous book carrying value and the carrying value
determined by this process.

In 2001, we sold 50,000 shares of AquaSource Class A
Common Stock to a third party in exchange for
approximately $4 million of services. We will share
proceeds from the sale of AquaSource with this third
party. We also sold real property, receiving proceeds of
$0.1 million and acquired four water companies for
approximately $0.9 million.

PRO AM

On December 13, 2002, we sold Pro Am's propane
distribution business to Ferreligas Partners, L.P_, for
approximately $42 million, $32 million of which was paid
in cash at the closing. We received an unsecured note for
the remaining $10 million, which matured on December
13, 2003. We have collected $8.5 million of this note and
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have initiated legal action for the collection of the
remaining amount. The sale resulted in an after-tax Joss of
$21.2 million.

The following table summarizes income statement
data from discontinued operations:

(Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Revenues $41.5 $147.9  $160.8
Operating Results, net

of tax of $1.8, $3.9

and $(20.5) $(1.5) $ 83 $(108.9)
Gain (Loss) from sale

of Discontinued

Operations, net of tax

of $(71.6) and $(4.8) 84.2  (135.9) —
Income (Loss) from

Discontinued

Operations $82.7 $(127.6) $(108.9)

The following table summarizes major assets and
liabilities of discontinued operations:

{Millions of Dollars)
As of December 31,

2003 2002
Other current assets $ — $ 36.1
Property and equipment, net —_ 144.1
Other current liabilities 29.9 29.4
Debt — 10.6
14. Employee Benefits
PENSION BENEFITS

We maintain several qualified retirement plans and
one unqualified plan to provide pensions for all eligible
full-time employees. Upon retirement, an eligible
employee receives a monthly pension based on his or her
length of service and compensation. The cost of funding
the pension plan is determined by the unit credit actuarial
cost method. Our policy is to record this cost as an
expense and to fund the pension plans by an amount that
is at least equal to the minimum funding requirements of
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, but which
does not exceed the maximum tax-deductible amount for
the year. Pension costs credited to expense or
construction were $2.0 million for 2003, $17.4 million for
2002 and $20.7 million for 2001.

In 2003, we approved amendments to the pension
plan which reduced the charge for post-retirement
payment options and moved the post-service period
forward one year for the next three years. This caused an




increase in the Projected Benefit Obligation of
$9.8 million.

In its January 18, 2001, order approving Duquesne
Light's final generation asset sale proceeds accounting,
the PUC approved recovery of costs associated with the
early retirement program. Although we made no cash
contributions to our pension plans in either 2003 or 2002,
Dugquesne Light has an obligation, pursuant to this PUC
order, to contribute approximately $32.1 million to the
pension plans over future years. For 2004, no cash
contributions are expected to be made to the pension
plans.

POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

In addition to pension benefits, we provide certain
health care benefits and life insurance for some retired
employees. The life insurance plan is non-contributory.
Participating retirees make contributions, which may be
adjusted annually, to the health care plan. Health care
benefits terminate when retirees reach age 65. We fund
actual expenditures for obligations under the plans on a
"pay-as-you-go” basis. We have the right to modify or
terminate the plans. In 2003, we modified the
postretirement plan design, which provides for greater
cost-sharing by the participants beginning in 2004.

In 2003, we also approved amendments to the
postretirement health care benefits plan which caused an
increase to the postretirement benefits obligation of $7.1
million. These changes included, among others, dental
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benefits to age 65, and an extension of certain spousal
benefits.

We accrue the actuarially determined costs of the
aforementioned postretirement benefits over the period
from the date of hire until the date the employee becomes
fully eligible for benefits. We have elected to amortize
the transition obligation over a 20-year period.

Due to changes in health care costs over recent years,
the health care trend assumption used in the development
of the fiscal 2004 expense will be decreased to better
reflect the current cost environment. The health care
trend assumption used in the development of the fiscal
2003 expense was 10.5%, decreasing 0.50% per year to
an ultimate rate of 5.25% (reached in 2014). The health
care trend assumption reflected in the December 31,
2003, SFAS No. 106 year-end disclosure, which will also
be used in the development of fiscal 2004 expense, is
10.0%, decreasing 0.50% per year to an ultimate rate of
5.00% (reached in 2014). A 1.25% spread between the
discount rate (6.25% for 2004 expense) and the ultimate
health care cost trend rate will be maintained.

We use a December 31 measurement date for all of
our pension and postretirement plans. The following
tables apply to both Holdings and Duquesne Light, and
provide a reconciliation of the changes in the pension and
postretirement plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of
plan assets over the two-year period ended December 31,
2003, a statement of the funded status as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and a summary of assumptions used in the
measurement of our benefit obligations:



Funded Status of the Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans as of December 31,
(Millions of Dollars)

Pension Postretirement
2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $624.9 $ 5819 $ 483 $ 46.1
Service cost 6.8 59 1.5 1.7
Interest cost 41.6 40.7 2.9 32
Actuarial loss (gain) 48.5 335 (4.0) 1.6
Benefits paid (37.6) (37.1) (4.0) (4.3)
Plan amendments 9.8 — 7.1 —
Benefit obligation at end of year 694.0 624.9 51.8 483
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 596.4 676.8 — —
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 120.2 (43.8) —_ —_
Benefits paid (37.6) (36.6) — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 679.0 596.4 — —
Funded status (15.0) (28.5) (51.8) (48.3)
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss (43.1) (25.6) 2.6 6.6
Unrecognized prior service cost 28.9 21.7 7.2 —
Unrecognized net transition obligation 0.8 1.9 6.2 6.9
Accrued benefit cost (a) $ (28.4) $ (305) $ (35.8) $ (34.8)

{a) The accrued benefit costs relating to the pension plans include prepaid pension costs of $21.6 million and $16.9 million as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, as reflected on the consolidated balance sheets. These prepaid pension costs relate to one of our
pension plans for which the fair market value of the plan’s assets exceeded the projected benefit obligations as of those dates.

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $662.4 million and $597.8 million as of
December 31, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Information for Pension Plans with an Accumulated Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan Assets as of December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002
Projected benefit obligation $630.9 $567.7
Accumulated benefit obligation 611.9 550.5
Fair value of plan assets 570.6 503.5

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Projected Benefits Obligation as of December 31,

Pension Postretirement
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.25% 6.75% 6.25% 6.75%
Assumed change in compensation levels 4.00% 4.00% — —
Ultimate health care cost trend rate — — 5.00% 525%
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Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost for the Years Ended December 31,

Pension Benefits Postretirement
2003 2002 2003 2002
Discount rate 6.75% 7.25% 6.75% 7.25%
Expected long-term return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50% — —
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% — —
Ultimate health care costs trend rate —_ — 5.25% 5.75%

All of our plans for postretirement benefits, other than pensions, have no plan assets. The accumulated benefit
obligation for those plans was $51.8 million as of December 31, 2003, and $48.3 million as of December 31, 2002. The
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation comprises the present value of the estimated future benefits payable to
current retirees, and a pro rata portion of estimated benefits payable to active employees after retirement.

Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost for the Years Ended December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)
2003 2002 2001
Components of net pension cost:
Service cost $ 6.8 § 59 $ 6.0
Interest cost 41.6 40.7 40.0
Expected return on plan assets (50.5) (54.4) (54.4)
Amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation 1.2 1.2 1.2
Amortization of prior service cost 2.6 2.6 1.9
Recognized net actuarial gain (3.7) (13.4) (15.4)
Net pension gain (2.0) (17.4) (20.7)
Curtailment cost —_ — 0.1
Settlement cost — — 0.6
Net pension gain after curtailments and settlements $ (2.0) $(17.4) $ (20.0)
Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Cost for the Years Ended December 31,
{Millions of Dollars)
2003 2002 2001
Components of postretirement cost:
Service cost $1.5 $1.7 $14
Interest cost 2.9 32 2.6
Amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation 0.7 0.8 0.7
Net postretirement cost $5.1 $57 $47
Effect of a One Percent Change in Health Care Cost Trend Rates as of December 31, 2003
{Millions of Dollars)
One Percent One Percent
Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components of net
periodic postretirement health care benefit cost $04 $(0.4)
Effect on the health care component of the accumulated
postretirement benefit obligation $38 $(3.4)
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Expected Rate of Return On Plan Assets and
Investment Policy

We used a 7.50% expected rate of return on plan
assets in determining the 2003 net periodic benefit cost.
We developed the long-term rate of return using a
building block approach, taking into account the target
allocations contained in the plan’'s investment policy in
the table below. Under this approach, we performed
separate analyses to determine the expected long-term
rate of inflation, the real rate of return for each asset class,
and the correlations among the returns for the various
asset classes. We also evaluated current market factors
such as inflation and interest rates, as well as the long-
term historical relationships between the asset classes.
The long-term rate of return is established through this
building block approach with proper consideration of
diversification to reduce volatility of expected return,

Asset Category Target Rate

20% - 55%
25% - 65%
0% - 15%

Equity securities
Fixed income securities
Other securities

Pension Plan Assets

The pension plan weighted-average asset allocations
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, by asset category are
as follows:

Plan Assets as of December 31,

Asset Category 2003 2002
Equity securities 53.3% 52.4%
Fixed income securities 33.8% 31.5%
Other 12.9% 16.1%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

Pension plan assets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002
do not include any common stock of either Holdings or
Duquesne Light.

RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLANS

There are separate 401(k) retirement plans for our
management and IBEW -represented employees.

The 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for Management
Employees provides for employer contributions which
vary by Holdings subsidiary. These contributions may
include one or more of the following: a participant base
match, a participant incentive match and automatic
contributions. The incentive match was achieved in 2003
and 2001, but not in 2002. We are funding our automatic
and matching contributions to the management 401(k)
Retirement Savings Plan for Management Employees with
payments to an ESOP established in December 1991. (See
Note 17.)
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The 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan for IBEW
Represented Employees provides that Duquesne Light
will match employee contributions with a base match and
an additional incentive match (paid in Holdings common
stock), if certain targets are met. The incentive match was
achieved in 2003 and 2001, but not in 2002.

STOCK OPTIONS

Qur shareholders approved our 2002 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (the 2002 Plan), under which management
may grant stock option awards, alternative stock
appreciation rights and dividend equivalent accounts;
restricted share awards; and performance awards. Stock
options awarded to eligible employees will be granted at
an option price not less than 100% of the fair market
value of our common stock on the date of grant. All stock
options to directors will be granted at an option price
equal to 100% of the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of grant.

The 2002 Plan became effective as of January 1, 2002,
and replaced the prior Long-Term Incentive Plan (the
Prior Plan). Any stock options granted prior to January 1,
2002, shall not be affected by the adoption of the 2002
Plan, and will be administered according to the Prior
Plan. No new options shall be granted under the
Prior Plan.

As of December 31, 2003, the aggregate remaining
number of shares of common stock authorized for
issuance under the 2002 Plan is 2,690,468 shares, and of
this total, no more than 500,000 shares shall be issued as
restricted shares. The 2002 Plan will terminate on
December 31, 2011.

During December 2002, 774,500 stock options were
granted to employees under the 2002 Plan with an
exercise price of $15.015 per share. Due to cancellations
and forfeitures in 2003, only 619,800 of these options
remain outstanding as of December 31, 2003, one-half of
which will be exercisable and fully vested in June 2004.
They will expire on December 15, 2012. In 2003,
compensation expense related to the December 2002
grant of $0.6 million was recognized, of which $0.3
million was recorded at Duquesne Light. The remaining
compensation expense to be recognized in 2004 for these
options is reflected on the December 31, 2003
consolidated balance sheet of Holdings as unearned
compensation. The remainder of the options will become
exercisable subject to the 18-month vesting period from
the date of grant, when the closing price on the New York
Stock Exchange of Holdings’ common stock averages
$19.98 for 30 consecutive trading days. If Holdings'
common stock price does not achieve the target price by
December 15, 2005, the remaining options are forfeited. If
vested, these options will also expire on December 15,
2012.




During December 2001, 787,300 stock options were price does not achieve the target price by December 10,

granted to employees under the Prior Plan with an 2004, the remaining options are forfeited. If vesied, these
exercise price of $16.90 per share. Due to cancellations options will also expire on December 11, 2011,

and forfeitures in 2002 and 2003, only 584,050 of these During 2003 and 2002, 34,232 and 37,146 shares of
options remain as of December 31, 2003, one-half of Holdings common stock were issued to non-employee
which are exercisable, fully vested and expire on directors. These shares vest over a six-month period, and
December 11, 2011. In 2003, compensation expense as of December 31, 2003, were fully vested.

related to the December 2001 grant of $0.2 million was The following tables summarize the transactions of
recognized. The remainder will become exercisable when our stock option plans for the three-year period ended
the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange of December 31, 2003, and certain information about
Holdings' common stock averages $22.49 for 30 outstanding stock options as of December 31, 2003:

consecutive trading days. If Holdings’ common stock

Millions of Options Weighted Average Price

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Options outstanding, beginning of year 2.5 2.2 1.3 $24.48 $29.88 $39.32
Options granted —_ 0.8 1.1 16.23 14.98 2092
Options exercised — (0.1) (0.1) 38.77 31.92 37.72
Options canceled/forfeited (0.5) {(0.4) (0.1) 23.02 32.49 38.07
Options outstanding, end of year 2.0 2.5 2.2 24.39 24.48 29.88
Options exercisable, end of year 1.1 0.9 0.9 30.73 37.45 38.18
Shares available for future grants, end of year 1.3 1.7 2.7

As of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, stock appreciation rights (SARS) had been granted in connection with
607,734, 726,248, and 1,036,373 of the options outstanding. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, 37,755, 54,933, and 58,061
SARS were exercised.

Qutstanding Exercisable
Number of Average Weighted Number of Weighted
Options Remaining Life Average Options Average
Exercise Price Range (In Millions) {In Years) Exercise Price (In Millions) Exercise Price
Under $20 1.3 8.5 $15.95 0.4 $16.75
$20 - $30 — — — — —
$30 - $40 0.3 3.3 33.96 0.3 33.96
Over $40 0.4 3.8 43.01 0.4 43.31
Options, End of Year 2.0 1.1

The fair value of the options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001 is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model. The estimated weighted average assumptions used and the fair values are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Expected dividend yield 6.16% 6.66% 8.69%
Risk-free interest rate 3.34% 4.16% 5.12%
Expected stock price volatility 30.91% 29.88% 27.17%
Expected term until exercise (years) 10.0 10.0 10.0
Weighted average fair value $2.40 $1.69 $3.75
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OTHER STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

On January 1, 2002, 110,000 shares of Holdings
common stock were issued to officers of Holdings as part
of a performance award. One-half, or 55,000 shares, were
subject to a two-year performance period that ended on
December 31, 2003, with no shares earned. The
remaining shares, of which 46,300 remain outstanding as
of December 31, 2003 due to forfeitures, are earned based
upon Holdings' total shareholder return (TSR) rank
against the TSR of its peer group, as defined, over a three-
year performance period ending on December 31, 2004.
On January 1, 2003, 58,500 shares were issued to the
officers of Holdings as part of a performance award.
These shares are earned in the same manner as those
granted in 2002, however the three-year performance
period for these shares ends on December 31, 2005. For
both awards, up to 200% of the total shares awarded may
be earned, conditioned upon Holdings' performance. As
of December 31, 2003, Holdings had not recognized
compensation expense for either of these performance
awards.

On November 10, 2003, 198,417 shares of Holdings
nonvested stock with voting and dividend rights were
issued to officers of Holdings. The right to the shares is
subject to continued employment. One-third of the total
shares are earned each year over the three-year vesting
period ending on December 31, 2006. The market value
of the nonvested stock, which was $3.3 million at the
grant date, was charged to stockholders' equity and

15. Long-Term Debt

Long-Term Debt as of December 31,

reflected as unearned compensation on the consolidated
balance sheet of Holdings. This unearned compensation
will be charged evenly to expense over the vesting period.
In 2003, total compensation expense of $0.2 million was
recognized, of which $0.1 million was recorded at
Dugquesne Light.

On the same date, 387,400 shares of Holdings
common stock were issued to the same officers under a
performance-based deferred stock unit award. The right
to the shares is subject to the achievement of specified
performance goals related to earnings per share (EPS)
from continuing operations and TSR over the defined
performance periods. The EPS performance period
commences on January 1, 2004 and ends December 31,
2006. The TSR performance period commenced on
October 20, 2003 and ends on December 31, 2006. At
the end of the performance period, shares may vest within
a range of 0% to 100%, with no more than 50% of the
shares subject to each performance target. Holdings did
not record compensation expense for the deferred-stock
unit award in 2003.

On January 1, 2004, 56,427 shares of Holdings
common stock were granted to non-officers of Holdings
under a performance-based stock unit award. The right to
shares is subject to the same performance targets as the
deferred stock units described previously. However, for
the grant to non-officers, both the EPS and TSR
performance periods begin on january 1, 2004 and end on
December 31, 2006.

{Miltlions of Dollars)
Principal Outstanding

Interest Rate Maturity 2003 2002

Dugquesne Light first mortgage bonds (a) 6.450%-6.7% 2008-2032 $ 340.0 $ 5400
Dugquesne Light pollution control notes (b) (c) Adjustable 2018-2030 320.1 320.1
Dugquesne Light pollution control notes (b) 4.05%-4.35% 2011-2013 97.9 97.9
Duquesne Light subordinated debentures {(Note t) 8 3/8% 2044 151.5 —
Duquesne Light sinking fund debentures 5.00% 2010 — 2.8
DQE Capital public income notes 8 3/8% 2039 100.0 100.0
Holdings miscellaneous (d) 23.8 26.7
Less: UInamortized debt discount and premium — net (4.3) (4.5)
Current maturities (51.5) (1.0)

Total Long- Term Debt $ 9775 $1,082.0

(a) Excludes first mortgage bonds issued to secure pollution control notes.
{b) Secured by an equal principal amount of first mortgage bonds.

{¢) These adjustable interest rates averaged 1.1% in 2003 and 1.5% in 2002.
(d) Primarily represents obligations incurred in connection with our Fresh Kills investment.
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Holdings. As of December 31, 2003, maturities of long-
term debt outstanding for the next five years were $51.5
million in 2004, $1.1 million in 2005, $1.2 million in
2006, $1.3 million in 2007 and $41.3 million in 2008.
The $51.5 million of maturities in 2004 includes the early
redemption of $50.5 million Subordinated Debentures.
(See Note 1.)

Total interest and other charges were $74.4 million in
2003, $83.5 million in 2002 and $103.4 million in 2001.
Interest costs attributable to debt were $65.4 million,
$68.5 million and $87.9 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Included in the interest costs attributable to debt is $12.6
million in 2003, 2002 and 2001 related to the MIPS. Of
the interest costs attributable to debt, $0.5 million, $0.9
million, and $0.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
capitalized as AFC. Debt discount or premium and related
issuance expenses are amortized over the lives of the
applicable issues. (See Note 1.)

As of December 31, 2003, the fair value of long-term
debt, including current maturities, estimated on the basis
of quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, or
current rates offered for debt of the same remaining
maturities, was $1,074.4 million. The principal amount,
excluding unamortized discounts and premiums, is
$1,033.3 million as of December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, we were in
compliance with all of our debt covenants.

DQE Capital, a 100%-owned finance subsidiary,
provides financing for the operations of our subsidiaries
other than Duquesne Light. Holdings fully and
unconditionally guarantees payment of DQE Capital's
$100.0 million of Public Income Notes, due 2039.

[n March 2003, we redeemed at par two long-term
loans with principal amounts totaling $2.0 million relating
to investments at DQE Financial.

In January 2002, we refinanced $150 million of
matured DQE Capital floating rate notes through the
issuance of commercial paper, primarily at Duquesne
Light, which loaned the proceeds to Holdings. Cash
generated from operations and equity offering proceeds
was used to repay and retire this debt in full, leaving no
outstanding balance at December 31, 2002.

In 2001, $85.0 million of term loan debt matured. In
addition, we paid $3.9 million of current maturities.

Duguesne Light. On March 3, 2004, and January 26,
2004, Duquesne Capital redeemed $25 million and
$50 million principal amounts of its MIPS. Pursuant to the
terms of the MIPS, Duquesne Light simultaneously
redeemed $25.3 million and $50.5 million of its
Subordinated Debentures. The MIPS were called in
February 2004 and December 2003,

As of December 31, 2003, maturities of long-term
debt outstanding for the next five years were $50.5
million in 2004, zero in 2005, 2006 and 2007 and $40.0
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million in 2008. The 2004 maturities are the early
redemption of the Subordinated Debentures. (See
Note 1.)

Total interest and other charges were $54.1 million in
2003, $56.5 million in 2002 and $62.4 million in 2001.
Interest costs attributable to debt were $53.1 million,
$55.2 million and $62.3 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Included in the interest costs attributable to debt is $6.3
million in 2003 related to the MIPS. Of the interest costs
attributable to debt, $0.5 million in 2003, $0.9 million in
2002, and $0.6 million in 2001 were capitalized as
allowance for funds used during construction. The
unamortized debt discount of $1.3 million is amortized
over the lives of the applicable issues. (See Note 1.)

As of December 31, 2003, the fair value of long-term
debt, including current maturities, estimated on the basis
of quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, or
current rates offered for debt of the same remaining
maturities, was $947.2 million. The principal amount,
excluding unamortized discounts and premiums, is $909.5
million as of December 31, 2003.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, Duquesne Light was
in compliance with all of its debt covenants.

On December 30, 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed
$100 million principal amount of its 7.55% first mortgage
bonds {due 2025) at a redemption price of 102.97% of
the principal amount thereof. '

On August 1, 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed at par
$100 million principal amount of its 7 3/8% first
mortgage bonds due 2038.

In May 2003, Duquesne Light redeemed the $2.8
million outstanding balance of its 5% Sinking Fund
Debentures (due 2010) at a redemption price of 100.95%
of the principal amount thereof.

In September 2002, Duquesne Light converted
approximately $98 million of variable rate debt to fixed
rate with maturities in 2011 and 2013, resulting in a
weighted average interest rate of 4.20%.

On August 5, 2002, Duquesne Light redeemed the
following: (i) $10 million aggregate principal amount of
its 8.20% first mortgage bonds due 2022 at a redemption
price of 104.51% of the principal amount thereof, and (ii)
$100 million aggregate principal amount of its 7 5/8%
first mortgage bonds due 2023 at a redemption price of
103.9458% of the principal amount thereof.

On April 15, 2002, Duquesne Light issued $200
million of 6.7% first mortgage bonds due 2012. On April
30, 2002, Duquesne Light issued $100 million of 6.7%
first mortgage bonds due 2032. In each case it used the
proceeds to call and refund existing debt, including debt
scheduled to mature in 2003 and 2004,




16. Duquesne Light Transactions

With Affiliates

As a wholly owned subsidiary of Holdings, Duquesne
Light has various transactions with its parent company
and affiliates.

Dugquesne Light generally pays quarterly dividends to
Holdings that approximate net income. As of December
31,2003 and 2002, Duquesne Light's fourth quarter
dividend to Holdings was $20.0 million and $24.0 million
and was included in the payable to affiliates on Duquesne
Light's consolidated balance sheets. As a holder of
Holdings common stock, Duquesne Light receives
dividend income from Holdings. Various Holdings
affiliates, including Duquesne Light, participate in the
DQE Capital cash pool arrangement. (See Note 1.)

Following the sale of generation assets in 2000,
Dugquesne Light loaned $250.0 million of the sale
proceeds to Holdings, which remains outstanding as of
December 31, 2003. The demand note bears a market rate
of interest and is reflected on Duquesne Light's
consolidated balance sheets as a loan receivable from
parent. Holdings used substantially all the proceeds of the
loan to make capital contributions to other subsidiaries,
which in turn used the funds for capital expenditures, new
investments or operating expenses.

In 2003 and 2002, Duquesne Light charged an
administrative fee to Holdings and its affiliates based on
an allocation method that considers the cost of actual or
estimated services performed and other expenses incurred
on behalf of Holdings or its affiliates.

In 2001, Holdings charged its affiliates a fee for
administrative and other expenses based on an allocation
method that considered, among other things, the
affiliates’ assets, revenues and employees.

Duguesne Light participates in a tax sharing
agreement with Holdings to provide, among other things,
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for the payment of taxes for periods during which
Holdings and Duquesne Light are included in the same
consolidated group for federal tax purposes. Duquesne
Light shares in the consolidated tax liability to the extent
of its income or loss for the year. (See Note 10.) As of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, Duquesne Light's tax
liability to Holdings under this arrangement was $41.6
million and $46.7 million and was included in payable to
affiliates on Duquesne Light's consolidated balance
sheets.

Certain of Duquesne Light's revenues and expenses
relate to transactions with Holdings and its affiliates,
including the following:

(Millions of Dollars)
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Revenues and Other
Income:
Interest income $15.6 $21.4 $29.2
Affiliate electric
energy sales — — 3.3
Dividend income
from Holdings
common stock 1.2 1.7 2.1
Pole rental revenue 1.1 1.1 0.9
Expenses:
Administrative cost
allocations (a) $(69 $3B7) $80
Rental of
communication
fiber 0.2 0.2 0.2
Insurance 0.3 0.1 —

(a) Allocated labor charges include the associated fringe benefits,




17. Preferred and Preference Stock

Preferred and Preference Stock as of December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002
Call Price
Per Share Shares Amount Shares Amount
Preferred Stock of Holdings:
Series A Preferred Stock (a) $§ — —_ s — 223,520 $22.4
Preferred Stock Series of Subsidiaries:
Duquesne Light 3.75% (b) 51.00 148,000 7.4 148,000 7.4
Duquesne Light 4.00% (b) 51.50 549,709 27.5 549,709 27.5
Duquesne Light 4.10% (b) 51.75 119,860 6.0 119,860 6.0
Duquesne Light 4.15% (b) 51.73 132,450 6.7 132,450 6.7
Duquesne Light 4.20% (b) 51.71 100,000 5.0 100,000 5.0
Duquesne Light $2.10 (b) 51.84 159,400 8.0 159,400 8.0
EnviroGas 6.5% (c) — 10 1.0 10 1.0
Total Preferred Stock of Subsidiaries 61.6 61.6
Preference Stock Series of Subsidiaries:
Duquesne Light Plan Series A (d) 35.50 438,243 15.5 519,622 18.4
Deferred ESOP benefit (6.4) (9.2)
Total Preferred and Preference Stock (e) $70.7 $93.2

{a) 1,000,000 authorized shares; no par value; convertible; $100 liquidation preference per share; annual dividends range from 2.7% to 4.3%.

(See Note 1.)

(b) 4,000,000 authorized shares; $50 par value; cumulative; $50 per share involuntary liquidation value.

(c) 1,500 authorized shares; $100,000 par value; $100,000 involuntary liquidation value; if declared, holders entitled to 6.5 % annual
dividend each September; $100,000 redemption price per share. EnviroGas is a DQE Financial subsidiary.

(d) 8,000,000 authorized shares; $1 par value; cumulative; $35.50 per share liquidation value; annual dividends of $2.80 per share.

(e) 2002 amount excludes $0.5 million or 10 shares of $50,000 par value AquaSource preferred stock related to discontinued operations;
100 authorized shares; $50,000 per share involuntary liquidation value; holders entitled to a 6.5% annual dividend each September;
$50,000 redemption per share. Shares were relinquished upon closing of sale to PSC.

As of December 31, 2003, 151,800 shares of Holdings
preferred stock were outstanding. This reflects (i) the
purchase in September 2003 of 60,000 shares issued in
October 2002 as part of the settlement of litigation with
minority investors in AquaSource and (ii) the conversion
in November 2003 of 11,720 shares in accordance with
the terms of the preferred stock. Upon the adoption of
SFAS No. 150 on July 1, 2003, these shares, with a
recorded value of $15.2 million as of December 31, 2003,
were included in other liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets. (See Note 1.} The Holdings preferred
stock ranks senior to Holdings common stock as to the
payment of dividends and the distribution of assets on
liquidation, dissolution or winding-up of Holdings.
Dividends are paid quarterly on each January 1, April 1,
July 1 and October 1. Holdings preferred stock holders
are entitled to vote on all matters submitted to a vote of
the holders of Holdings common stock, voting together
with the holders of common stock as a single class. Each
share of Holdings preferred stock is entitled to three
votes. Each share of Holdings preferred stock is
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convertible at our option into the number of shares of
Holdings common stock computed by dividing the
Holdings preferred stock’s $100 liquidation value by the
five-day average closing sales price of Holdings common
stock for the five trading days immediately prior to the
conversion date.

Each outstanding share of Holdings preferred stock
will automatically be converted on the first day of the first
month commencing after the sixth anniversary of its
issuance.

Holders of Duquesne Light's preferred stock are
entitled to cumulative quarterly dividends. If four
quarterly dividends on any series of preferred stock are in
arrears, holders of the preferred stock are entitled to elect
a majority of Duquesne Light's board of directors until all
dividends have been paid.

Holders of Duquesne Light's preference stock are
entitled to receive cumulative quarterly dividends, if
dividends on all series of preferred stock are paid. If six
quarterly dividends on any series of preference stock are
in arrears, holders of the preference stock are entitled to




elect two of Duquesne Light's directors until all dividends
have been paid. As of December 31, 2003, Duquesne
Light had made all dividend payments.

Preferred and preference dividends of Holdings and its
affiliates included in interest and other charges were $3.5
million, $3.3 million, and $3.4 million in 2003, 2002, and
2001. Total preferred and preference stock had
involuntary liquidation values of $77.0 million and $102.3
million, which exceeded par by $15.1 million and $40.3
million as of December 31, 2003 and-2002. As of
December 31, 2003, the involuntary liquidation value of
the Holdings preferred stock was $15.2 million, which
exceeded par by $15.2 million.

Preferred and preference dividends of Duquesne Light
included in interest and other charges were $3.2 million,
$3.3 million, and $3.4 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001.
Total preferred and preference stock had involuntary
liquidation values of $76.0 million and $78.9 million,
which exceeded par by $15.1 million and $17.9 million as
of December 31, 2003 and 2002,

Outstanding Duquesne Light preferred stock is
generally callable on notice of not less than 30 days, at
stated prices plus accrued dividends. The outstanding
preference stock is callable at the liquidation price plus
accrued dividends. None of the remaining Duquesne
Light preferred or preference stock issues has mandatory
purchase requirements.

We have an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP)
to provide matching contributions for the 401(k)
Retirement Savings Plan for Management Employees.
{See Note 14.) We issued and sold 845,070 shares of
Duguesne Light preference stock, plan series A, to the
trustee of the ESOP. As consideration for the stock, we
received a note valued at $30 million from the trustee.
The preference stock has an annual dividend rate of $2.80
per share, and each share of the preference stock is
exchangeable for the greater of one and one-half shares of
Holdings common stock or $35.50 worth of Holdings
common stock. As of December 31, 2003, $15.5 million
of preference stock issued in connection with the
establishment of the ESOP had been offset, for financial
statement purposes, by a $6.4 million deferred ESOP
benefit. Dividends on the preference stock and cash
contributions from Holdings are used to fund the
repayment of the ESOP note. We made cash
contributions of approximately $0.3 million, $0.9 million
and $1.5 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001. These cash
contributions were the difference between the ESOP debt
service and the amount of dividends on ESOP shares
($1.3 million, $1.5 million and $1.6 million in 2003, 2001
and 2001). As shares of preference stock are allocated to
the accounts of participants in the ESOP, we recognize
compensation expense, and the amount of the deferred
compensation benefit is amortized. We recognized
compensation expense related to the 401(k) plans of

$1.2 million, $2.2 million and $3.1 million in 2003, 2002
and 2001,

Duquesne Light recognized compensation expense
related to the 401(k) plan of $0.8 million, $0.9 million
and $1.7 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001.

18. Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure

Holdings Changes in Working Capital Other than Cash
(a) for the Year Ended December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002 2001

Receivables S 1.1 $233 $ 212

" Materials and supplies — 3.1 1.9

Other current assets 8.9 51.8 (75.9)

Accounts payable (2.8) 5.1 (43.2)
Other current

liabilities (19.1) (23.8) 16.2

Total $(11.9) $595 $(79.8)
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(a) The amounts shown exclude the effects of acquisitions,
dispositions and restructuring charges.

Dugquesne Light Changes in Working Capital Other
than Cash (a) for the Year Ended December 31,

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 2002 2001

Receivables $ 128 $478 § 72
Materials and supplies — 3.1 1.9
Other current assets (4.5) (2.1) 9.6
Accounts payable (26.0) (3.3) (21.3)
Other current

liabilities (34.4) 59.1 (34.3)

Total $(52.1) $1046 $(36.9)
(a) The amounts shown exclude the effects of restructuring

charges.

19. Business Segments and Related Information
We report the following business segments:
(1) Duquesne Light's transmission and distribution
of electricity (electricity delivery business segment),
(2) Duquesne Light's supply of electricity (electricity
supply business segment), (3) Duquesne Light's collection
of transition costs (CTC business segment), (4) DQE
Energy Services' development, operation and
maintenance of energy and, for a single customer,
synthetic fuel facilities (Energy Services business
segment), and (5) DQE Financial's collection and
processing of landfill gas and management of structured
finance and alternative energy investments {Financial
business segment). Effective January 1, 2003, our
subsidiary, DQE Enterprises, Inc., no longer meets the
requirements of SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures About
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”




Therefore, we no longer report an Enterprises business
segment. We also report an “all other” category to include
our other subsidiaries below the quantitative threshold for
disclosure, and corporate administrative functions,
financing, and insurance services for our various affiliates.
Operating revenues in our "all other” category are

comprised of (i)revenues from DQE Communications, (ii)
revenue from an energy services investment held by DQE
Enterprises until its sale in 2002, and (iii) revenues from
our bottled water business, the Pittsburgh Airport energy
facility and rental property until their sales in 2001.

Business Segments for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2003

(Millions of Dollars)

Total
Electricity  Electricity Duquesne Energy All Elimina- Consoli-
Delivery Supply CTC Light Services  Financial Other tions dated
Operating revenues $ 3384 $ 4502 $ 175 $ 806.1 $ 635 §$ 278 $ 7.0 $ (1.6) $ 9028
Operating expenses 157.3 416.5 0.8 5746 33.1 45.4 12.3 (0.8) 664.6
Depreciation and
amortization expense 60.7 — 15.7 76.4 2.1 6.4 2.4 — 87.3
Operating income (loss) 120.4 33.7 1.0 155.1 28.3 (24.0) (7.7) (0.8) 150.9
Other income 20.3 — — 20.3 1.8 29.4 1.7 (17.8) 35.4
Interest and other charges 63.6 — — 63.6 0.2 1.8 25.5 (16.7) 74.4
Income (loss) before taxes 77.1 33.7 1.0 111.8 29.9 3.6 (31.5) (1.9) 111.9
Income taxes 31.0 14.0 0.4 45.4 9.6 (29.6) (7.7) — 17.7
Income (loss) before net
impairment charge 46.1 19.7 0.6 66.4 20.3 33.2 (23.8) (1.9) 94.2
Impairment, net — — — — — — (1.0) — (1.0)
Income (loss) from
continuing operations 46.1 19.7 0.6 66.4 20.3 33.2 (24.8) (1.9) 93.2
Dividends on preferred
stock — — — — — — 0.4 — 0.4
Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations
available for common
stock $ 46.1 $ 197 $ 06 $ 664 $ 203 $ 332 $(252) $ (19 § 928
Assets $2,200.8 $ 8.4 $§ — $2,2092 $ 342 $614.0 $ 596 $(376.2) $2,540.8
Capital expenditures $ 76.1 $ — $ — $§ 761 $ 04 $ 03 $ 1.2 $ — $ 780
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Business Segments for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2002

(Millions of Dollars)

Total
Electricity  Electricity Dugquesne Energy All Elimina- Consoli-
Delivery Supply CTC Light Services  Financial Other tions dated

Operating revenues $ 3500 $ 4722 $1224 § 9446 $ 547 $ 220 $ 66 $ (1.9 $1,026.0
Operating expenses 156.1 448.6 5.4 610.1 293 435 26.8 (0.4) 709.3
Depreciation and

amortization expense 56.5 — 112.6 169.1 2.1 12.3 2.1 — 185.6

Operating income (loss) 137.4 23.6 4.4 165.4 233 (33.8) (22.3) (1.5) 131.1
Other income 31.9 —_ — 31.9 2.6 22.7 2.3 (22.9) 36.6
Interest and other charges 72.4 — — 72.4 0.8 1.7 29.8 (21.2) 83.5

Income (loss) before taxes 96.9 23.6 4.4 124.9 25.1 (12.8) (49.8) (3.2) 84.2
Income taxes 393 9.7 1.5 50.5 8.0 (34.6) (17.4) — 6.5
Income (loss) before net

impairment and

restructuring charges 57.6 139 2.9 74.4 17.1 21.8 (32.4) (3.2) 77.7
Impairment, net — — —_ — —_ (29.8) (18.1) — (47.9)
Restructuring, net (2.3) — — (2.3) — — (0.8) — (3.1)
Income (loss) from :

continuing operations 55.3 139 2.9 72.1 17.1 (8.0) (51.3) (3.2) 26.7
Dividends on preferred stock — — — — — — 0.6 — 0.6
Earnings (loss) from

continuing operations

available for common

stock $ 553 $ 139 $ 29 § 721 $ 171§ (80) $(519) § (3. $ 261
Assets (a) $2,464.1 $ — $ 241 $2,4882 $ 375 $5703  $1522 $ (627.6) $2,620.6
Capital expenditures § 725 $ — $ — $ 75 $ 06 $ 43 § 64 § — $ 838

(a) Excludes assets related to discontinued operations.
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Business Segments for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2001

(Millions of Dollars)

Total
Electricity  Electricity Duquesne Energy All Elimina- Consoli-
Delivery Supply CTC Light Services Financial Other tions dated
Operating revenues $ 3196 $ 4303 $ 3037 $1,0536 $ 313 § 208 § 367 $ (9.0) $1,142.4
Operating expenses 147.9 430.3 13.5 591.7 27.7 427 47.1 (14.4) 694.8
Depreciation and
amortization expense 59.7 — 271.3 331.0 1.9 10.1 5.6 — 348.6
Operating income (loss) 112.0 _ 18.9 130.9 1.7 (23.0) (16.0) 5.4 99.0
Other income 39.1 — — 39.1 7.9 285 1.3 (37.4) 394
Interest and other charges 78.4 — — 78.4 0.6 6.0 48.3 (29.9) 103.4
Income (loss) before taxes 727 — 189 91.6 9.0 (0.5) (63.0) (2.1) 35.0
Income taxes 28.3 — 6.6 34.9 2.7 (41.6) (14.1} — (18.1)
Income (loss) before net
impairment and
restructuring charges 44 .4 — 12.3 56.7 6.3 41.1 (48.9) (2.1) 53.1
Impairment, net — — — — — (43.7) (36.1) — (79.8)
Restructuring, net (6.7) — — (6.7) — — (11.1) — (17.8)
Income (loss) from
continuing operations 37.7 — 12.3 50.0 6.3 (2.6) (96.1) 2.1) (44.5)
Dividends on preferred stock — — — — — — 0.5 — 0.5
Earnings (loss) from
continuing operations
available for common
stock $§ 377 $§ — $ 123 §$ 500 § 63 $§ (26) $966) $ (2.1) $ (45.0)
Assets (a) $24357 $. — $1343 $25700 $ 352 $ 6236  $267.7 $(723.4) $2,773.1
Capital expenditures $ 591 $ — $§ — $ 591 $ 14 § 527 § 72 e $ 1204

(a) Excludes assets related to discontinued operations.
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20.

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Summary of Selected Quarterly Financial Data

Duquesne Light Holdings

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Amounts)

2003 (a) First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
Operating revenues $ 2203 $215.8 $246.0 $220.7
Operating income (b) 36.0 36.6 49.0 29.3
Income from continuing operations 27.9 20.9 30.2 14.2
Income from discontinued operations 1.7 13.4 0.4 67.2
Net income 29.6 (c) 343 (c) 30.6 81.4 (o)
Basic earnings per share:

Continuing operations 0.37 0.28 0.40 0.19

Discontinued operations 0.02 0.18 0.01 0.89

Total 0.39 0.46 0.41 1.08
Stock price:

High 16.50 16.59 15.70 18.39

Low 12.19 12.09 13.81 15.41
2002 (a) First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
Operating revenues $268.5 $250.2 $275.1 $2322 (d)
Operating income (loss) (b) 23.4 25.2 51.7 (4.6) (d)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 13.5 5.0 30.4 (22.2)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 3.2 (102.0) (3.4) (25.4)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a

change in accounting principle 16.7 (97.0) 27.0 (47.6)
Cumulative effect (113.7) —_ — —
Net income (loss) (97.0) (97.0) (e) 27.0 (f) (47.6) (g)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Continuing operations 023 0.09 0.41 (0.30)

Discontinued operations 0.06 (1.78) (0.05) (0.34)

Cumulative effect (2.02) — — —

Total (1.73) {1.69) 0.36 (0.64)
Stock price:

High 2220 21.16 15.57 16.00

Low 19.10 13.58 11.29 14.05

(a) The quarterly data reflect seasonal weather variations in the electric utility's service territory.
Operating income reflects a reclassification of amortization expense from other income to operating expense as compared to

previously reported amounts.

(c)

First quarter results include an after-tax gain of $7.0 million related to the sale of a limited partnership investment in a natural gas

operating partnership by DQE Financial. {See Note 6.} Second quarter results include an $11.5 million after-tax gain related to the
increase in fair value of AquaSource’s investor-owned utilities as a result of the sale of these utilities to PSC. (See Note 13.) Fourth

quarter results include a $5.8 million after-tax charge associated with vacant leased office space. (See Note 11.) Fourth guarter results

include a $66.6 million tax benefit related to the use of capital losses generated in connection with the sale of the AquaSource

subsidiaries. (See Note 13.)
(d)
(e)

Fourth quarter reflects a reclassification of miscellaneous revenue from other income to operating revenues.
Second quarter results include impairment charges booked at AquaSource ($100.9 million after-tax) and DQE Enterprises ($10.8

million after-tax). These charges are related to asset and investment write-downs. Impairment charges related to AquaSource are
included in discontinued operations. (See Notes 3 and 13.)

Third quarter results include costs associated with the sale of AquaSource of $7.7 million after-tax. A one-time charge of $1.2 million
after-tax for the write-off of costs associated with a discontinued power plant project is also included in third quarter results.

Fourth quarter results include impairment charges at DQE Financial and DQE Enterprises of $29.8 million after-tax and $7.3 million
after-tax. (See Note 3.) These charges are related to asset and investment write-downs. Restructuring charges at Duquesne Light and
Holdings of $2.3 million after-tax and $0.8 million after-tax, are also included in fourth quarter results. (See Note 4.) These charges are
related to an administrative cost reduction. Costs associated with the sale of AquaSource of $5.7 million after-tax are included in the
fourth guarter results. A $21.2 million after-tax loss on the sale of Pro Am is included in the fourth quarter resuits. Both the costs
associated with the sale and the loss on sale are included in discontinued operations. (See Note 13.)
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«

Dugquesne Light Company

(Millions of Dollars)

2003 (a) First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
Operating revenues $199.3 $193.2 $218.6 $195.0
Operating income 38.2 37.4 49.3 30.2
Net income 16.7 16.2 24.2 12.5 (b)
{Millions of Dollars)
2002 (a) First Quarter  Second Quarter  Third Quarter  Fourth Quarter
Operating revenues $2494 $233.0 $2546 $207.6
Operating income 34.8 356 57.7 33.4
Net income 17.8 15.0 28.3 14.3 (c)

(a) The quarterly data reflect seasonal weather variations in our service territory.
(b) Fourth quarter results include a $4.9 million after-tax charge associated with vacant leased office space. (See Note 11.)
(c) Restructuring charges of $2.3 million after-tax are included in fourth quarter results. (See Note 3.)

These charges are related to 2002 administrative cost reductions.

ltem 9. Changes In and Disagreements
With Accountants On Accounting
and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Management of both Holdings and Duquesne Light,
with the participation of each entity's Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated
their respective disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the
end of the period covered by this report. Each entity’s
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that these controls and procedures are
effective to provide reasonable assurance that the
information required to be disclosed in Holdings and
Duquesne Light's reports under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the rules and
forms of the SEC.

There has been no change in Holdings' or Duquesne
Light's internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the fourth quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, such
internal control over financial reporting.
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Item 10. Directors and Executive
Officers of the Registrants.

Information relating to Holdings' executive officers
and Dugquesne Light's executive officers and directors is
set forth in Part | of this Report under the caption
“Executive Officers of the Registrant.” All other
information about Holdings required under this Item 10 is
set forth in and incorporated by reference from the 2004
Proxy Statement. All other information about Duquesne
Light required under this [tem 10 is set forth in and
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Information relating to executive compensation for
Holdings is set forth in and incorporated by reference
from the 2004 Proxy Statement. Information relating to
executive compensation for Duquesne Light is set forth in
and incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management.

Information relating to the ownership of Holdings
equity securities by Holdings' directors, officers and
certain beneficial owners, as well as information relating
to equity compensation plans, is set forth in and
incorporated by reference from the 2004 Proxy
Statement.




Information relating to the ownership of Holdings
equity securities by Duquesne Light directors, officers and
certain beneficial owners is set forth in and incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 99.1.

-®
Item 13. Certain Relationships and

Related Transactions.

Information relating to certain relationships and
related transactions involving Holdings is set forth in and
incorporated by reference from the 2004 Proxy
Statement. There were no such relationships or
transactions regarding Duquesne Light.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees

and Services.

Information regarding Deloitte & Touche LLP's fees
and services is set forth in and incorporated by reference
from the 2004 Proxy Statement. Such fees and services
apply to Deloitte & Touche LLP's work for all of
Holdings' consolidated subsidiaries, including Duquesne

Light.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement

Schedules and Reports On
Form 8-K.

(a)(1) The following information is set forth in Part I,
Item 8:

Independent Auditors' Reports.

Holdings Consolidated Statements of Income for the
Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Holdings Consolidated Balance Sheets, December 31,
2003 and 2002.

Holdings Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the
Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Holdings Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Holdings Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings
for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.
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Duquesne Light Consolidated Statements of Income for
the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Dugquesne Light Consolidated Balance Sheets,
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Dugquesne Light Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Duquesne Light Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income for the Three Years Ended
December 31, 2003.

Duquesne Light Consolidated Statements of Retained
Earnings for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a)(2) The following financial statement schedules and
the related Independent Auditors’ Report are filed here as
a part of this Report:

Schedule for the Three Years Ended December 31, 2003:
I - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Holdings)

Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Duquesne
Light)

The remaining schedules are omitted because of the
absence of the conditions under which they are required
or because the information called for is shown in the
financial statements or notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

(a)(3) Exhibits are set forth in the Exhibit Index below,
incorporated here by reference. Documents other than
those designated as being filed here are incorporated here
by reference. Documents incorporated by reference to a
Holdings Annual Report on Form 10-K, a Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q or a Current Report on Form 8-K
are at Securities and Exchange Commission File

No. 1-10290. Documents incarporated by reference to a
Dugquesne Light Annual Report on Form 10-K, a
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q or a Current Report on
Form 8-K are at Securities and Exchange Commission File
No. 1-956.

The Exhibits include the management contracts and
compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed
as exhibits to this Form 10-K by Item 601(b)(10)(iii) of
Regulation S-K.

(b) Holdings and Duquesne Light filed no reports on
Form 8-K in the fourth quarter of 2003,




(c) Exhibits Index

Exhibit No.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

4.1

4.2

Description

Holdings Articles of Incorporation effective January 5,
1989.

Holdings Articles of Amendment effective April 27, 1989.

Holdings Articles of Amendment effective February 8§,
19913,

Holdings Articles of Amendment effective May 24, 1994,

Holdings Articles of Amendment effective April 20, 1995.

Holdings Articles of Amendment effective September 30,
2003.

Holdings Statement with respect to the Preferred Stock,
Series A (Convertible), as filed with the Pennsylvania
Department of State on August 29, 1997.

Duquesne Light Restated Articles of Incorporation
currently in effect.

Holdings By-Laws, as amended through September 30,
2003, and as currently in effect.

Duquesne Light By-Laws, as amended through October
13,2003, and as currently in effect.

Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of
April 1, 1992, securing Duquesne Light Company's First
Collateral Trust Bonds.

Supplemental Indentures supplementing the said
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust -

Supplemental Indenture No. 1.

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 through Supplemental
Indenture No. 4.

Supplemental Indenture No. 5 through Supplemental
Indenture No. 7.

Supplemental Indenture No. 8 and Supplemental
Indenture No. 9.
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Method of Filing

Exhibit 3.1 to the Holdings Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1989.

Exhibit 3.2 to the Holdings Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1989.

Exhibit 3.3 to the Holdings Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1992,

Exhibit 3.4 to the Holdings Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1994

Exhibit 3.5 to the Holdings Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1995.

Filed here.

Exhibit 3.1 to the Holdings Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30,
1997.

Exhibit 3.1 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1999.

Exhibit 3.1 to the Holdings Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30,
2003.

Exhibit 3.1 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2003.

Exhibit 4.3 to Registration Statement
(Form S-3) No. 33-52782.

Exhibit 4.4 to Registration Statement
(Form S-3) No. 33-52782.

Exhibit 4.4 to Registration Statement
{Form S-3) No. 33-63602.

Exhibit 4.6 to the Dugquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1993.

Exhibit 4.6 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1994.



Exhibit No. Description Method of Filing

Supplemental Indenture No. 10 through Supplemental Exhibit 4.4 to the Duquesne Light
Indenture No. 12. Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1995.

Supplemental Indenture No. 13. Exhibit 4.3 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996.

Supplemental Indenture No. 14. Exhibit 4.3 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1997.

Supplemental Indenture No. 15. Exhibit 4.3 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the vear ended
December 31, 1999,

Supplemental Indenture No. 16. Exhibit 4.3 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999.

Supplemental Indenture No. 17 and Supplemental Exhibit 4.2 to the Duquesne Light
Indenture No. 18. Registration Statement (Form S-3)
No. 333-72408.
Supplemental Indenture No. 19. Exhibit 4 to the Form 8-A of Duquesne
Light, filed April 29, 2002.
4.3 Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership Exhibit 4.4 to the Duquesne Light
of Duquesne Capital L.P., dated as of May 14, 1996. Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996.
4.4 Payment and Guarantee Agreement, dated as of May 14, Exhibit 4.5 to the Duquesne Light
1996, by Duquesne Light Company with respect to MIPS. Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1996,
45 Indenture, dated as of May 1, 1996, by Duquesne Light Exhibit 4.6 to the Duquesne Light
Company to the First National Bank of Chicago as Form 10-K for the year ended
Trustee. December 31, 1996.
4.6 Indenture, dated as of August 1, 1999, from DQE Capital Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-A of DQE
Corporation and Holdings to The First National Bank of Capital Corporation and Holdings,
Chicago, as Trustee. filed September 16, 1999.
47 Form of Note. Exhibit 4.2 to the Form 8-A of DQE

Capital Corporation and Holdings,
filed September 16, 1999.

10.1 Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors of Duquesne Exhibit 10.1 to the Holdings Form 10-
Light Company, as amended to date. K for the year ended December 31,
1992.
10.2 Incentive Compensation Program for Certain Executive Exhibit 10.2 to the Holdings Form 10-
Officers of Duquesne Light Company, as amended K for the year ended December 31,
to date. 1992.
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Exhibit No.

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Description

Description of Duquesne Light Company Pension Service
Supplement Program.

Duquesne Light Charitable Giving Program, as amended.

Employment Agreement dated as of September 14, 2001
between Holdings and Morgan K. O'Brien.

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement dated
as of September 14, 2001 for Morgan K. O'Brien.

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement dated
as of October 21, 1996 for Victor A. Roque.

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement dated
as of August 1, 2000 for Joseph G. Belechak.

Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement dated
as of April 2, 1997 for Maureen L. Hogel.

Schedule to Exhibit 10.7 listing substantially identical
agreements with Stevan R. Schott and James E. Wilson

Severance Agreement dated December 23, 2003 for
Morgan K. O'Brien, with a schedule listing substantially
identical agreements with Joseph G. Belechak, Maureen L.
Hogel, Stevan R. Schott and James E. Wilson.

POLR Agreement, dated as of September 24, 1999 by and
between Duquesne Light Company and Orion Power
Holdings, Inc.

Amended and Restated POLR 1l Agreement by and
between Duquesne Light Company and Orion Power
MidWest, L.P., dated as of December 7, 2000.

LLC Purchase Agreement by and among AquaSource,
Holdings, and Southwest Water Company, dated as of
September 14, 2002,

LLC Purchase Agreement by and between AquaSource,

Inc. and Fudd & Dudd Acquisition LLC, dated as of
March 14, 2002.

Purchase Agreement by and among AquaSource,
Holdings, Philadelphia Suburban and Aqua Acquisition
Corporation dated as of July 29, 2002.
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Method of Filing

Exhibit 10.3 to the Holdings Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,
1992.

Exhibit 10.6 to the Holdings Form 10-
K Annual Report for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Exhibit 10.8 to the Holdings Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Exhibit 10.13 to the Holdings Form
10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Exhibit 10.15 to the Holdings Form
10-K for the year ended December 31,
2001.

Exhibit 10.7 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Exhibit 10.8 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Exhibit 10.5 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Filed here.

Exhibit 2.2 to the Holdings Form 8-K
September 24, 1999.

Exhibit 10.11 to the Duquesne Light
Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000.

Exhibit 10.1 to the Holdings Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2002.

Exhibit 10.17 to the Holdings Form
10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002.

Exhibit 10.1 to the Holdings Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003.




Exhibit No.

10.17

121

12.2

32.1
322
32.3
324

991

Description

Agreement No. 1 to the Purchase Agreement by and
among AquaSource, Holdings, Philadelphia Suburban and
Aqua Acquisition Corporation, dated as of March 4, 2003.

Holdings Ratio of Earnings.

Dugquesne Light Ratio of Earnings.

Subsidiaries of the registrants.

Independent Auditors’ Consent regarding Holdings.

Independent Auditors’ Consent regarding Duquesne
Light.

Powers of Attorney.

Section 302 Certification of Holdings’ CEO.
Section 302 Certification of Holdings' CFO.
Section 302 Certification of Duquesne Light's CEO.
Section 302 Certification of Duquesne Light's CFO.
Section 906 Certification of Holdings' CEO.
Section 906 Certification of Holdings' CFO.
Section 906 Certification of Duquesne Light's CEO.
Section 906 Certification of Duquesne Light's CFO.

Information regarding Duquesne Light directors,
executive compensation and security ownership.

Method of Filing

Exhibit 10.2 to the Holdings Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2003.

Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.

Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.
Filed here.

Copies of the exhibits listed above will be furnished, upon request, to holders or beneficial owners of any class of our stock

as of March 1, 2004, subject to payment in advance of the cost of reproducing the exhibits requested.
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SCHEDULE 11

DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

{(Millions of Dollars)

Additions
Description Balance at  Charged to  Charged to Balance
Beginning  Costs and Other at End
of Year Expenses Accounts (a)  Deductions (b) _of Year
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $ 7.7 $10.8 $3.6 $16.4 $57
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $ 6.3 $21.3 $2.7 $22.6 $7.7
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $9.8 $79 $2.6 $14.0 $6.3
Notes: (a) Recovery of accounts previously written off.
(b) Accounts receivable written off.
DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
For the Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001
{Millions of Dollars)
Additions
Description Balance at  Chargedto Charged to Balance
Beginning  Costs and Other at End
of Year Expenses Accounts (a) Deductions (b) of Year
Year Ended December 31, 2003
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $7.7 $10.2 $3.6 $15.8 $57
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $ 6.3 $21.3 $2.7 $22.6 $7.7
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Reserve Deducted from the Asset
to which it applies:
Allowance for uncollectible accounts  $ 9.8 $7.9 $2.6 $14.0 $63

Notes: (a) Recovery of accounts previously written off.
(b) Accounts receivable written off.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Duquesne Light Holdings, Inc.
{Registrant)

Date: March 15, 2004 By: /s/ Morgan K. O'Brien
(Signature)
Morgan K. O'Brien
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ Morgan K. O'Brien President, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 15, 2004
Morgan K. O'Brien
/s/ Stevan R. Schott Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer  March 15, 2004
Stevan R. Schott
/s/ Susan S. Mullins Controller March 15, 2004
Susan S. Mullins (Principal Accounting Officer)

* Director

Doreen E. Boyce

* Director
Robert P, Bozzone

* Director
Charles C. Cohen

* Director
Sigo Falk

* Director
Joseph C. Guyaux

*® Director
David M. Kelly

* Director
Steven S. Rogers

* Director
John D. Turner
*By /s/ Stevan R. Schott Attorney-in-Fact March 15, 2004
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Duquesne Light Company
(Registrant)

Date: March 15, 2004 By /s/ Morgan K. O'Brien
(Signature)
Morgan K. O'Brien
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Morgan K. O'Brien Director, President and Chief Executive Officer March 15, 2004
Morgan K. O'Brien

/s/ Stevan R. Schott Director, Senior Vice President and March 15, 2004
Stevan R. Schott Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Susan S. Mullins Controller March 15, 2004
Susan S. Mullins {Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ Joseph G. Belechak Director March 15, 2004

Joseph G. Belechak

/s/ Maureen L. Hogel Director March 15, 2004

Maureen L. Hogel

/s/ James E. Wilson Director March 15, 2004

James E. Wilson
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EXHIBIT 12.1
DUQUESNE LIGHT HOLDINGS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Calculation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred and Preference Stock Dividend Requirements
(Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Fixed Charges:
Interest on long-term debt $ 53.1 $ 553 $ 62.3 $ 73.6 $ 79.4
Other interest 12.3 13.3 25.6 35.0 26.9
Portion of lease payments representing

an interest factor 4.9 3.2 3.1 6.8 43.0
Dividend requirement (a) 9.5 15.8 16.0 14.1 14.7

Total Fixed Charges $ 79.8 $ 876 $107.0 $129.5 $164.0
Earnings:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ 932 $ 267 $ (44.5) $145.3 $189.3
Income taxes 17.7 (11.6) (77.4) 25.0 705
Fixed charges as above 79.8 87.6 107.0 129.5 164.0

Total Earnings $190.7 $102.7 $(14.9) $299.8 $4238
Ratioc Of Earnings To Fixed Charges

and Preferred and Preference Stock

Dividend Requirements 2.39 1.17 (0.14) (b) 2.32 2.58

(a) Includes annual dividend requirements of $12.6 million for the Monthly Income Preferred Securities (MIPS) per year for 2002 and prior.
For 2003, only $6.3 million is included for the period January 1 — June 30. Effective July 1, 2003, MIPS dividends are included with
interest on long-term debt due to the adoption of SFAS No. 150.

(b) In order to achieve a ratio of earnings to fixed charges and preferred and preference stock dividend requirements of one to one, Total
Earnings would need to increase by approximately $122 million.
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EXHIBIT 12.2

DUQUESNE LIGHT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES

Calculation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Preferred and Preference Stock Dividend Requirements

Fixed Charges:
Interest on long-term debt
Other interest
Company obligated mandatorily
redeemable preferred securities
dividend requirement (a)
Amortization of debt discount, premium
and expense - net
Portion of lease payments representing
an interest factor
Dividend requirements

Total Fixed Charges

Earnings:
Income from continuing operations
Income taxes
Fixed charges as above
Total Earnings

Ratio Of Earnings To Fixed Charges
and Preferred and Preference Stock
Dividend Requirements

{Millions of Dollars)

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
$ 49.2 $ 526 $ 60.1 $ 712 $ 76.9
1.5 22 0.7 3.1 4.8
6.3 12.6 12.6 12.6 12.6
3.9 2.6 2.2 2.3 25
1.2 1.9 3.1 6.8 43.0
3.2 3.3 3.4 3.4 4.0

$ 65.3 $ 75.2 $ 82.1 $ 994 $1438
$ 69.6 $ 75.4 $ 534 $ 926 $151.0
45.4 48.9 30.8 40.5 73.6
65.3 75.2 82.1 99.4 143.8
$180.3 $199.5 $166.3 $232.5 $ 368.4
2.76 2.65 2.03 2.34 2.56

{a) Effective July 1, 2003, dividends on the monthly income preferred securities are included with interest on long-term debt due to the

adoption of SFAS No. 150.
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SHAREHOLDER REFERENCE GUIDE

Common Stock

Trading Symbol: DQE

Stock Exchanges Listed and Traded:

New York, Philadelphia, Chicago

Number of Common Shareholders of Record
as of March 1, 2004: Approximately 50,800

Newspaper Summaries List Stock as “DugLight”
While our trading symbol, DQE, did not change as
a result of our recent name change to Duquesne Light
Holdings, our title in newspaper stock listings did.
Stock charts in the business section of newspapers now
show daily trading information for our common stock as
"Dugqlight.” This new listing is located near the bottom
portion of the “D" section of stock quotes in the
newspaper. Previously, our listing as DQE was found
near the beginning of the “D" section.

Annual Meeting May 27

Our 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be
held at 10 a.m., Thursday, May 27, at Manchester
Craftsmen'’s Guild Auditorium, located at 1815
Metropolitan St. in Pittsburgh.

Shareholder Account Info Available Online

Shareholders with Internet access who directly own
Duquesne Light Holdings stock can view —and make
changes to — their accounts online. You can get detailed
information from your computer, ranging from payment
history and reinvestment history to certificate detail,
Form 1099-DIV data, and other general account
information. You also can make many changes to your
account using this free, secure, online service. Follow the
simple steps at www.shareowneronline.com to access
your account information.

Shareholder Services/Assistance
Write to us at: Shareholder Relations Department
411 Seventh Avenue, 7-4
Pittsburgh, PA 15219
or call us at;:  Toll-Free: 1-800-247-0400
In Pittsburgh: 1-412-393-6167
or fax us at: 1-412-393-1263
or email us at: share@duquesnelight.com
By telephone, representatives are available from
7:30 a.m. to 4 p.m. (Eastern time) to assist you. Please
feel free to call at other times. Our Message Center is
available 24 hours a day. You can record a message, and
our staff will follow up on the next business day.

Financial Community Inquiries

Analysts, investment managers and brokers
should direct their inquiries to: 1-412-393-1157;
Fax: 1-412-393-1077.
Written inquiries should be sent to:

Investor Relations Department

411 Seventh Avenue, 7-3

Pittsburgh, PA 15219

Stock Certificate Transfers

Individuals who are not participants in the dividend
reinvestment plan, and who want to transfer stock
certificates, should send their certificates and related
documents to our transfer agent:

Wells Fargo Shareowner Services

P.O. Box 64874

St. Paul, MN 55164-0874

You can check the status of a transfer by calling
1-800-468-9716.

Dividend reinvestment plan participants who want
to transfer their shares should send their certificates and
refated documents to Shareholder Relations.

Direct Deposit of Dividends

Your quarterly dividend can be deposited automatically
into a personal checking or savings account. Check the
Shareholder Services section of www.duquesnelight.com
or call Shareholder Relations toll-free for more information.

Electri s+ Stock

The following investor services are available through
our Electri-Stock Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan:

Direct Purchase of Stock

We offer non-shareholders the ability to join the
Electri-Stock Program by purchasing common stock
directly through the company.

Automatic Cash Contributions

Through this program, current reinvestment plan
participants can make regular cash contributions to
purchase additional shares of our common stock by
having funds automatically withdrawn from their bank
accounts.

For more information, visit the "For Our Investors"’
section of www.duquesnelight.com or call us toll-free.

Duquesne Light Holdings and its affiliated companies are Equal Opportunity Employers.

The s® " isa registered trademark of Duquesne Light Holdings.
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